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But Boeing is about much more than statistics or products, no matter
how awe-inspiring. It’s also about the enterprising spirit of our people

addition, we are partnered with hundreds of thousands of talented people
at 11,349 suppliers worldwide.
In the years ahead, we see tremendous opportunities for connecting
and protecting people, as well as streamlining our supplier network to
increase profitability and improve efficiency. Among the challenges under
development: a new global air traffic management system, and a globalmobile communications system that will allow passengers on any moving
platform to be connected to high-bandwidth data.

Operational Highlights

Solid performance in dynamic markets from Boeing’s balanced portfolio of aerospace businesses
■

Achieved net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change of $2.3 billion, or $2.87 per share,
on revenues of $54.1 billion and operating margins of 7.2 percent, reflecting prolonged downturns in
commercial aviation and space markets offset by growing defense and noncommercial space markets.
■

Generated strong free cash flow totaling $3.4 billion.

■

Achieved solid Commercial Airplanes operating margins on planned lower deliveries of 381 jetliners
while supporting customer efforts to restore the long-term health of the airline industry; rolled out new
747-400ER and 777-300ER (Extended Range) airplanes and focused development on a super-efficient
midsized airplane, the Boeing 7E7.
■

Combined our military aircraft and missile systems and space and communications businesses
into Boeing Integrated Defense Systems, the United States’ second largest defense contractor;
leveraged strong Boeing platform, technology and systems integration capabilities to further align
with customer requirements and strategies.
■

Emerged as a leading industry partner in the U.S. military’s transformation; captured the lead integrator role for the Army’s transformational Future Combat Systems and won key contracts for the Air
Force’s Family of Advanced Beyond-Line-of-Sight Terminals and the Army’s Joint Tactical Radio System.
■

Successfully completed the first launch of the new Delta IV booster; continued on-track development of the Ground-based Midcourse Defense program (formerly National Missile Defense).
■

Won key contracts to deliver 60 C-17 transports to the U.S. Air Force and 40 F-15K aircraft to
the Republic of Korea; began flight tests of the X-45A Unmanned Combat Air Vehicle.
■

Initiated Connexion by BoeingSM revenue service on U.S. Government aircraft and installed the
broadband system on commercial airplanes for in-flight demonstrations, which started in 2003.
Continued to build domestic and international support for a new global air traffic management system;
selected by the U.S. Federal Aviation Administration to evaluate the feasibility of integrating emerging
security- and capacity-enhancing technologies into the current National Airspace System.
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2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

54,069

58,198

51,321

57,993

56,154

2,319

2,826

2,128

2,309

1,120

Earnings per share*

2.87

3.41

2.44

2.49

1.15

Operating margins

7.2%

6.7%

6.0%

5.5%

2.8%

Free cash flow †

3,374

2,705

5,161

4,809

300

104,173

106,591

120,600

99,248

112,896

(Dollars in millions except per share data)

Revenues
Net earnings*

Contractual backlog

*Before cumulative effect of accounting change.
Free cash flow is a non-GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) measure that equals net cash provided by operating
activities less net additions of property, plant and equipment. Others using the term may calculate free cash flow differently.

†
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Message to Shareholders

Philip M. Condit
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

More balance means
greater stability,
strength and agility.

Portfolio Mix
percent of revenues

1993 $25.4 billion revenues

80%

20%

2002 $54.1 billion revenues

53%

Defining the Future

This is an extraordinarily dynamic time in the aerospace
industry — with distressed conditions in some areas and
robust growth in others. The commercial aviation market
is experiencing its most severe downturn ever, and
recent airline announcements confirm that recovery in the
United States will be slower than many had expected.
Conversely, our defense, intelligence and noncommercial
space markets remain strong, with significant growth
expected in several key areas.
To tell you how Boeing is doing, there are three topics
that I want to cover in depth:
■ Strategy
■ Execution
■ Markets
It begins with strategy. A robust strategy does not
change every day. It can stand the test of time — and all
manner of unforeseen conditions.
Execution means the same thing in business that it
does in sports, games of skill or the arts. It means performance at a consistently high level — regardless of the
lie of the ball, the luck of the cards or the complexity of
the music.
“Markets” is an active concept. The best companies do
more than respond to market conditions. They shape the
markets of tomorrow.
So how does this apply to Boeing?
Strategy In 1996, we adopted a new strategy. As a new

CEO, I wanted us to excel in all principal aerospace markets to reduce our dependence on the cyclical commercial airplane market. We set out to create a diversified
aerospace company of unrivaled breadth and balance.

47%

Boeing Commercial Airplanes
Integrated Defense Systems
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
Space and Communications
Boeing Capital Corporation
Connexion by Boeing
Air Traffic Management
Other

And we did, through a series of mergers and acquisitions
of key defense and space businesses.
More balance means greater stability, strength and
agility. We can move people, ideas and technology across
Boeing, and respond quickly and decisively to emerging
opportunities, whenever and wherever they exist.
Now that we have a broad portfolio of businesses, we
are not complacent. We continue to build on our strengths.
We are exceptionally well positioned in all of our core businesses. Our balanced portfolio is creating greater strength,
financially and technologically, and providing a diversity of
business opportunities. We remain focused on delivering
outstanding performance and growing the company.
Our strategy remains consistent. First, run healthy core
businesses — no exceptions and no excuses. Next, leverage our strengths to enter new markets where we have
the customer knowledge or the technology to make an
immediate impact. And finally, open new frontiers in aerospace with the potential to transform the future.
Execution Execution is the key to running healthy core

businesses — the key to satisfying customers and investors alike. Part of execution is always doing what you
say you are going to do.
Recognizing that the tragedy of September 11 seriously affected our airline customers, we said that we
would take immediate and decisive action to match
capacity to demand within our commercial airplane business, and we did. We said that we would continue to
make a profit in that business, and we have. To cut production rates in half while simultaneously shortening flow
times and reducing unit costs is a remarkable feat. But
we did just that in 2002. And we will continue to become
leaner and more efficient in 2003 and beyond. We said
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that we would not be drawn into a discount or giveaway
battle with Airbus, and we haven’t. Our orders booked in
2002 are priced to provide a fair return for Boeing shareholders. Finally, we said that we would continue to invest
in the future of this business, and we have — pursuing an
all-new airplane with real market impact and further derivatives within existing families of airplanes.
Inside our new Boeing Integrated Defense Systems
unit, execution is the hallmark of our military aircraft and
missiles business. In the stepped-up tempo of these
extraordinary times, the armed forces know they can be
confident in a wide array of Boeing products, including the
C-17, Apache helicopter and Joint Direct Attack Munitions,
to name a few. This business remains a model of reliability
and excellence — in financial performance as well as technical performance.
Execution in space and communications involves systems integration at the highest level of knowledge and
complexity. Consider the challenge of intercepting a missile
in space — and potentially saving the lives of millions of
people. In flight tests for the missile defense program, we
demonstrated the ability to “hit a bullet with a bullet” in
space. In a similar fashion, we integrated a complex array
of ground and space assets as prime contractor for the
International Space Station.
When we don’t execute as planned, we always address the problem forthrightly and aggressively. Our Delta IV
rocket, powered by the first new rocket engine since the
early 1980s — the Boeing Rocketdyne-built RS-68 — encountered technical difficulties in early development. We
overcame those, and the Delta IV performed flawlessly in
its first flight on November 20. Similarly, we are addressing
cost and technical problems in Boeing Satellite Systems
by aggressively improving processes and implementing

4

best practices on our commercial satellite programs.
In addition, we are right-sizing for the satellite market to
improve our performance and profitability while maintaining our technological leadership to benefit when the
market reemerges.
Markets We are in a dramatically changed business envi-

ronment. Our commercial markets remain affected by the
economy, by the financial markets and by the prospect of
military action in Iraq. The slow recovery of both air travel
and airline profitability continues to dampen demand for
new airplanes and related support. Trends vary among
regions and types of carriers. But overall the downturn is
severe, particularly with major U.S. carriers.
Our defense, intelligence and noncommercial space
markets, however, remain extremely strong. We are very
well positioned in these markets as a leading provider of
both existing and emerging transformational systems. And
our programs are well supported.
To define the future, we are moving from market-driven
to market driving, or market shaping. That does not mean
telling the customer what to do or what to buy. Rather, it
means two things: first, understanding and appreciating
where the customer — and the customer’s customers —
want to go; and second, blazing a trail, or paving the way,
to help them get to that future state.
We took this approach in our commercial airplane
business when we introduced the “market-fragmentation”
concept in the mid-1990s — and created a product line
best suited for nonstop service between many city pairs.
Today, the market is moving in that direction. Average
airplane size is decreasing, and point-to-point routes
are proliferating. That is plainly the case even in today’s
distressed market conditions. Despite a sharp downturn
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operating margins.
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in air travel and airline profitability, there are some growing
and profitable carriers, like Southwest and Ryanair. These
examples of market segmentation using only Boeing 737s
provide the two things many people want the most — low
cost and convenience.
The line of demarcation between how Boeing and Airbus
are investing for the future could not be clearer. While
Airbus is investing in a gigantic super jumbo, we are investing in developing the Boeing 7E7, a highly efficient
200 –250-seat airplane that will provide nonstop service
between more city pairs. We believe millions of busy people,
given a choice, will prefer to fly directly to their destinations
rather than endure lengthy stopovers at major hubs like
Narita and Heathrow.
Two new Boeing businesses — Connexion by BoeingSM
and Boeing Air Traffic Management — have the potential
to transform the future of flight. For passengers on longdistance flights, Connexion will make the airplane seem
more like the office or home, allowing passengers to be
connected — any time, anywhere. Just as important, it will
facilitate communications between the airplane and the
ground regarding plane maintenance and security, passenger health and inclement weather. Two major international carriers began piloting this broadband service in
early 2003. A new global air traffic management system —
proposed by Boeing — is receiving increased attention
and focus in world capitals. It would dramatically enhance
the efficiency, capacity, security and safety of the current
ground-based traffic control system.
Although the downturn in the commercial airplane market has affected Boeing Capital Corporation, we continue
to believe in the long-term value of commercial aviation
to the global economy and remain committed to our
finance business. We continue to structure transactions

that acknowledge present and future risk, provide appropriate returns and support our customers.
In the defense arena, there are tremendous opportunities for market-shaping initiatives. The United States is now
embarked on a major defense buildup. More than that,
the senior leaders of the U.S. armed forces are embracing
sweeping change — or “transformation” — as a strategic
imperative in the post–Cold War, post–September 11
defense environment. They talk of “integrated battlespace”
— a future state in which sensors and space-based communication systems allow our forces to know with precision where everything is in relation to everything else on
Earth, in the air and at sea. In a networked world of interoperable platforms and systems, sensor-to-action times
are reduced from days, or hours, to minutes, or even
seconds. And it is not just commanders who will possess
true situational awareness, but every soldier, sailor, pilot
and crew, and marine in the battlespace. We can lift the
“fog of war.”
And we have established Boeing as the leading industry
partner for the U.S. military’s transformation. A few years
ago, we identified a handful of transformational competitions as key to the future:
■ Future Combat Systems for the Army
■ Joint Tactical Radio Systems, a revolutionary
communications system for the Army
■ FAB-T, or Family of Advanced Beyond-Line-of-Sight
Terminals for the Air Force
In 2002, we won every one of these transformational
contracts. They are great growth engines for the future.
Combined with other wins in missile defense, Airborne
Laser and Future Imagery Architecture, Boeing is the clear
leader among defense contractors in creating the networkcentric defense systems of tomorrow.
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As important as the technology is, we know that transformation is about more than technology. As Defense
Secretary Donald Rumsfeld has put it, “We [must] also
transform the way we think, train, exercise and fight.” Last
year, we melded our military aircraft and missile systems
and space and communications businesses into a single
organization — Boeing Integrated Defense Systems. In
doing so, we put together the platform capability resident
in the one with the systems capability of the other to build
the defense organization of the future.
The Future for Boeing Our financial results in 2002 were
good — but with dramatic market reductions in commercial
airplanes, not on a par with our results in 2001. I expect
our financial results for 2003 to be solid — but they will
reflect further reductions in commercial airplane deliveries.
Our defense business will continue to grow and prosper.
Deliveries of new commercial airplanes should reach
bottom. So, as an investor, a fair question to ask is, “Why
am I confident in the future of The Boeing Company?”
I will answer that both as the company’s CEO and as
someone who has worked for Boeing for 37 years in
some 20 different assignments. From my perspective,
there are five powerful reasons. Three of them go back to
what I said at the outset.
First, we have great people who are committed to
excellence.
Second, we have the right strategy. This is a wellbalanced enterprise with the widest and greatest set of
capabilities of any aerospace company in the world. We
combine strong existing programs such as the Boeing
777, Delta II and F/A-18 and great future programs such
as the new, highly efficient commercial airplane, missile
defense and Future Combat Systems. There is plenty of
6

runway for future growth and improvement.
Third, this is a company that executes well. Within our
core businesses, we will not fail to meet strict financial
objectives — in bad times as well as good. So when the
prolonged slump in the commercial airplane market
comes to an end, Boeing will be ready with significant
improvements in costs and profitability.
Fourth, Boeing is shaping the markets of tomorrow. We
are doing the kinds of things that will help our customers
— and our customers’ customers — accomplish their goals.
Finally, there is one more thing to consider, and that is
the character and integrity of this company. There’s a
good reason why Boeing is the best-known name in the
field of aerospace and one of the strongest brands in the
world. Through more than four generations, our people
have lived up to the trust that others have placed in them.
Good corporate governance — in the truest sense of the
term — means a fierce and abiding commitment to doing
the right thing and not just doing things right in terms of
achieving a short-term objective. That way of thinking is
a vital part of the culture of this company.
At Boeing, we believe in the future of aerospace. And
we’re focused on defining that future.
Forever New Frontiers,

Philip M. Condit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Executive
Council

Front row, left to right:

Roger A. Krone
Senior Vice President,
Army Systems
Integrated Defense Systems

David O. Swain *
Executive Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Office of the Chairman,
Chief Technology Officer

Scott E. Carson
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President, Connexion
by BoeingSM

Judith A. Muhlberg
Senior Vice President,
Communications

Bonnie W. Soodik
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President, Shared
Services Group

John A. Lockard
Senior Vice President,
Naval Systems
Integrated Defense Systems

Thomas R. Pickering
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Senior Vice President,
International Relations

Alan R. Mulally*
Executive Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President and Chief
Executive Officer,
Commercial Airplanes

James F. Albaugh *
Executive Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President and Chief
Executive Officer,
Integrated Defense Systems

Michael B. Bair
Senior Vice President,
Boeing 7E7 Program
Commercial Airplanes

James W. Evatt
Senior Vice President,
Missile Defense Systems
Integrated Defense Systems

James F. Palmer
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President, Boeing Capital
Corporation

Back row, left to right:

James J. Morris
Senior Vice President,
Supplier Management
Commercial Airplanes

Michael J. Cave
Senior Vice President,
Commercial Aviation Services
Commercial Airplanes

Randall R. Simons
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Integrated Defense Systems

James C. Johnson
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Secretary and
Assistant General Counsel

Roger F. Roberts
Senior Vice President, Space
and Intelligence Systems
Integrated Defense Systems

Robert J. Pasterick
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Commercial Airplanes

James A. Bell
Senior Vice President
of Finance and
Corporate Controller

Robert J. Krieger
President, Phantom Works

John B. Hayhurst
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
President, Air Traffic
Management

Laurette T. Koellner *
Executive Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Office of the Chairman,
Chief People and
Administration Officer
Michael M. Sears *
Executive Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Office of the Chairman,
Chief Financial Officer

Rudy F. deLeon
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Senior Vice President,
Washington, D.C., Operations
James M. Jamieson
Senior Vice President,
Airplane Programs
Commercial Airplanes
George K. Muellner
Senior Vice President,
Air Force Systems
Integrated Defense Systems
Walter E. Skowronski
Senior Vice President of
Finance and Treasurer

Douglas G. Bain *
Senior Vice President,
The Boeing Company
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel

* Member of the
Strategy Council

Vision 2016: People working
together as a global enterprise
for aerospace leadership.

Across the enterprise, Boeing continues the
transformation begun in 1996. This transformation remains rooted in our vision: “People
working together as a global enterprise for
aerospace leadership.” With key acquisitions
and mergers, we broadened and diversified
our portfolio. We created a balanced Boeing
— a global aerospace company capable of
weathering economic downturns and poised
for future growth.
Organized into five main business units —
Commercial Airplanes, Integrated Defense
Systems, Boeing Capital Corporation,
Connexion by BoeingSM and Air Traffic
Management — Boeing is the world’s leading
aerospace company. While technical excellence and innovation remain key strengths,
we gain even greater advantages through
technology transfer: we move people, products, ideas and technology to where they are
needed across the enterprise.
Three unifying enterprise mechanisms help
drive essential technologies, common systems and processes, information and change.
First, Boeing Phantom Works, our advanced
research-and-development group, acts as
both a catalyst and a conduit to rapidly
develop and disseminate advanced technologies and cost-saving processes across the
enterprise. Second, Boeing Shared Services
Group allows business units to focus on profitable growth by providing the infrastructure

services required to run their global operations. Third, enterprisewide process councils
covering all functional areas (for example,
engineering, supplier relations and people)
ensure that we share and implement best
practices, processes and tools across Boeing.
Emphasis on Leadership Boeing needs

leaders ready to take advantage of the rapid
rate of change that is driving the global economy. We are committed to providing them
with the resources and direction to lead from
wherever they are within the enterprise.
The Boeing Leadership Center in St. Louis
does just that, developing leadership at all
management levels. Nearly 11,000 Boeing
managers and executives have participated in
development programs at the Leadership
Center. As part of an integrated, ongoing
leadership development plan, we began
bringing all executives back to the Center in
2002 for a learning experience focused on
strategy, marketing and an involved workforce.
We also introduced new functional excellence
programs for marketing and supplier management. In 2003, we will make Center programs
available to stakeholders in the entire Boeing
enterprise — our customers, suppliers and
partners — in support of Vision 2016.
Boeing World Headquarters, now in its
second year in Chicago, remains strongly
focused on company strategy. This year, we

Our future depends
upon courageous
leadership. The
Boeing Leadership
Center is transforming managers and
executives — at all
levels — into more
effective leaders
willing to adapt and
learn as we move
into increasingly
dynamic business
environments.

As we transform to a global
enterprise, we are building strong
partnerships to bring greater
value to our stakeholders.

Boeing is thinking
globally and acting
locally in countries
and regions important to our growth.
We are building
local relationships,
coordinating local
business activities
and developing
strategies that
create greater value
and opportunities
for the enterprise.

expanded the Office of the Chairman and our
two key management councils, the Strategy
Council and Executive Council (see page 7).
These changes are enhancing communication
and transparency throughout the enterprise.
Building a Global Enterprise We are transforming — from a company that knows how
to market in countries around the world to
one that is a “citizen” of those countries. We
want to weave Boeing into the fabric of the
local economy and culture while benefiting
from deep customer knowledge and the value
of that market’s intellectual resources.
Successfully growing our business globally
and creating value for Boeing requires a team
of professionals with a unique understanding
of local business practices, culture and protocol. Boeing is putting together a team with indepth understanding of host government
purchasing processes and market knowledge
to identify new business opportunities. By the
end of 2002, we appointed 12 new country
presidents or regional vice presidents; more
are planned — a network of as many as 23
country or regional offices by 2004. Country
and regional leaders are responsible for devising customized business strategies based
on local market expertise, expanding and
strengthening in-country relationships and

building value through our increased presence
in that location.
As rich in intellectual capital as Boeing is, it
is not relying exclusively on its own resources
to generate new ideas and innovative solutions. We are reaching out globally to find the
best talent and technologies not only to help
meet the challenges of the future but also to
shape the future. And we are investing in new
facilities throughout the world.
We opened the Boeing Research and
Technology Center in Madrid, Spain, in July
2002, creating a center of excellence for environmental, safety and reliability, and air traffic
control technologies. Other Boeing international technology centers are planned for the
future. The Boeing Design Center in Moscow,
the largest Boeing engineering center outside
of the United States, is devoted to designing
key parts and structures of commercial airplanes. Alongside it, the Boeing Technical
Research Center is working with Russia’s top
aerospace research institutes on aerodynamics,
computational fluid dynamics, vibrostrengthening and prototyping research projects.
We also expanded our university relationships by entering into collaborative agreements with universities around the world. For
example, in the United Kingdom, we are
working with the University of Sheffield to

We want to envision what the
future will look like, then innovate
and think outside the current
business trajectory.

establish an advanced manufacturing
research center to develop new materialscutting technologies; Cranfield University to
research blended wing/body aircraft; and
Cambridge University to develop new information technologies.
Boeing also invests in technology-focused
venture capital funds around the world to
ensure that we have a window into the
newest developments and an early opportunity to leverage them in creating value for our
customers and shareholders. Our portfolio
includes funds in Australia, Japan, Russia,
Israel, the United Kingdom and Canada, as
well as the United States.
Boeing is transforming into a truly global
enterprise, building stronger partnerships
everywhere we do business to bring greater
value to our stakeholders.
An Environment for the Development of
People, Diversity and Innovative Ideas

We devote enormous energy to cultivating a
workplace where Boeing people from diverse
backgrounds can learn, work together and be
innovative in a stimulating, creative environment of mutual trust and respect, equality,
opportunity and challenge.

A skilled workforce engaged in lifelong
learning is critical to achieving Vision 2016,
and Boeing intends to have the best-educated
workforce in the world. With $68 million in
funding in 2002, our Learning Together program provides every Boeing person with
company-funded opportunities to realize their
full potential through continuing education.
More than 23,000 Boeing people challenged
themselves last year to seek further education
through this program, one of the most generous corporate tuition-reimbursement programs in the world. In all, Boeing people hold
more than 78,000 degrees in virtually every
business and technical field, from more than
5,700 schools worldwide. The workforce of
Boeing’s future will challenge the status quo
and fuel new solutions.
The Chairman’s Innovation Initiative (CII)
is fostering a culture of innovation and generating new business opportunities through the
entrepreneurial ideas of our people. CII
encourages innovators to develop new
business-building ideas and provides the support structure to help take them from concept
to reality. They often involve “next-square”
opportunities such as applying existing technologies to new markets or new technologies

The Chairman’s
Innovation Initiative
was established to
stimulate and support creative business ideas from
Boeing people and
leverage existing
technology and capabilities into entirely
new markets. A
prime example is
the Autonomous
Underwater Vehicle,
an outgrowth of
Boeing’s work for the
U.S. Navy, which is
performing deepwater surveys for oil
and gas customers in
the Gulf of Mexico.

We partner with our communities
to help them grow and flourish.
It’s embedded in our culture.

The arts can be a
tool for community
economic development. Boeing’s
investment in
Chicago’s Garfield
Park Conservatory
brought Dale
Chihuly’s glass artwork to a reborn
neighborhood. The
result: a more than
300 percent increase in audience,
changed community
opinion and revenue
for improvements.

to existing markets. Since its inception in
September 2000, CII has received more than
750 new business concepts from Boeing
people. Several of these concepts are now
well positioned to be “spun-out” as separate
business ventures. Many others have been
“spun-in” to Boeing business units, where
they are creating significant value for their
customers. Several more are providing additional value through successful licensing
transactions. In addition, CII projects are
expanding our intellectual property portfolio
by generating new invention disclosures and
patent applications.
By providing an environment that supports
involvement, learning, development and
growth built on the cornerstones of strong
values, teamwork and empowerment, we are
confident that our most important resource —
Boeing people — will flourish. This is the best
investment we can make in our future.
Good Corporate Citizenship Corporate
citizenship remains a key value for Boeing
and its people — not only through charitable
contributions to our communities, but also
through employee outreach activities. Boeing
people at all levels volunteer their time and
talents to assist not-for-profit organizations

and educational institutions, helping to build
healthy communities where we live and work.
Despite the economic downturn in 2002,
employee contributions, corporate matching
and company sponsorships remained strong.
Through the Employees Community Fund,
our people contributed more than $36 million,
the same level as 2001, in spite of a decline
in employee population. Our worldwide
corporate charitable contributions (cash and
in-kind) totaled more than $52 million.
Company contributions and sponsorship
programs supported more than 1,300 not-forprofit organizations throughout the world.
Going Forward We are managing the near-

term with strong leadership and a focus
on financial strength while we continue to
capture key strategic wins, invest in new
products and services, and build a solid
technology base for our future. We remain
focused on performance, cost management
and on-target investment for long-term
competitiveness. Our balanced aerospace
portfolio, the strength of the Boeing brand
and our business strategy continue to provide
opportunities for long-term profitable growth
far into the 21st century.

“Good corporate governance — in
the truest sense of the term — means
a fierce and abiding commitment to
doing the right thing.”
– Phil Condit

Sound principles of corporate governance are essential to
retaining the trust of key Boeing shareholders. Boeing leadership and management are, first and foremost, dedicated to
integrity in all we do. We expect every Boeing person, as
expressed in our Values, to “always take the high road by
practicing the highest ethical standards….” An active,
informed and independent Boeing Board of Directors plays a
critical role in ensuring the ongoing integrity, transparency and
long-term strength of The Boeing Company.
Boeing maintains a keen focus on corporate governance
and is well regarded in these areas. Recently, concerns over
good corporate governance, financial reporting accuracy and
transparency spawned a host of new regulations and laws.
We are committed to meeting these new requirements and
expect little overall change in our governance policy as we
do so. For example, we already meet most New York Stock
Exchange recommendations and requirements of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act for publicly traded companies, including:
■ Independent nonemployee Board directors
■ Written charters for key Board committees
■ Key Board committees composed of independent directors
■ Audit committee authority for selecting outside auditors
■ Right of Board members to seek outside legal advice
We are dedicated to integrity, transparency and clarity in
our financial reporting. Our financial disclosures are not only
within the current rules — and new rules being discussed —
but they are also well ahead of them. For example, since 1998,
Boeing has reported expenses related to share-based compensation. We were one of only two companies in the S&P 500,
until recently, to recognize this expense in our financial results.
Our heritage includes a long history of independent leadership by the Boeing Board of Directors. For the past 29 years,
independent directors who have never been Boeing employees have made up a majority of the Board. During the last 13
years, while the Board size ranged from 11 to 14 directors, no
more than three current or former Boeing employees served
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on the Board at the same time. Currently, nine of the Board’s
11 directors are independent of the Company.
Our Ethics Program, recognized as a highly successful program throughout industry, communicates the Boeing values
and standards of ethical business conduct to our workforce.
As part of the program, avenues for guidance, reporting
ethical issues or discussing concerns are readily available to
all Boeing people through on-site ethics advisors or toll-free
numbers. Ethics refresher training is developed and administered each year for all of our people. An annual assessment
of compliance risk areas is completed at the enterprise level
and within each business unit.
We initiated an extensive Code of Ethics for employees
more than 25 years ago. To comply with new rules regarding
financial transactions and reporting, we are supplementing the
Code with specific ethical guidelines for our financial people.
The Boeing Board of Directors’ governance guiding principles (summarized on the next page) are published annually
in our proxy statement. The Governance and Nominating
Committee regularly reviews these principles. They also
evaluate board practices at other well-managed companies.
The Board is finalizing a formal Code of Conduct for Board
members that meets SEC requirements regarding the content
of such codes. The Code provides guidance to directors to
help recognize and deal with ethical issues, including:
■ Conflicts of interest that may stem from the Company’s
relationships with third parties
■ Compensation from noncompany sources, gifts or
personal use of company assets
■ Taking unfair advantage of corporate opportunities
■ Confidentiality of information entrusted to them
■ Compliance with laws, rules and regulations regarding fair
dealing, including insider trading laws
■ Reporting of any illegal or unethical behavior
Above all else, we remain committed to good corporate
governance.

Area of Governance

Guiding Principles

Board Size and
Composition

■
■
■
■

Executive Sessions of
Outside Directors

■
■
■

Committees
of the Board

■
■
■
■

The Board of Directors believes that 10 to 15 members is an appropriate size for the Boeing Board.
Principal qualification for a director is the ability to act on behalf of all the shareholders.
A substantial majority of Board members should be independent, nonemployee directors.
The Governance and Nominating Committee annually reviews the appropriate skills and characteristics
required of Board members, considering the current makeup of the Board. They assess such issues
as diversity, age, international expertise and skills such as understanding of manufacturing, finance,
marketing, technology and public policy.
Nonemployee directors meet privately in executive sessions to review CEO performance.
Nonemployee directors review Compensation Committee recommendations concerning compensation
for the employee directors and other senior elected officers of the corporation.
Nonemployee directors meet in executive session, without management being present, as a routinely
scheduled agenda item for every Board meeting.
The standing Boeing Board of Directors committees are Audit, Compensation, Finance, Governance
and Nominating, and Special Programs.
Only nonemployee directors serve on these committees.
Chairpersons and committee members rotate periodically, as appropriate.
During Audit Committee meetings, committee members meet privately with representatives of the
Company’s independent auditors and with the Company vice president responsible for internal audits.

Independent Advice

■

The Board (or with Board approval, a committee of the Board) may seek legal or other expert advice
from a source independent of management, generally with the knowledge of the Chairman and CEO.

CEO Performance
Evaluation

■

Annually, the CEO presents his performance objectives for the coming year to the nonemployee
directors for their approval.
The nonemployee directors then meet privately to discuss the CEO’s current year performance
against his performance objectives.
This performance evaluation is reviewed with the CEO and used by the Compensation Committee
when considering the CEO’s compensation.

■
■

Board Performance
Evaluation

■
■
■

CEO Succession

■
■
■

Director Retirement

■
■

Director Compensation
and Stock Ownership

■

■

To increase the Board’s effectiveness and improve its relationship to management, the Governance
and Nominating Committee evaluates the Board’s performance as a whole.
The evaluation occurs at least every two years and includes a survey of all nonemployee directors.
Survey results are shared with the full Board and management.
CEO selection is one of the most important responsibilities of the Board.
The CEO reports annually to the Governance and Nominating Committee on CEO succession
planning either in the event of a sudden emergency or, longer range, for the CEO’s retirement.
When a succession of the CEO is to occur, this committee identifies and selects the new CEO with
the full participation of the nonemployee directors.
Each nonemployee director must retire at the annual meeting following his or her 72nd birthday.
Directors who change occupations during their Board terms are expected to offer to resign from
the Board. At that time, the Governance and Nominating Committee reviews whether or not it is
appropriate for them to continue Board membership under the new circumstances.
The Governance and Nominating Committee periodically reviews and compares the Board’s
compensation to compensation at peer companies that are considered benchmarks for the
Company’s financial performance.
A significant portion of director compensation is in the form of Boeing stock or stock equivalent units.

Outside Board
Membership

■

Before accepting outside board memberships with for-profit entities, the CEO and other senior
management must seek the approval of the Board or appropriate Board committee.

Confidential Voting

■

All proxy, ballot and voting materials that identify the vote of a specific shareholder on any matter
submitted for a vote of shareholders are kept secret from directors and executive officers of the
Company, except (a) when disclosure is required by applicable law or regulation, (b) when a shareholder expressly requests such disclosure, and (c) in a contested proxy solicitation.
If the shareholder is an employee of the Company or a participant in the Boeing stock fund of one of
the Company’s retirement, savings or employee stock ownership plans, the information will not be
disclosed to management unless clause (a) or (b) above applies.

■
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We are supporting our customers,
improving our competitiveness
and positioning ourselves for the
long term.

Boeing Commercial Airplanes: Running a
great business and supporting our customers

We continue to restructure Boeing Commercial
Airplanes to improve competitiveness and
ensure profitable performance throughout our
business cycles. Despite reducing airplane
production rates by more than 50 percent to
match market demand, we aggressively managed our cost structure during 2002 and
delivered 381 airplanes with solid earnings.
We also helped our customers by rescheduling
future deliveries.
In our 75th year in commercial aviation, we
delivered our 1,000th 757, 1,300th 747 and
100th 717. We also delivered our first 747400ER (Extended Range) passenger and
freighter models and rolled out the 777-300ER
model. Our Commercial Aviation Services
business continued to improve its performance while providing around-the-clock support
to a worldwide fleet of 12,000 Boeing airplanes and 800 operators. The services unit
streamlined work processes to reduce cost
and increase efficiency, and integrated supply
chains with inventory-management services
for improved customer service. We also
acquired full ownership of our joint training
venture with FlightSafety International, which
we renamed “Alteon.”
While order totals were depressed, we won
important new business from a broad cross
section of customers, including a record order
for 100 Next-Generation 737-800s from
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European low-fare carrier Ryanair. Throughout
the year we competed aggressively while
maintaining disciplined pricing in support of
our stakeholders’ long-term interests.
Late in the year, we decided to move forward with our customers and technology
partners to develop a new, super-efficient,
midsized airplane, currently designated as the
Boeing 7E7. The new airplane will fly as fast
and as far as the 777 and 747 and incorporate the advanced technologies identified
during the feasibility study for the Sonic
Cruiser. This decision will shape the future of
the industry and will represent the bulk of our
research-and-development activities. Central
to our product strategy is the belief that people prefer direct, point-to-point flights that
take them — efficiently, safely and affordably —
where and when they want to travel.
Our focus on operating efficiencies continues to drive profitability improvements. Lean
manufacturing applications — including the
use of moving lines — resulted in a four-day
reduction in final assembly flow time for the
737. We vacated and disposed of more than
4.5 million square feet of facilities, and we
streamlined our supplier base by 16 percent.
We also secured labor agreements that
will enhance our competitiveness. We will
continue to move up the value chain in our
operations, resulting in better use of our
assets, improved efficiencies and continued
profitable performance.

Refining our continuous moving line
processes for final
assembly of the
717, 737 and 757,
we plan to extend
these innovations to
the 747, 767 and
777 assembly lines
in 2003.

We are transforming our
business to lead with solid
strength and performance.

The Boeing
Integration Center
demonstrates
how the integrated
battlespace — a
network-centric,
capability-driven
solution — provides
instantaneous,
accurate and protected information
to decision-makers
and soldiers in the
field when they
need it — anytime,
anywhere.

Boeing Integrated Defense Systems:
Innovative solutions and unifying partnerships

Boeing Integrated Defense Systems (IDS) is
poised to lead tomorrow’s transformation
programs by combining exceptional weapons
and aircraft capabilities, intelligence and
surveillance systems, communications architectures and extensive large-scale integration
expertise. Recognized as a top U.S. defense
contractor and a leader in intelligence and
space, IDS revenues increased 9.4 percent
in 2002.
Focusing on network-centric, capabilitydriven solutions and working in partnership
with its customers, Boeing is transforming
business and military operations to address a
rapidly changing world. We won several contract awards in 2002 that are key to the military’s transformation plans and to the
integrated battlespace, a $200 billion
addressable market over the next 10 years.
These awards strengthen our profitable global
leadership position, which promises doubledigit growth. The U.S. Army’s Future Combat
Systems will revolutionize how the Army is
equipped and operated. The Joint Tactical
Radio System and the Family of Advanced
Beyond-Line-of-Sight Terminals will provide
seamless communications and integrated
information flow to armed forces. Key multibillion dollar, multiyear production contracts
signed in 2002 for the C-17 airlifter and the
F-15 tactical fighter will keep those production lines healthy for years to come.

As the lead systems integrator on nationally significant missile defense and homeland
security programs, we are working with both
domestic and foreign partners toward building
a global missile defense system and securing
vital transportation systems. We successfully
helped the Transportation Security Administration meet its Congressional mandate to
ensure 100 percent checked baggage
screening in the nation’s commercial airports
by year-end 2002. Because of our expertise,
we anticipate additional opportunities in the
homeland security addressable market valued
at $80 billion over the next 10 years.
As we maintain our leadership position in
space-related operations, the successful
November launch of Delta IV, the first U.S.developed and -powered rocket in a generation, will be followed in 2003 by the first
Delta IV launch for the U.S. Air Force’s Evolved
Expendable Launch Vehicle program. Also
making its first successful flight in 2002 was
the autonomous X-45 Unmanned Combat
Air Vehicle (UCAV), designed to revolutionize
tactical air warfare.
Boeing and its heritage businesses have
been part of the U.S. space program for more
than 50 years and have played a leading role
in human space flight for more than 40 years.
NASA sets the priorities for the U.S. space
program and, as NASA’s number one contractor, Boeing stands ready to support
NASA’s plans for the future.
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Boeing Capital provides financial
solutions structured for current
market conditions.

Boeing Capital Corporation: Managing
through a difficult near-term environment,
with an eye on the future

Boeing Capital Corporation is a global provider
of financial solutions. A subsidiary of The
Boeing Company, it offers asset-backed lending
and leasing, concentrating on assets that are
critical to the core operations of its customers.
Despite the downturn in commercial
aviation deliveries and its financial impacts,
Boeing Capital’s operating performance continues to be positive. A sluggish U.S. economy throughout 2002 slowed growth in
capital expenditures and the corresponding
growth of the Commercial Financial Services
portfolio. However, the group continues to win
new business by providing creative customer
solutions. The space and defense arm of
Boeing Capital is playing a pivotal role in supporting other Boeing business units such as
structuring the U.S. Air Force’s lease of four
C-40B executive transport aircraft. There is
growing worldwide interest in government
leasing of military transport aircraft, and
Boeing Capital is well positioned to identify
and act on the right opportunities.
Boeing Capital strongly believes in the continuing importance of global air transportation
to the world economy and in the long-term
value of the airplanes it finances. Its business
will continue to evolve through profitable management of the existing portfolio — including
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restructured transactions and placing airplanes, a moderated growth rate and an
increasing global presence. Boeing Capital
continues to refine and enhance its processes
for measuring and predicting risk in the portfolio, and for pricing and structuring new
transactions.
Approximately three-quarters of the business unit’s $11.8 billion portfolio is made up
of commercial airplane leases and loans. But
Boeing Capital is more than just an airplane
financier; the portfolio encompasses multiple
industries and a wide range of capital equipment, including business aircraft, oceangoing
vessels, machine tools, oil and gas exploration
and production equipment, and a wide variety
of other industrial and manufacturing equipment. Boeing Capital has customers in 37
countries on six continents.
Boeing Capital is divided into three
operating groups: Aircraft Financial Services,
Commercial Financial Services and Space
and Defense Financial Services. Each group
offers the strength of the Boeing brand, along
with the uncommon equipment knowledge,
experience and creativity of a strong team of
financing professionals.
Boeing Capital is a stable, profitable business in its own right, as well as a valuable
resource to Boeing business units. As a
result, it continues to be a vital part of the
growth and transformation of Boeing.

Boeing Capital
provides creative
financing solutions
for customers.
Embry-Riddle
Aeronautical
University will
lease 35 Diamond
DA20-C1 “Falcon”
trainer aircraft from
Boeing Capital to
provide introductory
flight training to
the next generation
of U.S. Air Force
pilots — cadets and
others at the U.S. Air
Force Academy in
Colorado.

Initial contracts and stakeholder
teams are defining our future air
traffic system requirements.

In our newly completed laboratory
facilities, we are
demonstrating the
technologies that
will make up the
future ATM system.
We can show ATM
system benefits and
capabilities before
decisions about
long-term investments in the air
traffic system infrastructure are made.

Boeing Air Traffic Management: Working
together to create a global air system that
works for everyone

The air transport industry currently moves
1.8 billion passengers and 40 percent by
value of the world’s manufactured goods
each year. Both passenger traffic and cargo
traffic levels are expected to grow dramatically over the next 20 years. The stress
placed on the global air transportation system
by this volume of traffic underscores the need
for dramatically improving air traffic systems
throughout the world.
Boeing established its Air Traffic Management (ATM) unit in November 2000 to help
achieve this vision. Our goals are to enhance
safety, security, affordability and accessibility for
all users, while reducing delays and congestion
and supporting existing air traffic initiatives
around the globe.
We are working closely with air system
stakeholders to determine how best to
develop this new system. The “Working
Together” process began when 39 air system
stakeholders from across North America —
including airlines, cargo carriers, military interests, ground-based personnel, the general
aviation community and others — came
together to create a list of over 170 specific
performance requirements for a new air transportation system. The team distilled those
requirements into a set of 16 key cornerstones for air system performance. We also

initiated the “Working Together” process with
stakeholders in Europe and Asia with the goal
of generating a global set of common performance objectives.
Boeing won several important contracts in
2002, including the Global Communications,
Navigation and Surveillance System for
improvements to the National Airspace
System; a NASA contract for work on the
Virtual Airspace Modeling and Simulation
project; and the first ATM contract in Asia,
with the Civil Aviation Authority of China to
provide modeling and simulation expertise to
Beijing International Airport in preparation for
the 2008 Olympics. ATM also reached a significant agreement with Luchtverkeersleiding
Nederland (LVNL), the air traffic control organization of The Netherlands, to develop a
range of concepts addressing safety, efficiency and environmental concerns in the
Dutch air transportation system.
We established a permanent data collection presence on Connexion One, Connexion
by Boeing’s specially equipped Boeing 737,
which will be used to demonstrate the feasibility of adding secure broadband and narrowband communications capabilities to the
National Airspace System.
Boeing also completed the construction of
integrated lab facilities in McLean, Virginia,
and Bellevue, Washington, and opened offices
in Brussels and Hong Kong to facilitate closer
contact with customers in Europe and Asia.
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Phantom Works acts as a catalyst
for innovation and technology
transfer across the enterprise.

Boeing Phantom Works: Focus on the
future applied to the present

As our advanced research-and-development
unit, Phantom Works is the catalyst for innovation for the Boeing enterprise. Phantom Works
collaborates with our business units — as well
as with our external customers and suppliers,
universities and other R&D agencies — to provide a broad base of innovative, affordable
technologies not only for developing future
systems and services but also for improving
current ones.
Some key new systems programs that
Phantom Works helped capture in 2002
include the Future Combat System, Phase II
of the Orbital Express servicing satellite, the
Unmanned Combat Armed Rotorcraft, the
HyFly hypersonic missile demonstrator, X-45B
Unmanned Combat Air Vehicle development,
the X-37 Orbital Flight Demonstrator and the
structurally integrated X-band array.
We also successfully executed on existing
advanced systems programs. Highlights
include the successful first flights of the two
X-45A Unmanned Combat Air Vehicle prototypes; successful rotor spin testing of the
Canard Rotor/Wing concept; completion of
composite wings for the X-37 reusable space
plane; and the first flight of the Active
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Aeroelastic Wing. These new and existing
programs will ultimately be transitioned into the
business units to help improve their revenues.
In collaboration with our business units,
Phantom Works also helps transition innovative technologies into current products, significantly reducing cycle times and cost while
improving quality, performance and the bottom
lines for the business units. In 2002, such
technologies included automated precision
drilling techniques, selective laser sintering,
new composite joining methods, open-system
avionics and more. While some of these
technologies are developed within Phantom
Works, many are discovered through global
R&D initiatives. Such initiatives include our
investments in venture capital funds and relationships with universities, companies and
government R&D agencies around the world.
Phantom Works people are distributed
across the enterprise. As a result, they can
better support the needs of the business
units, and they can draw from the best of
Boeing and all their global connections to
define totally new system and system-ofsystems solutions. Such solutions will help
define the future of aerospace and establish
Boeing as the global industry leader.

Phantom Works
develops innovative
systems and systemof-systems solutions
such as the Canard
Rotor/Wing concept,
which completed
spin rotor testing
in 2002 and is
scheduled for flight
testing in 2003.

Connexion by Boeing is gaining
market momentum as we
demonstrate commercial service.
SM

The Enterprise
Operations Center in
Irvine, California, is
the operational heart
of the Connexion
by Boeing service.
The Center tracks
service-equipped
aircraft, monitoring
every link in the
system.

Connexion by Boeing: Focus on anytime,
anywhere connectivity

Connexion by Boeing is a mobile information
services provider bringing high-speed, twoway connectivity to aircraft in flight. The
service will revolutionize the way people work,
communicate, entertain themselves and relax
while mobile.
An example of how Boeing is leveraging
its strengths to move into new services and
markets, Connexion by Boeing is not just an
airborne communications service — it’s a comprehensive Internet-protocol-based enterprise.
Marketing, consumer sales, direct advertising,
data mining, network operations, billing, customer care, spares management, customer
service, trouble-ticketing and troubleshooting
are all Internet-based operations — and all
provide potential revenue or cost-saving
opportunities. Applying our expertise in
space, communications networks, aircraft,
systems integration and customer focus, we
are opening a potentially lucrative new frontier
that is based on core Boeing strengths.
Our business strategy for this unique
broadband service is first to deploy it to commercial airplanes and to operators of executive jets in the private and public sectors, then
to e-enable the airplane for simplification and
operational efficiency, and finally to grow the
business into other mobile and remote communications markets.

In 2002, we completed the first commercial airline installation, on a Lufthansa Airlines
Boeing 747-400, which began a three-month
service demonstration in January 2003.
British Airways began a demonstration in
February 2003 on trans-Atlantic routes
aboard a Boeing 747-400. Japan Airlines and
Scandinavian Air System also announced
plans to equip 10 and 11 long-range aircraft,
respectively, both beginning in 2004.
The U.S. Federal Aviation Administration
certified a Connexion by Boeing system
aboard a Boeing 737-400, the first ever for an
in-flight broadband information system. We
transmitted final documentation required for
certification from Connexion One (our demonstrator and research airplane) from 30,000
feet above New Mexico. With the live transmission of a Boeing investor conference early
in the year, we gave our first public demonstration of the two-way broadband videoteleconferencing capability of the system. In
May, we demonstrated three-way in-flight
videoconferencing for the FAA.
An intensive Connexion “Working Together”
process with 15 major airlines on four
continents is contributing significantly to a
common vision for passenger and operator
benefits, and is ensuring that the system can
be integrated seamlessly into airline fleets.
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Our goal is to enable Boeing
business units to concentrate
on profitable growth.

Boeing Shared Services Group: Adding
value to the bottom line

Operating 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
Boeing Shared Services Group is a diverse,
global organization of more than 16,000 employees in 51 cities and seven countries. Our
mission is to provide common infrastructure and
services in an innovative and effective manner
to give Boeing a competitive advantage.
Shared Services delivers bottom-line
results by improving e-enabling technologies,
encouraging innovation, leveraging economies
of scale and creating customer-focused
solutions. Since 1998, Shared Services has
reduced the cost structure of Boeing by more
than $1 billion.
Enterprisewide services range from computing and network operations, e-commerce,
and information-management security to
services including transportation, facilities,
information distribution and nonproduction
purchasing. The group also directs safety,
health and environmental planning; security
and fire protection; the hiring, training, and
benefits management of the Boeing workforce; travel services; and real estate portfolio
management. Further, Shared Services has
enterprisewide responsibility for disaster
preparation and response.
We continued technology investment in 2002
to enhance our ability to access information in
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an efficient manner. This included deploying
and enhancing a tool to improve employee
productivity by filtering unwanted e-mails to
our people, equating to nearly $2 million of
productivity increase.
Working in partnership with business units
and suppliers, we implemented the ExostarSM
online auction system for procurement transactions. Boeing business units realized an
average savings of 32 percent over traditional
negotiation techniques from hundreds of
electronic auctions.
Last year, a new Web-based staffing
system created a seamless hiring process,
helping Boeing to attract and acquire the best
talent and ensuring that our hiring practices
comply with government requirements.
As a “lean business incubator,” Shared
Services piloted a number of “virtual work”
programs. One of these resulted in a 50percent reduction in the footprint of the pilot
organization and streamlined business
processes for hundreds of employees. This
successful pilot will soon be deployed to
other organizations.
By providing the best value in services,
improving the customer experience and reducing costs, Shared Services contributes
to the Boeing strategy by running healthy
core businesses, leveraging core strengths
and capturing new business.

Using Shared
Services-enabled
virtual design tools,
a thrust chamber
development team
condensed a threeyear program to
months and a threemonth contracting
process to days,
while reducing
product cost from
$1.5 million to
$50,000 each.
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Revenues

Net Earnings*

Earnings Per Share*

Cumulative Free Cash Flow†

dollars in billions

dollars in billions

dollars

dollars in billions

56.2

16.1

3.41

58.2

58.0

2.8

54.1
51.3

2.87
2.3

12.8

2.3
2.49

2.1

2.44
10.0

1.1
1.15

5.1

0.3

98

99

00

01

02

98

99

00

01

02

98

99

00

01

02

98

99

00

01

Current year free cash flow
generated
Prior cumulative free cash flow
generated since 1998

* Before cumulative effect of accounting change.
† Free cash flow is a non-GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) measure that equals net cash provided by operating

activities less net additions of property, plant and equipment. Others using the term may calculate free cash flow differently.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Dollars in millions except per share data)

2002

2001

2000

$54,069

$58,198

$51,321

45,499

48,778

43,712

8,570

9,420

7,609

(128)

93

64

General and administrative expense

2,534

2,389

2,335

Research and development expense

1,639

1,936

1,441

44

21

34

447

378

316

(2)

935

3,868

3,896

3,058

42

318

386

(730)

(650)

(445)

3,180

3,564

2,999

861

738

871

2,319

2,826

2,128

Year Ended December 31,

Sales and other operating revenues
Cost of products and services
Income/(loss) from operating investments, net

557

In-process research and development expense
Gain on dispositions, net
Share-based plans expense
Impact of September 11, 2001, charges/(recoveries)
Earnings from operations
Other income/(expense), net
Interest and debt expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes
Net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change

(1,827)

1

Net earnings

$«««««492

$««2,827

$««2,128

Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change

$««««2.90

$««««3.46

$««««2.48

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax

(2.28)

Basic earnings per share

$««««0.62

$««««3.46

$««««2.48

Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change

$««««2.87

$««««3.41

$««««2.44

$««««3.41

$««««2.44

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Diluted earnings per share

(2.26)
$««««0.61

See notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 59 – 83.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(Dollars in millions except per share data)

December 31,

2002

2001

Assets
$««2,333

$«««««633

Accounts receivable

5,007

5,156

Current portion of customer and commercial financing

1,289

1,053

Deferred income taxes

2,042

2,444

Inventories, net of advances, progress billings and reserves

6,184

7,559

16,855

16,845

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

10,922

9,345

Property, plant and equipment, net

8,765

8,459

Goodwill

2,760

5,127

Other acquired intangibles, net

1,128

1,320

Prepaid pension expense

6,671

5,838

Deferred income taxes

2,272

Customer and commercial financing, net

Other assets

2,969

2,044

$52,342

$48,978

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
$13,739

$14,237

Advances in excess of related costs

3,123

4,021

Income taxes payable

1,134

909

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt

1,814

1,399

19,810

20,566

Accrued retiree health care

5,434

5,367

Accrued pension plan liability

6,271

555

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Total current liabilities

177

Deferred income taxes

542

622

12,589

10,866

Shares issued – 1,011,870,159 and 1,011,870,159

5,059

5,059

Additional paid-in capital

2,141

1,975

Treasury shares, at cost – 171,834,950 and 174,289,720

(8,397)

(8,509)

14,262

14,340

(4,045)

(485)

(1,324)

(1,552)

7,696

10,825

$52,342

$48,978

Deferred lease income
Long-term debt
Shareholders’ equity:
Common shares, par value $5.00 – 1,200,000,000 shares authorized;

Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

(3)

Unearned compensation
ShareValue Trust shares – 40,373,809 and 39,691,015
Total shareholders’ equity
See notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 59 – 83.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in millions)

Year ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

$««««492

$«2,827

$«2,128

Cash flows – operating activities:
Net earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Non-cash items:
1,827

(1)

447

378

316

1,409

1,441

1,317

Amortization of goodwill and intangibles

88

302

162

Amortization of debt discount/premium and issuance costs

12

9

1

(526)

(802)

(355)

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Share-based plans expense
Depreciation

Pension income

557

In-process research and development expense
Non-cash investment/asset impairment charges
Other non-cash charges and credits, net
Customer and commercial financing valuation provision
Gain on dispositions, net

357

438

(17)
219

42

13

(44)

(21)

(34)

(155)

342

(1,359)

1,510

(27)

978

Changes in assets and liabilities –
100

Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories, net of advances, progress billings and reserves
Accounts payable and other liabilities

(823)

300

127

Advances in excess of related costs

(898)

504

1,387

Income taxes payable and deferred

905

(762)

726

(80)

622

Deferred lease income
Prepaid pension expense

(340)

(19)

(30)

(1,494)

Goodwill and other acquired intangibles
Accrued retiree health care

67

227

280

Other

(75)

(412)

(88)

4,375

3,894

6,226

(3,090)

(5,073)

(2,571)

900

1,297

1,433

(1,001)

(1,189)

(965)
(5,727)

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows – investing activities:
Customer financing and properties on lease, additions
Customer financing and properties on lease, reductions
Property, plant and equipment, net additions

(22)

(22)

Proceeds from dispositions

157

152

169

Contributions for investments

(505)

(96)

(320)

Proceeds from investments

140

142

70

(3,421)

(4,789)

(7,911)

2,687

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows – financing activities:
New borrowings

2,814

4,567

Debt repayments

(1,564)

(1,129)

(621)

(2,417)

(2,357)

Common shares purchased
Stock options exercised, other
Dividends paid
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

67

79

136

(571)

(582)

(504)

746

518

(659)

1,700

(377)

(2,344)

633

1,010

3,354

$«2,333

$««««633

$«1,010

See notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 59 – 83.
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(Dollars in millions)

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Treasury
Stock

Balance January 1, 2000

$«1,684

$«(4,161)

Share-based compensation

316

Tax benefit related to share-based plans

160

ShareValue Trust market value adjustment

991

Accumulated
Other
ShareValue Comprehensive
Trust
Income

$«(1,601)

$«««««««««6

Treasury shares issued for share-based plans, net

(264)

Performance shares converted to deferred stock units

(991)

(194)

297
2,128

Net earnings
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $3
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of $7

ShareValue Trust market value adjustment

$«2,693

(4)

(12)

(12)

$«(6,221)

$«(2,592)

$««««««««(2)

(72)

(577)

Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of $9
Loss on derivative instruments, net of tax of $61

Treasury shares issued for share-based plans, net

(344)

(344)

(16)

(16)

(102)

(102)

(21)

Currency translation adjustment

ShareValue Trust market value adjustment

$ «2,827

129

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $204

Tax benefit related to share-based plans

2,827

1,040
(2,417)

Cash dividends declared ($0.68 per share)

Share-based compensation

$««2,120

16
(1,040)

Net earnings

Balance December 31, 2001

8
$«12,090

378

Treasury shares acquired
Treasury shares issued for share-based plans, net

(4)
8

Currency translation adjustment

Tax benefit related to share-based plans

$««2,128

(525)

Cash dividends declared ($0.56 per share)

Share-based compensation

$«10,487

(2,357)

Treasury shares acquired

Balance December 31, 2000

Retained Comprehensive
Earnings
Income

$«1,975

$«(8,509)

$«(1,552)

$««««(485)

(21)
$«14,340

$««2,344

492

$««««492

447
8
(228)
(61)

228
112

Net earnings
Cash dividends declared ($0.68 per share)

(570)

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $2,084

(3,663)

(3,663)

25

25

Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net earnings,
net of tax of $(15)
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of $2
Gain on derivative instruments, net of tax of $(37)
Currency translation adjustment
Balance December 31, 2002

(3)

(3)

61

61

20
$2,141

$(8,397)

$(1,324)

$(4,045)

20
$14,262

$(3,068)

See notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 59 – 83.

The Company’s issued common shares were 1,011,870,159 as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. The par value of these shares was $5,059
for the same periods. Treasury shares as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were 171,834,950; 174,289,720 and 136,385,222. There were no
treasury shares acquired for the year ended December 31, 2002. Treasury shares acquired for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, were
40,734,500 and 41,782,234. Treasury shares issued for share-based plans for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were 2,454,770;
2,830,002 and 7,753,909. ShareValue Trust shares as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were 40,373,809; 39,691,015 and 39,156,280.
ShareValue Trust shares acquired from dividend reinvestment were 682,794; 534,734 and 459,991 for the same periods. Unearned compensation
was $0, $(3) and $(7) as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. The changes in unearned compensation for the same periods were $3, $4, and $5,
attributable to amortization and forfeitures.
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Forward-Looking Information is Subject
to Risk and Uncertainty

Critical Accounting Policies and Standards Issued and
Not Yet Implemented

Certain statements in this report may constitute “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Words such as “expects,” “intends,”
“plans,” “projects,” “believes,” “estimates,” and similar expressions are used to identify these forward-looking statements.
These statements are not guarantees of future performance and
involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to
predict. Forward-looking statements are based upon assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate.
Actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is
expressed or forecasted in these forward-looking statements. As
a result, these statements speak only as of the date they were
made and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. Our actual results
and future trends may differ materially depending on a variety of
factors, including the continued operation, viability and growth of
major airline customers and non-airline customers (such as the
U.S. Government); adverse developments in the value of collateral securing customer and other financings; the occurrence of
any significant collective bargaining labor dispute; the
Company’s successful execution of internal performance plans,
price escalation, production rate increases and decreases
(including any reduction in or termination of an aircraft product),
acquisition and divestiture plans, and other cost-reduction and
productivity efforts; charges from any future SFAS No. 142
review; an adverse development in rating agency credit ratings
or assessments; the actual outcomes of certain pending sales
campaigns and U.S. and foreign government procurement activities, including the timing of procurement of tankers by the U.S.
Department of Defense; the cyclical nature of some of the
Company’s businesses; unanticipated financial market changes
which may impact pension plan assumptions; domestic and
international competition in the defense, space and commercial
areas; continued integration of acquired businesses; performance issues with key suppliers, subcontractors and customers;
factors that could result in significant and prolonged disruption
to air travel worldwide (including future terrorist attacks); any
additional impacts from the attacks of September 11, 2001;
global trade policies; worldwide political stability; domestic and
international economic conditions; price escalation; the outcome
of political and legal processes, including uncertainty regarding
government funding of certain programs; changing priorities or
reductions in the U.S. Government or foreign government
defense and space budgets; termination of government or commercial contracts due to unilateral government or customer
action or failure to perform; legal, financial and governmental
risks related to international transactions; legal proceedings; tax
settlements with the IRS; and other economic, political and technological risks and uncertainties. Additional information regarding
these factors is contained in the Company’s SEC filings, including, without limitation, the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the Forms
10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2002, June 30, 2002
and September 30, 2002.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies
The Company’s primary operating segments are Commercial
Airplanes, Military Aircraft and Missile Systems, Space and
Communications, and Boeing Capital Corporation (BCC), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The following is a
summary of the Company’s most critical accounting policies.
Contract accounting Contract accounting is used predominantly by the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems and the Space
and Communications segments. The majority of the business
conducted in these segments is performed under contracts for
the U.S. Government and foreign governments that extend over
a number of years.
The process to estimate the total contract cost-revenue relationship results in the development of gross margin and cost of
sales percentages. These percentages are utilized in the recognition of earnings and are significant factors in contract accounting. The amount reported as cost of sales is determined by
applying the estimated cost of sales percentages to the amount
of revenue recognized for each contract.
Total contract revenue estimates are based on the negotiated
contract price modified by assumptions regarding contract
options, change orders, incentive and award provisions associated with technical performance, and contract terms that provide for the adjustment of prices in the event of variations from
projected inflationary trends.
Total contract cost estimates are based in a large part on historical performance trends, business base and other economic projections, and information provided by suppliers. Factors that
influence these estimates include technical and schedule risk,
internal and subcontractor performance trends, business volume
assumptions, asset utilization, anticipated labor agreements, and
inflationary trends.
Revenues under contracts with fixed prices are generally recognized as deliveries are made. For certain fixed-price contracts
that require substantial performance over an extended period
before deliveries begin, revenues are recorded based on the
attainment of performance milestones. Revenues under contracts with terms that reimburse for costs incurred plus an
agreed upon profit are recorded as costs are incurred. Contracts
may contain provisions to earn incentive and award fees if targets are achieved. Incentive and award fees that can be reasonably estimated are recorded over the performance period of the
contract. Incentive and award fees that cannot be reasonably
estimated are recorded when awarded.
The development of gross margin and cost of sales percentages
involves procedures and personnel in all areas of the Company
that provide financial or production information on the status of
contracts. This contract management process produces the
Company’s best estimate of contract cost and contract revenue.
Estimates of each significant contract’s cost and revenue are
reviewed and reassessed quarterly. Changes in these estimates
result in recognition of cumulative adjustments to the contract
profit in the period in which changes are made.
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The experience over the past two years has resulted in a range
of plus or minus 0.5% for the combined gross margin of all contracts in the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems and the Space
and Communications segments. If combined gross margin for all
contracts in the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems and the
Space and Communications segments for all of 2002 had been
estimated to be higher or lower by 0.5% it would have increased
or decreased income for the year by approximately $125 million.

estimated cost of sales percentage for the total remaining program to the amount of revenue recognized for the quarter.
Because of the higher unit production costs experienced at the
beginning of a new airplane program (known as the learning
curve effect), the actual costs incurred for production of the early
units in the program will exceed the amount reported as cost of
sales for those units. This difference known as deferred production
costs is included in inventory along with unamortized tooling costs.

Program accounting The Company uses program accounting
for its 7-series commercial airplane programs. Program accounting is a method of accounting for the costs of certain products
manufactured for delivery under production type contracts where
profitability is realized over multiple contracts and years. Under
program accounting, inventoriable production costs (including
overhead), program tooling costs and warranty costs are accumulated and charged to revenue by program instead of by
individual units or contracts. A program consists of the estimated number of units (accounting quantity) of a product to be
produced in a continuing, long-term production effort for delivery
under existing and anticipated contracts. To establish the
relationship of revenue to cost of sales, program accounting
requires estimates of (a) the number of units to be produced and
sold in a program, (b) the period over which the units can reasonably be expected to be produced, and (c) their expected
selling prices, production costs, program tooling, and warranty
costs for the total program.

The experience of the last two years, with all programs being
relatively mature, has been that estimate changes due to model
mix, escalation, cost performance, and accounting quantity
increases have resulted in a range of plus or minus 0.5% for the
combined gross margin of all commercial airplane programs.
If combined gross margin for all commercial airplane programs
for all of 2002 had been estimated to be higher or lower by
0.5% it would have increased or decreased income for the year
by approximately $122 million.

The reliance on estimates in the use of program accounting
requires the demonstrated ability to reliably estimate the costrevenue relationship for the defined program accounting quantity.
The factors that must be estimated include selling price, labor
and employee benefit costs, material costs, procured parts and
major component costs, and overhead costs. To meet this
requirement the Company employs a rigorous estimating
process that is reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis.
Changes in estimate are recognized on a prospective basis.
Underlying all estimates used for program accounting is the
assumed market and the corresponding production rates. The
program accounting quantity is established based upon the
assumed market. The total program revenue is determined by
estimating the model mix and sales price for all unsold units
within the accounting quantity added together with the revenue
for all undelivered units under contract. The sales prices for all
undelivered units within the accounting quantity include an escalation adjustment that is based on projected escalation rates.
Cost estimates are based in a large part on historical performance trends, business base and other economic projections,
and information provided by suppliers. Factors that influence
these estimates include production rates, internal and subcontractor performance trends, asset utilization, anticipated labor
agreements, and inflationary trends.
The Company recognizes revenue for commercial airplanes
when a unit is completed and accepted by the customer. The
revenue recognized is the price negotiated with the customer
including special features adjusted by an escalation formula. The
amount reported as cost of sales is determined by applying the
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Aircraft valuation
Used aircraft under trade-in agreements The Company enters
into certain trade-in agreements to purchase used aircraft from
customers at a specific price at a future point in time when those
customers purchase new aircraft from the Company. In the
event the Company accepts an aircraft under a trade-in agreement, the aircraft purchased by the Company serves as collateral
to offset amounts paid by the Company to the customer.
Obligations recorded from trade-in aircraft agreements are
measured as the difference between gross amounts payable to
customers and the estimated fair value of the collateral. The fair
value of collateral is determined using a process based on the
net present value of expected future cash flows from the trade-in
aircraft, assuming the most likely market placement of the aircraft. The first step in this process uses the Company’s assessment of the market for each trade-in aircraft, which in most
instances begins years before the return of the aircraft. There are
several possible markets to which the Company continually pursues opportunities to place used aircraft. These markets include,
but are not limited to, (1) the resale market, which could potentially include the cost of long-term storage, (2) the leasing market,
with the potential for refurbishment costs to meet the leasing
customer’s requirements, or (3) the scrap market. Collateral valuation varies significantly depending on which market the
Company determines is most likely for each aircraft. On a quarterly basis, the Company updates its valuation analysis based on
the actual activities associated with placing each aircraft into a
market. This quarterly collateral valuation process yields results
that are typically lower than residual value estimates by independent sources and tends to more accurately reflect results
upon the actual placement of the aircraft.
Based on the best market information available at the time, the
Company deemed it probable that it would be obligated to perform on trade-in agreements with gross amounts payable to
customers totaling $1,370 million and $1,340 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Accounts payable
and other liabilities included $156 million and $189 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, which represents the
trade-in aircraft exposure related to these trade-in agreements.

Using a measurement date of December 31, 2002, had the
estimate of collateral value used to calculate its obligation related
to trade-in agreements been 10% higher or lower than the
Company’s actual assessment, accounts payable and other
liabilities would have decreased or increased by approximately
$121 million. The Company continually updates its assessment
of the likelihood of its trade-in aircraft purchase obligations
and continues to monitor all these obligations for adverse
developments.

A specific receivable is reviewed for impairment when, based on
current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect amounts due according to the contractual terms of the receivable agreement. Factors considered in
assessing uncollectibility include a customer’s extended delinquency, requests for restructuring and filing for bankruptcy. A
specific impairment allowance is provided based on the difference between the carrying value of the receivable and the estimated fair value of the related collateral.

Asset valuation for equipment under operating lease, held for
re-lease and collateral on receivables The fair value of owned
assets (equipment under operating leases and assets held for
re-lease) and collateral on receivables is periodically assessed to
determine if the fair value is less than the carrying value.
Differences between carrying value and fair value are considered
in determining the allowance for losses on receivables and, in
certain circumstances, recorded as impairment for owned assets.

The Company reviews the adequacy of the general valuation
allowance attributable to the remaining pool of receivables by
assessing both the collateral exposure and the applicable default
rate. Collateral exposure for a particular receivable is the excess
of the carrying value over the applicable collateral value of the
related asset. A receivable with an estimated collateral value in
excess of the carrying value is considered to have no collateral
exposure. The applicable default rate is determined using two
components: customer credit ratings and weighted-average
remaining portfolio term. Credit ratings are identified for each
customer in the portfolio. Customer credit ratings are updated
based on current rating agency information or the Company’s
best estimates.

The Company uses the average published value from multiple
sources based on the type and age of the aircraft to determine
the fair value of aircraft. Under certain circumstances, the
Company applies judgment based on the attributes of the specific aircraft to determine fair value, usually when the features or
utilization of the aircraft varies significantly from the more generic
aircraft attributes covered by outside publications.
Impairment review for equipment under operating leases and
held for re-lease The Company reviews these assets for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of these assets may not be recoverable. An asset under
operating lease or held for re-lease is considered impaired when
the expected undiscounted cash flow over the remaining useful
life is less than the book value. Various assumptions are used
when determining the expected undiscounted cash flow. These
assumptions include lease rates, lease term(s), periods in which
the asset may be held in preparation for a follow-on lease, maintenance costs, remarketing costs and the life of the asset. The
determination of expected lease rates is generally based on outside publications. The Company uses historical information and
current economic trends to determine the remaining assumptions. When impairment is indicated for an asset, the amount of
impairment loss is the excess of carrying value over fair value.
The Company estimates that had the fair value of such assets
deemed impaired during 2002 been 10% higher or lower at the
time each specific impairment had been taken, the impairment
expense would have decreased or increased by approximately
$6 million. The Company is unable to predict the magnitude of
any future impairments.
Allowance for losses on receivables The allowance for losses on
receivables (valuation allowance) is a valuation account used to
provide for potential impairment of receivables on the balance
sheet. The balance is an accounting estimate of probable but
unconfirmed losses in the receivable portfolio. The valuation
allowance relates to two components of receivables: (a) specifically identified receivables that are evaluated individually for
impairment, and (b) pools of receivables that are evaluated for
impairment.

For each credit rating category, the collateral exposure is multiplied
by an applicable historical default rate, yielding a credit-adjusted
collateral exposure. Historical default rates are published by
Standard & Poor’s reflecting both the customer credit rating and
the weighted-average remaining portfolio term. The sum of the
credit-adjusted collateral exposures generates an initial estimate
of the general valuation allowance. In recognition of the uncertainty of the ultimate loss experience and relatively long duration
of the portfolio, a range of reasonably possible outcomes of the
portfolio’s credit-adjusted collateral exposure is calculated by
varying the applicable default rate by approximately plus and
minus 15%. The valuation allowance recorded represents the
best estimate within the resulting range of credit-adjusted collateral exposure, factoring in considerations of risk of individual
credits, current and projected economic and political conditions,
and prior loss experience.
The resulting range of the credit-adjusted collateral exposure
as of December 31, 2002, was approximately $280 million to
$355 million. The Company adjusted the valuation allowance to
$342 million at December 31, 2002.
Goodwill impairment The Company accounts for its goodwill
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. This statement
requires an impairment-only approach to accounting for goodwill. Because the composition of the Company has changed
significantly due to various acquisitions, goodwill constitutes a
significant portion of the Company’s long-term assets. As a
result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company recorded
a pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $2,410 million during
the first quarter of 2002.
The SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment model is a two-step
process. First, it requires a comparison of the book value of net
assets to the fair value of the related operations that have goodwill assigned to them. If the fair value is determined to be less
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than book value, a second step is performed to compute the
amount of the impairment. In this process, a fair value for goodwill is estimated, based in part on the fair value of the operations
used in the first step, and is compared to its carrying value. The
shortfall of the fair value below carrying value represents the
amount of goodwill impairment. SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill
to be tested for impairment annually at the same time every year,
and when an event occurs or circumstances change such that it
is reasonably possible that an impairment may exist. The
Company selected April 1 as its annual testing date.
The Company estimates the fair values of the related operations
using discounted cash flows. The forecasts of future cash flows
are based on the Company’s best estimate of future revenues
and operating costs, based primarily on existing firm orders,
expected future orders, contracts with suppliers, labor agreements, and general market conditions, and are subject to review
and approval by senior management and the Board of Directors.
Changes in these forecasts could cause a particular operating
group to either pass or fail the first step in the SFAS No. 142
goodwill impairment model, which could significantly change the
amount of impairment recorded.
The cash flow forecasts are adjusted by an appropriate discount
rate derived from the Company’s market capitalization plus a
suitable control premium at the date of evaluation. Therefore,
changes in the stock price will also affect the amount of impairment recorded. At the date of the previous impairment, a 10%
increase in the value of Boeing common stock would have
reduced the impairment charge recorded in the first quarter of
2002 by approximately $190 million. A 10% decrease in the
value of Boeing common stock would have increased the
impairment charge by approximately $160 million.
Postretirement plans The Company sponsors various pension
plans covering substantially all employees. The Company also
provides postretirement benefit plans other than pensions, consisting principally of health care coverage, to eligible retirees and
qualifying dependents. The liabilities and annual income or
expense of the Company’s pension and other postretirement
plans are determined using methodologies that involve several
actuarial assumptions, the most significant of which are the discount rate, the long-term rate of asset return, and medical trend
(rate of growth for medical costs). Not all net periodic pension
income or expense is recognized in net earnings in the year
incurred because it is allocated to production as product costs,
and a portion remains in inventory at the end of a reporting period.
The Company uses a discount rate that is based on a point-intime estimate as of the September 30 measurement date. This
rate is determined based on a review of long-term, high quality
corporate bonds as of the measurement date and use of models
that match projected benefit payments of the Company’s major
United States pension and other postretirement plans to
coupons and maturities from high quality bonds. A 25 basis
point increase in the discount rate would decrease the 2002
pension and other postretirement liabilities by approximately
$1,000 million (3%) and $230 million (3%), respectively, and
decrease the 2002 net periodic pension and other postretirement expense by approximately $16 million and $11 million,
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respectively. A 25 basis point decrease in the discount rate
would increase the 2002 pension and other postretirement liabilities by approximately $1,250 million (3.5%) and $250 million
(3.5%), respectively, and increase the 2002 net periodic pension
and other postretirement expense by approximately $18 million
and $13 million, respectively.
Net periodic pension costs include an underlying expected longterm rate of asset return. In developing this assumption, the
Company looks at a number of factors: a review of asset class
return by several of the Company’s trust fund investment advisors, long-term inflation assumptions, and long-term historical
returns for the Company’s plans. The expected long-term rate of
asset return is based on a diversified portfolio including domestic
and international equities, fixed income, real estate, private equities and uncorrelated assets. Pension income or expense is
especially sensitive to changes in the long-term rate of asset
return. An increase or decrease of 25 basis points in the
expected long-term rate of asset return would have increased or
decreased 2002 pension income by approximately $95 million.
The 2002 postretirement benefit obligation for non-pension plans
reflects a significant increase in medical trend. Recent losses due
to higher-than-expected increases in medical claims costs have
created an unrecognized loss in 2002. The Company increased
its short-term medical trend for 2003 to reflect the revised
expectations of continued cost increases in the next few years.
Standards Issued and Not Yet Implemented
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations, which is effective January 1, 2003. This standard
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
the associated retirement costs. The Company has determined
that the implementation of this standard will not have a material
effect on its financial statements.
In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. This standard
requires costs associated with exit or disposal activities to be
recognized when they are incurred. The requirements of SFAS
No. 146 apply prospectively to activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, and as such, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the impact of adopting these new rules until and
unless it undertakes relevant activities in future periods.
In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45 (FIN
45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of the Indebtedness
of Others, which clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies, relating to a guarantor’s accounting for and disclosures of certain guarantees issued. FIN 45
requires enhanced disclosures for certain guarantees. It also will
require certain guarantees that are issued or modified after
December 31, 2002, including certain third-party guarantees, to
be initially recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. For guarantees issued on or before December 31, 2002, liabilities are
recorded when and if payments become probable and
estimable. The Company expects FIN 45 to have the general

effect of delaying recognition for a portion of the revenue for
product sales that are accompanied by certain third-party
guarantees. The financial statement recognition provisions are
effective prospectively, and the Company cannot reasonably
estimate the impact of adopting FIN 45 until guarantees are
issued or modified in future periods, at which time their results
will be initially reported in the financial statements. See OffBalance Sheet Arrangements discussion.
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which clarifies the
application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated
Financial Statements, relating to consolidation of certain entities.
First, FIN 46 will require identification of the Company’s participation in variable interests entities (VIE), which are defined as
entities with a level of invested equity that is not sufficient to
fund future activities to permit them to operate on a stand alone
basis, or whose equity holders lack certain characteristics of a
controlling financial interest. For entities identified as VIE, FIN 46
sets forth a model to evaluate potential consolidation based on
an assessment of which party to the VIE, if any, bears a majority
of the exposure to its expected losses, or stands to gain from a
majority of its expected returns. FIN 46 also sets forth certain
disclosures regarding interests in VIE that are deemed significant,
even if consolidation is not required. The Company is currently
assessing the application of FIN 46 as it relates to its variable
interests. See Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements discussion.
Consolidated Results of Operations
and Financial Condition
The Company operates in four principal segments: Commercial
Airplanes, Military Aircraft and Missile Systems, Space and
Communications, and BCC. All other activities fall within the
Other segment, principally made up of Boeing Technology,
Connexion by BoeingSM and Air Traffic Management.
Consolidated Results of Operations
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
Operating Earnings
Operating Margins
Net Earnings
Research and Development*
Effective Income Tax Rate
Contractual Backlog

2002

2001

2000

$««54,069
$««««3,868
7.2%
$«««««««492
$««««1,639
27.1%
$104,173

$««58,198
$««««3,896
6.7%
$««««2,827
$««««1,936
20.7%
$106,591

$««51,321
$««««3,058
6.0%
$««««2,128
$««««1,998
29.0%
$120,600

*Includes In-Process Research & Development in 2000

Revenues
Revenues for 2002 were $54.1 billion compared with $58.2 billion in 2001 and $51.3 billion in 2000. The lower revenues in
2002 principally reflect decreased deliveries in the Commercial
Airplanes segment. Fewer commercial airplane deliveries in 2002
were offset by growth of $1.5 billion in the Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems segment revenues. The higher revenues in 2001
compared to 2000 principally reflect increased deliveries in the
Commercial Airplanes segment, but also reflect an increase in
Space and Communications segment revenues.

Based on current schedules and
plans, the Company projects total
2003 revenues to be approximately
$49 billion.

Revenues
dollars in billions
58.2
54.1
51.3

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings for 2002 were
$3,868 million compared with
$3,896 million in 2001 and $3,058
million in 2000. 2001 operating
earnings were significantly impacted
by $935 million of pre-tax special
charges related to the events of
September 11, 2001. See Note 3.
Excluding the September 11, 2001,
special charges, operating earnings
in 2002 would have been $963 million lower than 2001 operating
00
01
02
earnings. This decrease in operating
earnings reflected lower commercial
Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and
airplane deliveries offset by producMissile Systems
tion efficiencies in the Commercial
Space and Communications
Other
Airplanes segment and higher
deliveries of Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems segment products.
Space and Communications segment operating earnings also
decreased as commercial satellite losses offset growth and performance on other programs. In addition, $426 million of asset
impairment charges and additional valuation reserves related to
customer and commercial financing assets were recorded by
BCC and the Other segment during 2002.
Operating earnings of $3,896 million for 2001 were $838 million
higher than 2000 operating earnings of $3,058 million. Excluding
the September 11, 2001, pre-tax special charges of $935 million, operating earnings in 2001 would have been $1,773 million
higher than 2000 operating earnings. The increase in operating
earnings during 2001 was primarily related to higher commercial
airplane deliveries and an increase in Space and Communications
segment operating earnings.
As indicated in Note 16, the Company has generated significant
net periodic benefit income related to pensions: $404 million in
2002, $920 million in 2001, and $428 million in 2000. Not all net
periodic pension benefit income or expense is recognized in net
earnings in the year incurred because it is allocated to production
as product costs, and a portion remains in inventory at the end
of a reporting period. Accordingly, the operating earnings for
2002, 2001 and 2000, included $537 million, $785 million and
$403 million, respectively, of pension income.
Due to the significant investment losses incurred in recent years,
the expected future market-related value of assets is expected
to decrease significantly in the near future. This decrease, when
combined with the decrease of 25 basis points in the expected
long-term asset return is expected to reduce pension income
reflected in operating earnings from $537 million in 2002 to
approximately $75 million in 2003. In 2004, the pension impact
to earnings will depend on market conditions, but based upon
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current assumptions, the Company expects to recognize a noncash pension expense estimated to range from $200 million to
$300 million.

Research &
Development
dollars in millions
3.3

Net Earnings

2.0

Net earnings of $492 million for 2002 were $2,335 million lower
than 2001 earnings of $2,827 million. The decrease in net earnings principally reflected a $1,827 million charge recorded in
2002 upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142, decreased commercial airplane deliveries, increased customer financing charges
and higher commercial satellite production costs. Other income
decreased $276 million in 2002, to $42 million in 2002 from
$318 million in 2001. Other income in 2001 included $210 million of interest income associated with federal income tax audit
settlements; 2002 did not include similar interest income. Also
contributing to lower other income in 2002 was $46 million of
losses on long-held equity investments. Interest and debt expense increased $80 million in 2002, to $730 million in 2002 from
$650 million in 2001. The increased interest expense resulted
from increased debt, primarily associated with the increased
customer and commercial financing activities of BCC. Interest
expense is expected to increase concurrent with increasing
future financing activity.

2.8

1.9

Net earnings of $2,827 million for 2001 were $699 million higher
than 2000 net earnings of $2,128 million. The increase in net
earnings principally reflected increased operating earnings associated with the increase in revenue for 2001. Net earnings in
2001 were significantly reduced by $935 million of pre-tax
special charges ($633 million after tax) related to the events of
September 11, 2001. The increase in net earnings for 2001 over
2000 also reflected the in-process research and development expense of $557 million ($348 million after tax) that was recognized
in 2000, of which $500 million was associated with the acquisition of the Hughes space and communications businesses,
which were renamed Boeing Satellite Systems. Other income
decreased $68 million in 2001, to $318 million in 2001 from
$386 million in 2000. The decrease in other income in 2001
principally reflected lower interest income from cash, but was
partially offset by higher interest income associated with federal
income tax audit settlements ($210 million in 2001, compared
with $73 million in 2000). Other income in 2000 also included a
$42 million gain on sale of a long-held equity investment. Interest
and debt expense increased $205 million in 2001, to $650 million in 2001 from $445 million in 2000. The increased interest expense resulted from increased debt, primarily associated with the
increased customer and commercial financing activities of BCC.
Research and Development
Research and development expenditures involve design, development and related test activities for defense systems, new and
derivative commercial jet aircraft, advance space, other company-sponsored product development, and basic research and
development. These expenditures are either charged directly
against earnings or are included in amounts allocable as reimbursable overhead costs on U.S. Government contracts.
Research and development highlights for each of the major business segments are discussed in Segment Results of Operations
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and Financial Condition. In addition,
Boeing Technology, the advanced
research and development organization of the Company, focuses on
improving its competitive position by
investing in certain technologies and
processes that apply to multiple
business units. Technology investments currently being pursued within
Boeing Technology include network
centric operations, affordable structures and manufacturing technology,
lean and efficient design processes
and tools, lean support and service
initiatives, advanced platform systems and safe and clean products.

Total research and development
expense in 2002 was $1,639 million,
compared with $1,936 million in
00
01
02
2001 and $1,998 million in 2000.
Percent of Sales
Excluding the $557 million of inResearch and
process research and development
Development Expense
expense in 2000, research and
development expense increased
$495 million in 2001, principally reflecting increases in the
Commercial Airplanes segment and the Other segment, which
includes activities relating to Connexion by BoeingSM.
Income Taxes
The effective income tax rate for 2002 was 27.1% compared
with 20.7% in 2001 and 29.0% in 2000. The 2002 effective
income tax rate of 27.1% varies from the federal statutory tax
rate of 35%, principally due to Foreign Sales Corporation (FSC)
and Extraterritorial Income (ETI) Exclusion tax benefits of $195
million. This rate also reflects tax credits, state income taxes and
favorable resolution of certain audit issues.
The effective income tax rates of 20.7% for 2001 and 29.0% for
2000 also vary from the federal statutory tax rate principally due
to FSC benefits of $222 million in 2001 and $291 million in
2000. The 2001 income tax rate also reflects a one-time benefit
of $343 million reflecting a settlement with the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) relating to research credit claims on McDonnell
Douglas Corporation fixed price government contracts applicable
to the 1986-1992 federal income tax returns.
In December 1996, The Boeing Company filed suit in the U.S.
District Court for the Western District of Washington for the
refund of over $400 million in federal income taxes and related
interest. If the Company were to prevail, the refund of the
amount in dispute would include interest computed to the payment date. However, the Company cannot predict the likelihood
of a favorable outcome. The suit challenged the IRS method of
allocating research and development costs for the purpose of
determining tax incentive benefits on export sales through the
Company’s Domestic International Sales Corporation (DISC) and
its FSC for the years 1979 through 1987. The Company prevailed with the District Court, but lost an appeals decision with

the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. The Company appealed to
the Supreme Court and is awaiting their decision, which is
expected in the first half of 2003. The Company’s financial statements will not be negatively impacted as a result of the suit’s
outcome.
Beginning in 1999 and continuing through 2002 the European
Union (EU) has issued a series of objections with the World
Trade Organization (WTO) to both U.S. FSC and ETI provisions.
The WTO has agreed with the EU and ruled that the FSC and
ETI provisions constitute prohibited export subsidies. In response
the WTO has authorized the EU to impose retaliatory tariffs. A
list of products upon which the retaliatory tariff would be imposed is not yet final, but at this point no Boeing products have
been included on the list. President Bush has stated that the
U.S. will bring its tax laws into compliance with the WTO ruling
that the Extraterritorial Income regime constitutes a prohibited
export subsidy. Both the House Ways and Means Committee
and the Senate Finance Committee are continuing to assess
alternatives for a replacement of the ETI legislation. It is not possible to predict what impact this issue will have on future earnings pending final resolution of these matters. If ETI is repealed
and replacement legislation is not enacted, the loss of benefit to
the Company could be substantial.
Income taxes have been settled with the IRS for all years
through 1978, and IRS examinations have been completed
through 1991. In connection with these examinations, the
Company disagrees with IRS proposed adjustments, and the
years 1979 through 1987 are in litigation. The IRS examination
for McDonnell Douglas Corporation for the years 1993 through
1995 has been settled and the Company received a refund of
$102 million in 2002. The Company believes adequate provision
for all outstanding issues has been made for all open years.
Backlog
Contractual backlog of unfilled orders excludes purchase
options, announced orders for which definitive contracts have
not been executed, and unobligated U.S. and foreign government contract funding. Total contractual backlog balances were
$104.2 billion at December 31, 2002, $106.6 billion at
December 31, 2001, and $120.6 billion at December 31, 2000.
The decreases in contractual backlog from 2001 to 2002 and
2000 to 2001 were related to decreases in contractual backlog
for Commercial Airplanes offset by increases in contractual
backlog for both Space and Communications and Military
Aircraft and Missile Systems.
Unobligated backlog includes U.S. and foreign government
definitive contracts for which funding has not been appropriated.
Unobligated backlog totaled $34.7 billion, $27.5 billion and
$31.3 billion at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The increase in unobligated backlog from 2001 to 2002 is primarily related to Military Aircraft and Missile Systems, partially
offset by Space and Communications. Overall, unobligated
backlog decreased from 2000 to 2001 due to a decrease in
unobligated backlog for Military Aircraft and Missile Systems,
which was partially offset by an increase in unobligated backlog
for Space and Communications.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The primary factors that affect the Company’s investment
requirements and liquidity position, other than operating results
associated with current sales activity, include the following:
timing of new and derivative programs requiring both high developmental expenditures and initial inventory buildup; cyclical factors, including growth and expansion requirements and
requirements associated with reducing sales levels; customer
financing assistance; the timing of federal income tax payments;
the Company’s stock repurchase plan; and potential acquisitions.
Cash flow summary The Company has generated strong cash
flow from operating activities with $4.4 billion provided in 2002,
$3.9 billion in 2001 and $6.2 billion in 2000. Earnings, adjusted
for non-cash items, continue to be the primary source of operating cash flow with over $4 billion provided in each of the last
three years.
(Dollars in millions)
Year ended December 31,

2002

Net earnings
$««««492
Non-cash items
3,772
Changes in working capital
111
Net cash provided by
operating activities
4,375
Net cash used by investing activities (3,421)
Net cash provided (used) by
financing activities
746
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents
1,700
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
633
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year
$«2,333

2001

2000

$«2,827
1,786
(719)

$«2,128
1,977
2,121

3,894
(4,789)

6,226
(7,911)

518

(659)

(377)

(2,344)

1,010

3,354

$««««633

$«1,010

Non-cash items Non-cash items in earnings primarily include
depreciation, amortization, share-based plans expense, impairments, valuation provisions and the cumulative effect of
accounting change relating to the adoption of SFAS No. 142.
Non-cash items and corresponding amounts are listed in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Working capital Working capital from operations excluding cash
contributions for pensions generated approximately $0.5 billion
of net cash in 2002. Due to the decline in the airline industry,
lower inventory balances and production rates resulted in a
$1.5 billion increase in cash flow. The amount of customer
advance payments received in excess of costs was $0.9 billion
less in 2002 than the previous year due primarily to lower
advance payments received. There was also a substantial reduction in vendor payables. The reduction in tax payments in 2002
resulted principally from lower earnings and a $0.1 billion tax
refund from settlements of several tax audits.
The working capital trend as reflected in the Five-Year Summary
indicates that the Company has been able to use lower amounts
of working capital to support the volume of business transacted
and is using capital more efficiently. This trend does not reflect a
change in the Company’s ability to meet obligations.
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Pensions 2002 operating cash flow included $0.3 billion of cash
funding to the pension plans. On April 15, 2002, the Company
voluntarily funded three of its defined benefit plans to ensure that
each of its plans would have assets that were at least approximately equal to (and in most cases greater than) the liability for
vested benefits as measured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation. The Company does not expect significant pension
funding requirements in 2003, although it may make additional
discretionary contributions.
The Company measures its pension plan using a September 30
year-end for financial accounting purposes. The significant
declines experienced in the financial markets have unfavorably
impacted asset performance. As a result, the Company has
reduced its expected long-term rate of asset return by 25 basis
points to 9.0% beginning in 2003. The expected long-term rate
of asset return is based on target asset allocations of 60%
equity with a return of 10.0%, 30% fixed income with a return of
6.8%, and 10% other (including real estate) with a return of 9.2%.
Current allocations are within 1 to 3% of each of the long-term
targets. The decline in asset performance coupled with historically low interest rates (a key factor when estimating plan liabilities), caused the Company to recognize a significant non-cash
charge to equity in the fourth quarter of 2002. This charge,
which amounted to a $5.7 billion increase to the accrued pension plan liability and a $3.6 billion after tax decrease to the
accumulated other comprehensive income account within shareholders’ equity, did not impact earnings or cash flow, and could
reverse in future periods should either interest rates increase or
market performance and plan returns improve. The Company
uses a discount rate that is based on a point-in-time estimate
as of the September 30 measurement date. Although future
changes to the discount rate are unknown, had the discount
rate increased or decreased 100 basis points, the pension and
postretirement liability would have decreased $3.6 billion or
increased $4.4 billion, respectively.
Investing activities The majority of BCC’s customer financing is
funded by debt and cash flow from its own operations. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company had outstanding irrevocable
commitments of approximately $3.2 billion to arrange or provide
financing related to aircraft on order or under option for deliveries
scheduled through the year 2007. Not all these commitments
are likely to be used; however, a significant portion of these
commitments are with parties with relatively low credit ratings.
See Note 20 and 21. Outstanding loans and commitments are
primarily secured by the underlying aircraft.
Additional investments of $0.4 billion were made by BCC in
Enhanced Equipment Trust Certificates (EETCs) offered by various airlines in 2002. EETCs are widely used in the airline industry
as a method of financing aircraft. BCC provides financing for airlines and has begun investing in these types of instruments as
an investor. See BCC Segment Results of Operations and
Financial Condition.
Financing activities Debt maturities during this three-year period
included $1.3 billion in 2002, $0.5 billion in 2001, and $0.5 billion in 2000. Additionally, BCC issued $2.8 billion of debt in 2002,
$3.9 billion in 2001 and $2.0 billion in 2000. The significant BCC
debt issuance in 2000 and 2001 was performed in conjunction
with the transfer of a significant portion of the Company’s
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customer financing assets to BCC as well as growth in the
customer financing portfolio. In 2002, BCC debt issuance was
generally used for growth in the customer financing portfolio.
The Company has a share repurchase program, but there were
no share repurchases in 2002. See Note 18.
Disclosures about contractual obligations and commitments
The following table summarizes the Company’s known obligations
to make future payments or other consideration pursuant to certain
contracts as of December 31, 2002, as well as an estimate of
the timing in which these obligations are expected to be satisfied.
Contractual obligations
(Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt
Capital lease
obligations
Operating leases
Other long-term
liabilities
Total contractual
obligations

Total

Less than
1 year

1– 3
years

4–5
years

After 5
years

$13,704

$1,377

$2,808

699
1,915

437
349

120
497

116
373

26
696

12,247

291

2,743

2,762

6,451

$28,565

$2,454

$6,168

$2,843 $««6,676

$6,094 $13,849

Other long-term liabilities in the table above include accrued
retiree health care, accrued pension plan liability and deferred
lease income.
Inventory procurement contracts The Company has entered
into certain significant inventory procurement contracts that
specify determinable prices and quantities, and long-term
delivery timeframes. These agreements require suppliers and
vendors to be prepared to build and deliver items in sufficient
time to meet the Company’s production schedules. The need for
such arrangements with suppliers and vendors arises due to the
extended production planning horizon for many of its products,
including commercial aircraft, military aircraft and other products
where the delivery to the customer is over an extended period of
time. A significant portion of these inventory commitments are
either supported by a firm contract from a customer or have
historically resulted in settlement through either termination payments or contract adjustments, when necessary, should the
customer base not materialize to support delivery from the
supplier. Although there are no plans to do so, if any of the
Company’s programs were to be terminated, the Company
would be exposed to potentially material termination costs.
Industrial participation agreements The Company has entered
into various industrial participation agreements with customers in
foreign countries to effect economic flow back and/or technology transfer to their businesses or government agencies as the
result of their procurement of goods and/or services from the
Company. These commitments may be satisfied by the
Company’s placement of direct work, placement of vendor
orders for supplies, opportunities to bid on supply contracts,
transfer of technology, or other forms of assistance to the foreign
country. The Company does not commit to industrial participation obligations unless a contract for sale of the Company’s
products or services is signed. To be eligible for such a commitment from the Company, the foreign country or customer must
have sufficient capability and capacity and must be competitive
in cost, quality and schedule. In certain cases, if a contract is

placed with a foreign supplier to satisfy an industrial participation
obligation, failure of that supplier to comply with any or all of
these terms and conditions relieves the Company of its obligations pursuant to that portion of its industrial participation commitment. In certain cases, penalties could be imposed if the
Company does not meet its industrial participation obligations.
During 2002, no penalties were incurred by the Company. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company has outstanding industrial
participation obligations totaling approximately $8.2 billion that
extend through 2013.
Capital resources The Company has the following Standard &
Poor’s credit ratings: short-term, A-1; senior debt, A+. BCC has
the following Standard & Poor’s credit ratings: short-term, A-1;
senior debt, A+. The Company has the following Moody’s credit
ratings: short-term, P-1; senior debt, A2. BCC has the following
Moody’s credit ratings: short-term, P-2; senior debt, A3. The
Company has the following Fitch’s credit ratings: short-term, F-1;
senior debt, A+. BCC has the following Fitch’s credit ratings:
short-term, F-1; senior debt, A+.
The events of September 11, 2001, negatively impacted the
liquidity and capital resources of the Company. Subsequent to
September 11, 2001, the Company established a commercial
paper program providing additional short-term liquidity.
Commercial paper remains a significant liquidity source.
The Company has debt obligations of $14.4 billion, which are
unsecured. Approximately $1.8 billion will mature in 2003, and
the balance has an average maturity of 12.4 years. Excluding
BCC debt of $9.5 billion and non-recourse debt of $0.6 billion,
total debt is at 42% of total shareholders’ equity plus debt. The
consolidated debt, including BCC, is at 65% of total shareholders’ equity plus debt. As previously noted, the Company has
recognized a significant non-cash charge to equity of $3.6 billion, net of tax. Excluding this item and BCC debt, the consolidated debt was 31% of shareholders’ equity plus debt.
The Company has additional substantial borrowing capability.
Currently, the Company has $4.3 billion that remains available
from shelf registrations filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and $4.5 billion ($2.0 billion exclusively available for BCC) of unused borrowing on revolving credit line
agreements with a group of major banks. See Note 15. The
Company believes its internally generated liquidity, together with
access to external capital resources, will be sufficient to satisfy
existing commitments and plans, and also to provide adequate
financial flexibility to take advantage of potential strategic business opportunities should they arise within the next year.
Due to the continuing downturn in the commercial aviation market
and the recent airline announcements in the United States that
confirm the delayed recovery of airline traffic and profitability,
several customers have rescheduled aircraft delivery dates. The
rescheduling of delivery dates will reduce aircraft advance payments in the near term. The reduction in advance payments will be
offset by reduced inventory spending, resulting in an immaterial
impact on the Company’s liquidity.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Guarantees The following tables provide quantitative data
regarding the Company’s third-party guarantees. The maximum
potential payment amounts represent “worst-case scenarios,”
and do not necessarily reflect results expected by the Company.
Estimated proceeds from collateral and recourse represent the
anticipated values of assets the Company could liquidate or receive from other parties to offset its payments under guarantees.
The carrying amount of liabilities recorded on the balance sheet
reflects the Company’s best estimate of future payments it may
be required to make as part of fulfilling its guarantee obligations.
Portions of certain liabilities were established in prior periods as
part of the Company’s special charges due to the events of
September 11, 2001.

As of December 31, 2002

Asset-related guarantees
Credit guarantees related to
the Sea Launch venture
Other credit guarantees
Equipment trust certificates
Performance guarantees

Portion of
Liabilities
Related to the
Carrying
Events of
Amount of
September
Liabilities*
11, 2001

Maximum
Potential
Payments

Estimated
Proceeds
from
Collateral/
Recourse

$790

$629

$««17

535
245
182
57

186
72
101

200
19

$7

1

*Amounts included in accounts payable and other liabilities

The Company has issued various asset-related guarantees, principally to facilitate the sale of certain commercial aircraft. Under
these arrangements, the Company is obligated to make payments to a guaranteed party in the event the related aircraft fair
values fall below a specified amount at a future point in time.
These obligations are collateralized principally by commercial
aircraft. No aircraft have been delivered with these types of
guarantees in several years. Recent declines in asset values of
commercial aircraft increase the risk of future payment by the
Company under these guarantees. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Company recorded a reduction to
expense of $3 million and made net cash payments totaling
$138 million related to its asset-related guarantees.
The Company has issued credit guarantees to creditors of the
Sea Launch venture, of which the Company is a 40% owner, to
assist the venture in obtaining financing. In the event the
Company is required to perform on these guarantees, it has the
right to recover a portion of the loss from another venture partner, and has collateral rights to certain assets of the venture. In
addition, the Company has issued credit guarantees, principally
to facilitate the sale of certain commercial aircraft. Under these
arrangements, the Company is obligated to make payments to a
guaranteed party in the event that lease or loan payments are
not made by the original debtor or lessee. The Company’s commercial aircraft credit-related guarantees are collateralized by the
underlying commercial aircraft. A substantial portion of these
guarantees have been extended on behalf of original debtors or
lessees with less than investment-grade credit. Recent financial
weakness in certain airlines further exposes the Company to
loss under its credit guarantees. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Company recorded no expenses
and made net cash payments totaling $9 million related to its
credit guarantees.

The Company is a party to certain off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined by the SEC, including certain guarantees and
variable interests in unconsolidated entities.
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As a liquidity provider for equipment trust certificate (ETC) passthrough arrangements, the Company has certain obligations to
investors in the trusts, which requires funding to the trust to
cover interest due to such investors resulting from an event of
default by United Airlines. In the event of funding, the Company
receives a first priority position in the ETC collateral in the amount
of the funding. On February 7, 2003, the Company advanced
$101 million to the trust perfecting its collateral position and terminating its liquidity obligation. The trust currently has collateral
value that significantly exceeds the amount due to the Company.
Also relating to an ETC investment, the Company has potential
obligations relating to shortfall interest payments in the event that
the interest rates in the underlying agreements are reset below a
certain level. These obligations would cease if United Airlines
were to default on its interest payments to the trust. There were
no significant payments made by the Company during 2002.
The Company has outstanding performance guarantees issued
in conjunction with joint venture investments. Pursuant to these
guarantees, the Company would be required to make payments
in the event a third-party fails to perform specified services.
Material variable interests in unconsolidated entities The
Company is currently assessing the application of FIN 46 as it
relates to its variable interests. While the Company is currently
not required to consolidate the full amount of the ETCs, EETCs
or the Sea Launch venture in which it has invested, it is unable
to definitively conclude at this time whether consolidation or disclosure will be required for these investments upon full adoption
of FIN 46. The Company’s investment in ETCs and EETCs
aggregated $455 million at December 31, 2002. During the year
ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded revenues of
$25 million, cash inflows of $41 million, and impairment expense
of $79 million relating to these investments. As of December 31,
2002, the VIE (ETCs and EETCs) in which the Company has
invested have total assets of approximately $4.2 billion and total
debt (which is non-recourse to the Company) of approximately
$3.7 billion. The total assets and total liabilities of the Sea Launch
venture each represent less than 4% of the Company’s consolidated total assets and total liabilities as of December 31, 2002.
The Company made no additional capital contributions to the
Sea Launch venture during the year ended December 31, 2002.
Disclosures about commercial commitments The following
table summarizes the Company’s commercial commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2002, as well as an estimate of the
timing in which these commitments are expected to expire.
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Commercial commitments
(Dollars in millions)

Total Amounts
Committed/Maximum Less than
Amount of Loss
1 year

1–3
years

4–5
years

After
5 years

Standby letters of
credit and surety bonds $1,663 $1,079 $«««221 $««70 $«««293
Guarantees:
Asset-related guarantees
790
63
60
667
Credit guarantees
780
4
40
614
122
Equipment trust certificates 182
182
Performance guarantees
57
12
33
12
Trade-in commitments
1,993
617 1,054
220
102
Other commercial
commitments
3,329 1,569 1,715
45
Total commercial
commitments
$8,794 $3,344 $3,063 $964 $1,423

Related to the issuance of certain standby letters of credit and
surety bonds included in the above table, the Company received
$608 million of advance payments from customers.
The Company enters into certain trade-in agreements to purchase used aircraft from customers at a specific price at a future
point in time when those customers purchase new aircraft from
the Company. In the event the Company accepts an aircraft
under a trade-in agreement, the aircraft purchased by the
Company serves as collateral to offset amounts paid by the
Company to the customer. As of December 31, 2002, accounts
payable and other liabilities included $156 million related to
trade-in commitments, of which $93 million was related to the
events of September 11, 2001. The total contractual trade-in
value of all aircraft that customers had the right to sell to the
Company was $1,993 million as of December 31, 2002, and the
Company estimated the fair value of those aircraft was $1,837
million. There is a high degree of uncertainty inherent in the
assessment of the likelihood of trade-in commitments. Generally,
as commercial aircraft values decline, the probability of the
Company’s performance on trade-in commitments increases.
There have been recent declines in value for certain aircraft
models, including those for which the Company has trade-in
agreements. Updates on the likelihood that trade-in commitments will be exercised using both quantitative information from
valuation sources and qualitative information from other sources
are continually assessed. The Company continues to monitor all
trade-in commitments for adverse developments.
Other commercial commitments include irrevocable financing
commitments related to aircraft on order and commercial equipment financing. These are previously discussed and also disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Results of Operations and Financial Condition
Commercial Airplanes

The undelivered units under firm order* as of December 31 were
as follows:
Model

(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
% of Total Company Revenues
Unit Cost Method
Operating Earnings
Operating Margins
Program Accounting Method
Operating Earnings
Operating Margins
Research and Development
Contractual Backlog

2002

2001

2000

$28,387
53%

$35,056
60%

$31,171
61%

$««2,847
10.0%

$««2,632
7.5%

$««2,736
8.8%

$««2,017
7.1%
$«««««768
$68,159

$««1,911
5.5%
$«««««858
$75,850

$««2,099
6.7%
$«««««574
$89,780

Revenues
Commercial Airplanes segment revenues were $28.4 billion in
2002 compared with $35.1 billion in 2001 and $31.2 billion for
2000. Commercial Airplanes revenue is derived primarily from jet
aircraft deliveries. The decline in revenue in 2002 compared to
2001 was due primarily to the decline in the commercial aviation
market and resulting jet aircraft deliveries and revenue. 2001 revenue was higher than in 2000 due primarily to the increase in
commercial jet aircraft deliveries.
Commercial jet aircraft deliveries were 381 in 2002 compared
with 527 in 2001 and 489 in 2000, summarized as follows:
Model

717
737 Classic
737 Next-Generation
747
757
767
777
MD-11
MD-90
Total

2002

20
–
223 (2)
27 (1)
29
35 (1)
47
–
–
381

2001

49 (10)
–
299 (5)
31 (1)
45
40
61
2
–
527

2000

32 (23)
2
279
25
45
44
55
4
3
489

Commercial jet aircraft deliveries included deliveries under operating lease, which are identified by parentheses in the table
above. Deliveries in 2002 included intercompany deliveries of
four 737 Next-Generation aircraft, consisting of three C-40 aircraft and one Project Wedgetail Airborne Early Warning and
Control (AEW&C) System aircraft. Deliveries in 2001 included
intercompany deliveries of two 737 Next-Generation aircraft, and
in 2000 included intercompany deliveries of four 737 NextGeneration aircraft and one 747 aircraft. Final deliveries of the
MD-11 aircraft program occurred in 2001. Final deliveries of the
737 Classic and MD-90 aircraft programs occurred in 2000.
The cumulative number of commercial jet aircraft deliveries as of
December 31 were as follows:
Model

717
737 Next-Generation
747
757
767
777

2002

2001

2000

113
1,247
1,319
1,022
892
424

93
1,024
1,292
993
857
377

44
725
1,261
948
817
316

717
737 Next-Generation
747
757
767
777

2002

2001

2000

26
765
52
28
39
173

30
857
59
55
77
198

107
997
77
94
82
241

*Firm orders represent new aircraft purchase agreements where the customers’ rights to cancel without penalty have expired. Typical customer
rights to cancel without penalty include receiving Board of Directors’
approval, shareholder approval, government approval and completing
financing arrangements. All such cancellation rights must be satisfied or
expired even if satisfying such conditions are highly certain. Firm orders
exclude option aircraft and aircraft subject to reconfirmation.

Total commercial jet aircraft deliveries for 2003 are currently projected to approximate 280 aircraft. For 2004, commercial aircraft
deliveries are currently projected to be in the range of 275 to
300 aircraft. As of January 30, 2003, the delivery forecast for
2003 is virtually sold out and approximately 80% sold for 2004
at the lower end of the range. Commercial Airplanes segment
revenues for 2003 are projected to be in the range of $22 billion.
Operating Earnings
Commercial Airplanes segment calculates its operating earnings
using both the unit cost and program accounting methods. For
segment reporting purposes, as disclosed in Note 24, the
Commercial Airplanes operating earnings as of December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, are provided on the unit cost basis.
Beginning in first quarter 2003, Commercial Airplanes segment
data will be based on the program accounting method.
Commercial Airplanes segment 2002 operating earnings, based
on the unit cost of airplanes delivered, were $2,847 million, compared with $2,632 million in 2001 and $2,736 million in 2000.
The related operating margins were 10.0%, 7.5% and 8.8%,
respectively. 2002 and 2001 operating earnings included $(2)
million and $908 million, respectively, of (recoveries)/charges
associated with the September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks.
Excluding these (recoveries)/charges, Commercial Airplanes segment operating earnings in 2002 and 2001 were $2,845 million
and $3,540 million, resulting in operating margins of 10.0% and
10.1%, respectively. Excluding the September 11 (recoveries)/
charges, 2002 operating margin was slightly lower than 2001
due to the decline in revenue offset by improved operating efficiency and reduced research and development expense. 2001
operating earnings and margin, excluding September 11
charges, increased from 2000 principally due to increased revenue and continued improvement in the production process.
Commercial Airplanes segment operating earnings, based on
the program method of accounting and including intercompany
transactions, as discussed in Note 24, were $2,017 million,
$1,911 million and $2,099 million as of December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The related operating margins
were 7.1%, 5.5%, and 6.7%. Excluding the 2002 and 2001
(recoveries)/charges associated with September 11, 2001, the
operating earnings for these periods were $2,015 million and
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$2,819 million, respectively. The comparable margins were 7.1%
and 8.0%. The decline in margins from 2001 to 2002 is primarily
due to the reduction in revenue offset by improved operating
efficiency and reduced research and development expense. In
addition, the margins have been adversely impacted compared
to 2001 due to the aircraft market decline. In general, this has
resulted in the lengthening of the time needed to produce the
accounting quantity.

frame for production and delivery of the accounting quantities
used for program accounting. This is particularly true for the
747, 757 and 767 programs. The 757 and 767 programs have
been experiencing the most difficulty acquiring new orders.
Current market projections indicate that the Company will be
successful in selling the unsold units within the current accounting
quantity for all programs, therefore no accounting quantities
have been reduced.

Commercial aircraft production costs include a significant amount
of infrastructure costs, a portion of which do not vary with production rates. As the amount of time needed to produce the
accounting quantity increases, the average cost of the accounting quantity also increases as these infrastructure costs are
included in the total cost estimates, thus reducing the gross
margin and related earnings provided other factors do not change.

The estimate of total program accounting quantities and
changes, if any, as of December 31 were:

The favorable cost performance reflected in the current year
earnings and margin is recognized over current and future deliveries under the program method of accounting. For segment
reporting purposes, the favorable cost performance is a cumulative adjustment to unit cost over current and prior deliveries.

2000

The Company will continue to experience a higher than normal
quantity of used airplanes through 2003 as a result of commitments entered into through purchase agreements with customers for new aircraft and services. Due to the current market
for used airplanes, the Company’s used airplane inventory may
increase and these purchases and commitments to purchase
may result in future charges.
Accounting Quantity
A program consists of the estimated accounting quantity for each
aircraft to be produced for delivery under existing and anticipated
contracts. The Company has a policy that determines the appropriate accounting quantity for each commercial aircraft program.
This policy takes into account several factors influenced by the
demand for the particular product. The Company reviews and
reassesses its program accounting quantities on a quarterly basis
in compliance with relevant program accounting guidance.
The current market for commercial aircraft is adversely affecting
all of Commercial Airplanes commercial aircraft programs. The
resulting reduction in production rates is extending the time

737 Next717 Generation

2002

Additions
2001

Additions/(deletions)

140
5
135
(65)
200

747

757

767

777

2,000 1,401 1,100 1,000 600
200
1,800 1,401 1,100 1,000 600
150
50
50
50
1,650 1,351 1,050
950 600

The accounting quantity for the 717 program continues to be
based on firm orders as it has been since fourth quarter of
2001.The increase of five units in the 717 program accounting
quantity during the second quarter of 2002 was the result of net
new order activity on the program. The reduction of 65 units in
the 717 program accounting quantity during the fourth quarter of
2001 was driven by a lack of firm demand for the 717 aircraft
subsequent to September 11, 2001. See Note 3. This decrease
in demand is demonstrated in the table below by the sharp
decrease in the 717 program’s anticipated orders as a percentage of cumulative firm orders between December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000. Program accounting quantity increases
between December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2000 on other
programs were the result of the normal progression of business;
delivering aircraft; and obtaining additional orders.
Within the accounting quantity for all programs there are units
that have been delivered, undelivered units under contract, and
units anticipated to be under contract in the future (anticipated
orders). In developing total program estimates all of these conditions within the accounting quantity must be addressed. The
percentage of anticipated orders included in the program
accounting estimates as compared to the number of cumulative
firm orders* as of December 31 were as follows:

717

737 NextGeneration

747

757

767

777

139
0
0%

2,012
n/a
n/a

1,371
29
2%

1,050
49
5%

931
67
7%

597
3
1%

123
11
9%

1,881
n/a
n/a

1,351
49
4%

1,048
51
5%

934
64
7%

575
25
4%

151
48
32%

1,722
n/a
n/a

1,338
12
1%

1,042
7
1%

899
49
5%

557
43
8%

2002

Cumulative firm orders (CFO)
Anticipated orders
Anticipated orders as a % of CFO
2001
Cumulative firm orders (CFO)
Anticipated orders
Anticipated orders as a % of CFO
2000

Cumulative firm orders (CFO)
Anticipated orders
Anticipated orders as a % of CFO

*Cumulative firm orders represent the cumulative number of commercial jet aircraft deliveries as of December 31 (see table on page 47) plus undelivered
units under firm order (see table on page 47). Cumulative firm orders include orders that fall within the current accounting quantities as well as orders
that extend beyond the current accounting quantities. Cumulative firm orders exclude program test aircraft that will not be refurbished for sale.
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As of December 31, 2002, the Company had cumulatively delivered 113 717 program aircraft. The Company will record 717
deliveries on a break-even basis until such time as program
reviews indicate changes to the gross margin. The Company
has potentially material exposures related to the 717 program,
principally attributable to termination costs that could result from
a lack of longer-term market acceptance.
The Company is anticipating an order from the U.S. Air Force for
100 767 tankers, which will have a long-term positive impact on
the 767 program. This order has been incorporated into the program estimates to the extent the aircraft fall within the current
accounting quantity. Based on the anticipated delivery schedule
and forecasted production rates most of these aircraft fall
beyond the current accounting quantity. The order from the U.S.
Air Force for 100 767 tankers is anticipated to become a firm
contract during 2003.
Deferred Production Costs
Inventory production costs incurred on in-process and delivered
units in excess of the estimated average cost of such units
determined as described in Note 1 represent deferred production costs. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no
significant excess deferred production costs or unamortized
tooling costs not recoverable from existing firm orders for the
737 Next-Generation and 777 programs.
The unamortized tooling and deferred production costs included in
inventory at December 31 are summarized in the following table:
Unamortized tooling
737 Next-Generation
777
Deferred production costs
737 Next-Generation
777

2002

2001

$239
709

$305
821

57
785

429
863

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the balance of deferred
production costs and unamortized tooling related to the 717,
747, 757 and 767 programs was insignificant.
Fleet Support
The Company provides the operators of all its commercial airplane models assistance and services to facilitate efficient and
safe aircraft operation. Collectively known as fleet support services, these activities and services include flight and maintenance
training, field service support costs, engineering services and
technical data and documents. Fleet support activity begins prior
to aircraft delivery as the customer receives training, manuals
and technical consulting support, and continues throughout the
operational life of the aircraft. Services provided after delivery
include field service support, consulting on maintenance, repair,
and operational issues brought forth by the customer or regulators, updating manuals and engineering data, and the issuance
of service bulletins that impact the entire model’s fleet. Field
service support involves Company personnel located at customer
facilities providing and coordinating fleet support activities and
requests. The costs for fleet support are expensed as incurred
and have been historically less than 1.5% of total consolidated

costs of products and services. This level of expenditures is
anticipated to continue in the upcoming years. These costs do
not vary significantly with current production rates.
Research and Development
The Company continually evaluates opportunities to improve
current aircraft models, and assesses the marketplace to ensure
that its family of commercial jet aircraft are well positioned to
meet future requirements of the airline industry. The fundamental
strategy is to maintain a broad product line that is responsive
to changing market conditions by maximizing commonality
among the Boeing family of commercial aircraft. Additionally,
the Company is determined to continue to lead the industry in
customer satisfaction by offering products with the highest
standards of quality, safety, technical excellence, economic
performance and in-service support.
Commercial Airplanes segment research and development
expense was $768 million in 2002, $858 million in 2001 and
$574 million in 2000. The decrease in 2002 from 2001 was
due primarily to reduced spending on the development of the
777-300ER and 747-400ER. The increase in 2001 over 2000
was due primarily to increased spending on the development
of the 777-300ER, 777-200LR, 747-400ER and a sonic cruiser
airplane.
The initial delivery of the 747-400ER and the rollout of the first
777-300ER occurred in the fourth quarter of 2002. The initial
delivery of the 777-300ER is expected to occur in 2004. The initial delivery of the 737-900, the largest member of the 737 NextGeneration family occurred in the second quarter of 2001. The
initial delivery of the 767-400ER, a stretched version of 767300ER, occurred in the third quarter of 2000.
In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company announced it will
focus its product development efforts on the development of an
efficient 200- to 250-seat airplane that will fly 7,000 to 8,000
nautical miles with 15 to 20 percent lower fuel usage at the top
end of today’s commercial jet speeds. The market potential for a
new airplane of this size is forecasted at up to 3,000 units over
the next 20 years. The Company expects to formally offer the
new airplane to customers in early 2004, with entry into service
targeted for 2008.
The following chart summarizes the time horizon between goahead and certification/initial delivery for major Commercial
Airplanes derivatives and programs.
Go-ahead and Certification / Delivery
777-300ER
777-200LR
737-900
747-400ER
747-400ERF
767-400ER

98

99

00

01

02

03

04

05

06
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Backlog
Commercial Airplanes segment contractual firm backlog balances
were $68.2 billion at December 31, 2002, $75.9 billion at
December 31, 2001, and $89.8 billion at December 31, 2000.
Contractual firm backlog for Commercial Airplanes segment
excludes customers deemed by management to be high risk or in
bankruptcy as of the reporting date. The contractual backlog
decline reflects the impact that the economic downturn has had
on the airline industry. The decline in backlog of $7.7 billion from
December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, and $13.9 billion from
December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001, represents higher
delivery volume on all airplane programs relative to new orders.
December 31, 2002, backlog does not include the anticipated
order of 100 U.S. Air Force 767 tankers. This order is anticipated
to become a firm contract during 2003.
Business Environment and Trends
Overview The worldwide market for commercial jet airplanes
continues to be predominantly driven by long-term trends in
airline passenger traffic. The principal factors underlying longterm traffic growth are sustained economic growth, both in developed and emerging countries, and political stability. Demand
for the Company’s commercial airplanes is further influenced by
airline industry profitability, world trade policies, government-togovernment relations, environmental constraints imposed upon
airplane operations, technological changes, and price and other
competitive factors.
Airline industry environment Commercial aviation has been
impacted by an economic downturn that began in 2001 and
continued through 2002. In addition, the industry suffered a
tremendous shock from the terrorist attacks of September 11,
2001. Air travel in most areas of the world has not recovered to
the volume carried by the airlines in 2000, which is affecting
profitability for many airlines. U.S. full service airlines have suffered
the greatest losses. Holiday traffic in 2002 for the U.S. airlines
showed an improvement and most carriers indicated better
financial performance. However, this improvement was for only a
short period of time and the major U.S. full service airlines
reported significant losses for 2002. In contrast, low fare airlines
in the U.S. and in Europe are reporting positive financial results
and are growing. European network airlines are expected to show
better results than their U.S. counterparts for the fiscal period
ending in March of 2003. Traffic between Asia and Europe has
rebounded to pre-September 11 levels. This trend combined
with stronger traffic within the region is offsetting the slow growth
over the Pacific permitting most Asian airlines to show profits.
Our timetable for industry recovery has been delayed. We
presently see 2003 to be the year of recovery for world air travel;
late 2003/early 2004 to be the year of airline profitability recovery;
2004 to be the year of airplane order recovery; and 2005 to be
the year of delivery recovery. The major uncertainty that is curbing
economic growth and a stronger and sooner rebound in the
industry is the Iraqi situation — in terms of timing, scale of military
engagement, effect on oil prices, and clarity of political resolution.
The Company’s 20-year forecast of the average long-term growth
rate in passenger traffic is 4.9% annually, based on projected
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average worldwide annual economic real growth of 2.9%. Based
on global economic growth projections over the long term, and
taking into consideration an increasingly competitive environment, increasing utilization levels of the worldwide airplane fleet
and requirements to replace older airplanes, the Company projected almost a $5 trillion market for new airplanes and services
over the next 20 years. This is a long-term forecast; historically,
while factors such as the Gulf War and ticket charges for security have had significant impact over the span of several years,
they have not dramatically affected the longer term trends in the
world economy, and therefore, the Company’s market outlook.
Airline deregulation Worldwide, the airline industry has experienced progressive deregulation of domestic markets and increasing liberalization of international markets. Twenty-five years ago
virtually all air travel took place within a framework of domestic
and international regulatory oversight. Since then, an increasing
number of countries, most notably the United States, Australia,
Japan and the countries in Western Europe, have eliminated
restrictive regulations for domestic airline markets and promoted
a more open-market climate for international services. These
trends are expected to continue, but at varying rates in different
parts of the world. At the end of the next decade, an estimated
two-thirds of air travel will be in open markets. Liberalization of
government regulations, together with increased airplane range
capabilities, gives airlines greater freedom to pursue optimal fleetmix strategies. This increased flexibility allows the airlines to
accommodate traffic growth by selecting the best mix of flight
frequencies and airplane size and capabilities for their route systems. In intercontinental markets, more liberal bilateral air service
agreements provide an important stimulus to opening new citypair markets, which favor increased flight frequency over capacity growth. In parallel with regulatory liberalization, improvements
in airplane range performance will continue to allow airlines to
expand the number of direct city-to-city routes, thus reducing
the reliance on indirect routes through central hubs that require
larger capacity airplanes.
Industry competitiveness The Company currently faces aggressive international competitors that are seeking to increase
market share. This competitive factor was demonstrated by the
decision of Airbus to introduce the A380, a proposed aircraft
with passenger seating greater than the 747, to increase market
share at the upper end of the large airplane market. This market
environment has resulted in intense pressures on pricing and
other competitive factors. The Company’s focus on improving
processes and other cost reduction efforts is intended to
enhance its ability to pursue pricing strategies that enable the
Company to maintain leadership at satisfactory margins.
Additionally, the Company’s extensive customer support services
network for airlines throughout the world plays a key role in
maintaining high customer satisfaction. As an example, on-line
access is available to all airline customers for engineering drawings, parts lists, service bulletins and maintenance manuals.
The commercial jet aircraft market and the airline industry remain
extremely competitive. Competitive pressures and increased
lower-fare travel have combined to cause a long-term downward
trend in passenger revenue yields worldwide (measured in real
terms). Market liberalization within Europe has enabled low-cost

airlines to enter the market. These airlines increase the downward
pressure on airfares, similar to the competitive environment in
the United States. Airfares between Asia and the United States
are among the lowest yield (airfare divided by revenue passenger
miles) of any in the world. These factors result in continued price
pressure on the Company’s products. Major productivity gains
are essential to ensure a favorable market position at acceptable
profit margins.
In July 2000, three major European aerospace companies
(Aerospatiale Matra of France, DaimlerChrysler Aerospace of
Germany, and Construcciones Aeronautica of Spain) combined
to form the European Aeronautic Defence and Space Company
(EADS). As a result of the formation, EADS became an 80%
owner of Airbus Industrie (AI) and led the effort for the formation
of the Airbus Integrated Company (AIC) in early 2001. The creation of the AIC effectively changes the Airbus role, from that of
a marketer/distributor of large commercial airplanes to one
including complete manufacturing responsibility. The AIC is
incorporated under French law as a privately held corporation
owned 80% by EADS and 20% by BAE Systems.
Over the past five years, sales outside the United States have
accounted for approximately 53% of the Company’s total
Commercial Airplanes’ third-party segment sales; approximately
50% of the Commercial Airplanes segment contractual backlog
as of December 31, 2002, was with customers based outside
the United States. Continued access to global markets remains
vital to the Company’s ability to fully realize its sales potential
and projected long-term investment returns.
Summary Although near-term market uncertainties remain, particularly with respect to the recovery post September 11, the
long-term market outlook appears favorable. The Company is
well positioned in all segments of the commercial jet airplane
market, and intends to remain the airline industry’s preferred
supplier through emphasis on product offerings and customer
service that provide the best overall value in the industry.
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
% of Total Company Revenues
Operating Earnings
Operating Margins
Research and Development
Contractual Backlog

2002

2001

2000

$13,990
26%
$««1,652
11.8%
$«««««345
$21,073

$12,451
21%
$««1,346
10.8%
$«««««258
$17,630

$11,924
23%
$««1,245
10.4%
$«««««257
$17,113

Revenues
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems segment revenues were
$14.0 billion in 2002, $12.5 billion in 2001 and $11.9 billion in 2000.
Increased revenues in 2002 were primarily due to additional deliveries on the C-17 Globemaster, F/A-18E/F Super Hornet, F-15
Eagle, JDAM, AH-64 Apache programs and increased Aerospace
Support volume. The Military Aircraft and Missile Systems business segment is broadly diversified, and no program other than
the C-17 Globemaster program and the F/A-18E/F Super Hornet
program accounted for more than 6% of total 2002 segment revenues. Revenues include amounts attributable to production programs and amounts recognized on a cost-reimbursement basis
for developmental programs such as the F/A-22 Raptor, V-22

Osprey, and the RAH-66 Comanche. The increase in revenues
between 2001 and 2000 is primarily due to increased aircraft
deliveries in 2001, one additional C-17 Globemaster, four 737
C-40A Clippers and four CH-47 Chinook helicopters.
Deliveries of units for principal production programs, including
deliveries under operating lease, which are identified by parentheses, were as follows:
2002

C-17 Globemaster
F/A-18E/F Super Hornet
T-45TS Goshawk
F-15E Eagle
CH-47 Chinook
737 C-40A Clipper
AH-64 Apache

16
40
14
3
7
3
15

2001

14 (4)
36
15
–
11
4
7

2000

13
26
16
5
7
–
8

Military Aircraft and Missile Systems segment revenues for 2003
are projected to be in the $14 billion range.
Operating Earnings
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems segment operating earnings
for 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $1,652 million, $1,346 million
and $1,245 million, respectively. The segment operating margins
for 2002, 2001 and 2000 were 11.8%, 10.8% and 10.4%,
respectively. The 2002 operating results reflect strong profits on
major production programs. The segment operating margins for
2002 were 11.2% after adjusting for gains of $64 million related
to the divestiture of equity investments and a favorable adjustment of $24 million attributable to F-15 Eagle program charges
taken in 1999. Increased earnings in 2001 from 2000 were
associated with the additional delivery of one C-17 Globemaster,
four 737 C-40A Clippers and four CH-47 deliveries. The segment operating earnings for 2001 include the recognition of $48
million of charges relating to asset reductions attributable to
reduced work volume at the Philadelphia site, and $46 million of
charges associated with the Joint Strike Fighter program and
idle manufacturing assets. The 2001 operating earnings also
included a favorable adjustment of $57 million attributable to F15 Eagle program charges taken in 1999. Exclusive of these
items, the segment operating margins for 2001 were 11.1%.
Research and Development
The Company is continuing to invest in business opportunities
where it can use its customer knowledge, technical strength and
large-scale systems integration capabilities to shape the market.
Investments in Unmanned Systems continue to leverage the
Company’s capabilities in architectures, system-of-systems integration and weapon systems technologies to provide transformational capabilities for the U.S. military. Investment is continuing
in the 767 Tanker programs for the U.S. Air Force and international customers. Company investments in Airborne Electronic
Attack and Precision Weapons and advanced Rotorcraft systems
are expanding its breadth of products and capabilities enabling it
to access larger portions of the combat systems markets.
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems research and development
expense in 2002 was $345 million, compared with $258 million
in 2001 and $257 million in 2000. Current research and development activities are focused on the international and domestic
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767 Tanker program, reflected in the 2002 increased expenditures over 2001. This program represents a large opportunity to
provide state of the art tanking capabilities to our potential
domestic and international customers. It demonstrates the synergistic value of the diversified Boeing portfolio in providing best
value solutions to our customers. Italy recently became the first
customer of the 767 Tanker ordering four aircraft with first aircraft delivery scheduled in 2005. The Military Aircraft and Missile
Systems segment continues to pursue business opportunities
where it can use its customer knowledge, technical strength and
large-scale integration capabilities. The segment’s level of
research and development expenditures is consistent with this
approach, and reflects the recent business environment, which
has presented few major new-start opportunities. Other research
and development efforts include upgrade and technology insertions to enhance the capability and competitiveness of current
product lines, as well as exploration of new markets such as
unmanned air vehicles (UAVs).
Backlog
Total contractual backlog for Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
was $21.1 billion at December 31, 2002, $17.6 billion at
December 31, 2001 and $17.1 billion at December 31, 2000.
Military Aircraft and Missiles Systems contractual backlog
increased by 20% in 2002 compared to 2001. The increase in
2002 compared to 2001 is primarily attributed to the capture of
several key international awards including the Korean F-15 Eagle
contract and the Italian 767 Tanker contract. Backlog also
increased due to rate increases on several domestic programs in
low rate initial production including V-22 Osprey and the F/A-22
Raptor. The C-17 Globemaster program maintained consistent
backlog as new orders replaced sales on the existing production
contracts. The program is well positioned for continued sales well
into this decade. The F/A-18E/F Super Hornet program backlog
increased moderately as the customer continues to increase production rate. The JDAM program backlog also increased moderately with additional orders from both the Navy and Air Force.
Aerospace Support orders continued to increase this past year.
Business Environment and Trends
Overview The U.S. Department of Defense (DoD), represents
nearly 50% of the world’s defense budget, and remains the
principal customer of the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
business unit. Several trends are emerging that are shaping customer behavior in this market. U.S. military force structure is
shrinking, its platforms are aging, and the tempo of operations
and engagements worldwide remains high. The United States’
current military activity demonstrates the value of systems solutions that allow all systems to communicate with each other, to
operate over longer ranges, are unmanned and provide the
advantages of precision, persistence and selective engagement.
These factors are driving the U.S. DoD, along with militaries
worldwide, to focus on ways to transform their forces and the
way they operate.
Military Transformation The transformation in forces is evidenced by a trend toward smaller, but more capable and more
technologically advanced force structures. The transformation in
acquisition is evidenced by an increasing trend toward spiral
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development programs, cooperative international development
programs and a demonstrated willingness to explore new forms
of acquisition and ownership including the lease of military
support aircraft.
Institutions and events continue to shape the defense industrial
environment. From an institutional perspective, the establishment
of the Homeland Defense and U.S. Northern Command are creating new organizations with responsibilities for national airspace
control, coastal protection and civil support. The creation of the
U.S. Strategic Command is consolidating responsibilities for
global strike, integrated missile defense, information operations,
command, control, communications and computers, and intelligence, surveillance and reconnaisance into a single organization.
Events like Operation Enduring Freedom and the continuing war
on global terrorism reaffirms the need for the rapid projection of
decisive combat power around the world and emphasizes the
need for new capabilities and solutions for the warfighter. Toward
that end, the DoD is fully committed to a transformation that will
achieve and maintain advantages through changes in operational
concepts, organizational structure and technologies that significantly improve warfighting capabilities.
Competitive environment The global competitive environment
continues to intensify, with increased focus on the U.S. defense
market, the world’s largest and most attractive. Military Aircraft
and Missile Systems faces strong competition in all market segments, primarily from Lockheed Martin, Raytheon, EADS and
Northrop Grumman. The financial problems plaguing some
domestic industry competitors appear to be resolved, enabling
them to acquire new assets and compete more vigorously.
EADS continues to strategically build a presence in the U.S.
market through building its North American operations and by
partnering with U.S. defense companies.
Continued industry consolidation and market concentration was
marked by the acquisition of TRW by Northrop Grumman.
Northrop’s position in the UAV, space, systems integration, and
strike markets has been strengthened. However, all prime contractors continue to partner or serve as major suppliers to each
other on various programs. At the lower tiers, consolidation persists and select companies have been positioning for larger
roles, especially in the Aerospace Support market.
In addition to leveraging its internal resources and capabilities,
the Company is creating a competitive advantage by developing
global strategic relationships to provide superior value for its
customers, both in the U.S. and abroad.
Summary Events like nuclear proliferation in North Korea,
Operation Enduring Freedom and the continued war on terrorism, highlight the fact that our National Security goals are not
rhetorical. There is an immediate and a durable need to maintain
strong U.S. defense capabilities covering a very broad spectrum
of threats and responses. Near-term DoD budgets have increased, and longer-range forecasts expect DoD budgets to
grow faster than anticipated prior to September 11, 2001.
However, with a softening global economy and anticipated
federal budget tensions, allocations to DoD procurement are
unlikely to increase significantly. This suggests that the DoD will

continue to focus on affordability strategies emphasizing network-centric operations, long range strike, unmanned air combat and reconnaissance vehicles, precision guided weapons and
continued privatization of logistics and support activities as a
means to improve overall effectiveness while maintaining control
over costs. The Company’s capabilities and programs are well
suited to provide the military capabilities essential to meet the
challenges facing our nation.
Space and Communications
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
% of Total Company Revenues
Operating Earnings (Loss)
Operating Margins
Research and Development
Contractual Backlog

2002

2001

2000

$10,967
20%
$«««««357
3.3%
$«««««397
$14,941

$10,364
18%
$«««««619
6.0%
$«««««526
$13,111

$««8,039
16%
$««««(243)
(3.0%)
$«««««526
$13,707

Revenues
Space and Communications segment revenues were $11.0 billion in 2002, compared with $10.4 billion in 2001 and $8.0 billion
in 2000. The segment remains broadly diversified. The contributors to 2002 Space and Communications segment revenues
included five market segments: Integrated Battlespace, Missile
Defense, Human Space Flight and Exploration, Launch and
Satellite and Homeland Security. The increase in revenues from
2001 to 2002 was primarily due to increased activity in Missile
Defense offset by decreases in Launch and Satellite due to
continued market downturn. 2001 revenues were higher than
2000 revenues due primarily to increased activity on Integrated
Battlespace programs and the acquisition of Boeing Satellite
Systems (BSS) in October 2000.
Deliveries of production units were as follows:
Delta II
Delta IV
BSS Satellites

2002

2001

2000

3
1
6

12
–
7

10
–
5

Space and Communications segment revenues for 2003 are
projected to be in the $12 billion range. The greatest growth is
expected in the Integrated Battlespace market as Space and
Communications has become the DoD’s leading industry partner
in executing the military transformation with the capture of the
Future Combat Systems program, Joint Tactical Radio System,
and the Family of Advanced Beyond Line-of-Sight Terminals program. Missile Defense expects continued growth as the Missile
Defense Agency continues its emphasis on the development of
various missile defense capabilities.
Operating Earnings
Space and Communications segment operating earnings for
2002 were $357 million compared with $619 million in 2001 and
$(243) million in 2000, and the related operating margins were
3.3%, 6.0% and (3.0)% for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The 2002 operating results include a $100 million pre-tax charge
to write-down an equity investment in Teledesic, LLC. Also contributing to the 2002 decreased operating earnings was cost
growth on Satellite programs and the continued downturn in the

Launch and Commercial Satellite market. The 2000 operating
results included a pre-tax charge of $505 million associated with
the in-process research and development from the acquisition of
the Hughes space and communications businesses and
Autometric businesses, along with $78 million in costs associated with a Delta III demonstration launch in August 2000.
The 2002 segment operating margins were reduced from 2001
due to factory cost, schedule performance and a satellite contract termination in the commercial satellite business along with
737 AEW&C development cost growth. The reduced 2002
margins were offset by favorable commercial space contract
actions, improved margins for Integrated Battlespace, and
Ground-based Midcourse Defense program performance. The
2001 operating margins were improved over the 2000 operating
margins primarily due to reduced new product development
expenses associated with the Delta IV RS-68 engine as it completed developmental engine certification and transitioned to
production. The Company projects that 2003 operating earnings
will continue to be impacted by new program development expenses but to a lesser degree than in prior years, primarily due
to the transition of the Delta IV launch vehicle into production.
In February 2002, Space and Communications undertook a
reorganization of its commercial satellite manufacturing activities
in response to poor performance compounded by unfavorable
market conditions. The impact to earnings by Satellite program
cost growth was partially offset by favorable contractual actions.
The net impact to the year for BSS was a reduction in operating
earnings of approximately $146 million. Progress has been made
in implementing process improvements and program management best practices, however, factory problems that arise out of
acceptance testing continue to impact existing contracts. As a
result, completion schedules have slipped which has resulted in
exposing the Company to the risk of contract Termination for
Default (TFD) notification.
During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company received a TFD
notification on a commercial satellite contract that had an expected delivery beyond the contractual TFD date. The customer
no longer required the satellite for their current business base.
The Company is currently marketing the satellite, which was
adjusted to the estimated net realizable value. Early in the first
quarter of 2003, the Company passed the TFD dates for two
commercial satellite contracts. Management believes a TFD
situation for each of these contracts is not likely to result in a
material financial impact due to continuing legal, production, and
contractual efforts in work.
Certain launch and satellite contracts include provisions for
replacement launch services or hardware if specified performance criteria are not met. The Company has historically purchased insurance to cover these obligations when allowed under
the terms of the contract. Due to recent events, the current
insurance market reflects unusually high premium rates and also
suffers from a lack of capacity to handle all insurance requirements. Although the Company does not intend to do so, it may
elect to forego the procurement of third-party insurance and,
instead, retain such risks internally. Management believes the
contract cost estimates have sufficient provisions to cover the
expected value for these risks.
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Previously identified market-based risks associated with Delta III
inventory is being mitigated by a combination of reusing inventory on other Delta programs, customer payments provided to
reassign payloads to other launch vehicles, and the retention of
existing customer deposits should those customers terminate
their contract for Delta III launches. At this time the Delta III
inventory is no longer considered a material financial risk.
The Sea Launch venture, in which the Company is a 40% partner with RSC Energia (25%) of Russia, Kvaerner ASA (20%) of
Norway, and KB Yuzhnoye/PO Yuzhmash (15%) of Ukraine, provides ocean-based launch services to commercial satellite customers. The venture had one successful launch in 2002. The
Company’s investment in this venture as of December 31, 2002,
is reported at zero, which reflects the recognition of losses
reported by Sea Launch in prior years. The venture incurred
losses in 2002, due to the relatively low volume of launches,
reflecting a depressed satellite market. The Company has financial exposure with respect to the venture, which relates to guarantees by the Company provided to certain Sea Launch
creditors, performance guarantees provided by the Company to
a Sea Launch customer of $33 million and financial exposure
related to accounts receivable/inventory of $253 million. The
exposures related to guarantees are included in the Off-Balance
Sheet Arrangements discussion and disclosed in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

tectures to support various business opportunities including
Future Combat Systems, Joint Tactical Radio System, FAB-T
and Global Missile Defense. A major contributor to the
Company’s support of these DoD transformation programs is
the investment in the Boeing Integration Center where the
Company’s Network Centric Operations concepts are developed
in partnership with its customers. The Company also will
continue to make focused investments that will lead to the
development of next-generation space intelligence systems.
Space and Communications research and development expense, excluding in-process research and development, was
$397 million in 2002 compared to $526 million in 2001 and
2000. Significant investment in development programs at the
Space and Communications segment continued during 2002.
Company-sponsored research and development expenditures
supported the development of the Delta IV launch vehicle. Delta IV
development expense has been reduced by the U.S. Government’s participation in developing the Evolved Expendable Launch
Vehicle (EELV). AEW&C System research and development
program expenses decreased as the effort transitioned to work
that is specifically required for the Australian Wedgetail program.
Company-sponsored research and development levels are
expected to decline in 2003 due to the transition of the Delta IV
launch vehicle into production.
Backlog

The Company and Lockheed Martin are 50-50 partners in United
Space Alliance, which is responsible for all ground processing of
the Space Shuttle fleet and for space-related operations with the
U.S. Air Force. United Space Alliance also performs modifications, testing and checkout operations that are required to ready
the Space Shuttle for launch. United Space Alliance operations
are performed under cost-plus-type contracts. The Company’s
proportionate share of joint venture earnings is recognized as
income. The segment’s operating earnings include earnings of
$68 million, $72 million, and $60 million for 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively, attributable to United Space Alliance.
On February 1, 2003, the country experienced the tragic loss of
Space Shuttle Columbia and its seven-person crew. The
Company is assisting NASA to determine the cause of this accident. This accident did not impact the Company’s results of
operations for 2002, and it is too early to determine the effect on
the Company’s business operations for 2003 and beyond.
Research and Development
Within the Space and Communications businesses the Company
continued investing in the new Delta IV expendable launch vehicle
which resulted in its successful inaugural commercial launch in
November of 2002. This product gives the Company greater
access to a portion of the launch market that was previously
unavailable with the Delta II rocket alone.
In the communications market, the Company is investing to
enable connectivity between existing air/ground platforms,
increase communications availability and bandwidth through
more robust space systems, and leverage innovative communications concepts. Investments were made in Global Situational
Awareness concepts to develop communication system archi-
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Total contractual backlog for Space and Communications was
$14.9 billion at December 31, 2002 and $13.1 billion at
December 31, 2001 and $13.7 billion at December 31, 2000.
Space and Communications contractual backlog increased by
14% in 2002 compared to 2001. The 2002 increase is primarily
due to orders for Proprietary Programs, an order by the
Department of Transportation for Airport Security, a NASA award
for space flight payload processing and orders for Delta IV
launch vehicles. This increase was partially offset by the declines
in commercial satellite backlog due to decreases in new orders
and sales on existing orders.
Business Environment and Trends
Overview Space and Communications products and services,
as part of Integrated Defense Systems, will span five distinctive
markets: Integrated Battlespace, Missile Defense, Homeland
Security, Human Space Flight and Exploration, and Commercial
Launch and Satellite. Each of these markets has unique
customers and requirements, and therefore, will be discussed
individually below.
Integrated Battlespace U.S. military force structure is shrinking,
its platforms are aging, and the tempo of operations and
engagements worldwide remains high. Several of the recent
United States’ military actions have demonstrated the value of
systems solutions that allow all systems to communicate with
each other; operate over longer ranges; and are unmanned and
provide the advantages of precision, persistence and selective
engagement.
Refer to Military Aircraft and Missile Systems Business
Environment and Trends beginning on page 52 for further
discussion on Military Transformation.

Missile Defense Funding for the missile defense market is primarily driven by the U.S. Government Missile Defense Agency
(MDA) budget. The primary thrusts in this market are the continued
development and deployment of theater missile defense systems
and the Ground-based Missile Defense (GMD) program. The
overall MDA missile defense budget is approximately $8 billion.
There is continued Congressional support for development of
strong missile defense capabilities as evidenced by the fact that
the fiscal year 2003 budgets were fully funded in all four defense
committees by Congress.
In January 2002, a new GMD Program Strategy was released in
which the MDA stated their objective to put a Test Bed capability
in place by September 2004. This Test Bed would allow critical
testing of the Ground-based Midcourse Defense segment along
with the addition of other systems and sensors into the test
scenario. These new requirements for a Test Bed and Development Program were baselined by the Company and the U.S.
Government in 2002. The resulting contract change was finalized in December 2002. Additionally on December 17, 2002,
President George W. Bush called for our nation’s missile defense
capabilities to move from the test only category into a deployed
system. The Company, in conjunction with MDA, has initiated
efforts to fulfill the direction of the President.
Through our leadership position on the Missile Defense National
Team and our prime contractor role on the Ground-based
Midcourse Defense segment program and on the Airborne Laser
program, Space and Communications is positioned to maintain
its role as MDA’s #1 contractor.
Homeland Security Since the events of September 11, 2001,
the world has permanently changed. The President quickly
issued an executive order establishing an Office of Homeland
Security. This office was officially designated as a cabinet level
department led by Governor Tom Ridge on January 24, 2003.
This department will be responsible for a budget of nearly $40
billion annually with a workforce of 170,000 consolidating from
22 disparate agencies. Over the past year, the Company has
aligned internally to meet the challenges of the new threat. In
June 2002, the Company was chosen to lead the team that
installed explosive detection technology for baggage screening in
all U.S. airports by December 31, 2002. This was the largest
Homeland Security contract awarded to date, representing one
of the largest short-term projects in government history. The
Company is focusing on the federal Homeland Security marketplace, and will leverage its experience and capabilities in network centric operations to enhance the solutions for Homeland
Security opportunities.
Human Space Flight and Exploration The total human space
flight and exploration market is forecasted to be relatively flat
over the next ten years. This forecast is based on budget projections for NASA, the primary customer in this market. But within
this flat forecast the Company is observing changes in direction
and emphasis with the establishment of a new vision and mission. Over the past year, NASA has developed a new Integrated
Space Transportation Plan (ISTP) to implement their new vision.
This plan is designed to benefit the International Space Station,
Space Shuttle program, and the agency’s science and research
objectives. The new ISTP dedicates more resources to the

space station program, provides additional funding to extend the
life and enhance the safety and reliability of the agency’s orbiter
fleet, boosts funding for science-based payloads and research,
and restructures NASA’s Space Launch Initiative. The Space
Launch Initiative will now focus on the development of a crew
transport vehicle to ferry space station crewmembers, along with
a continued technology effort to identify future reusable launch
vehicle technologies. The Company is well positioned to join with
NASA to help realize their vision using the expertise the
Company has gained from its prime contractor role on the
Space Shuttle program and the International Space Station and
an integral player in the Space Launch Initiative program.
As NASA’s investigation of the Columbia accident continues the
Company may see some budget reprioritizing, but it is far too
early in the investigation to speculate on that. What we do know
is that this administration is committed to finding the cause of
the accident, fixing it, and successfully returning the Space
Shuttle fleet back to operational status. We will participate fully
in these efforts.
Commercial Launch and Satellite The commercial market has
softened significantly since the late 1990s in conjunction with the
downturn in the telecommunications industry. These markets are
now characterized by overcapacity, commodity pricing and limited near term opportunities. The recovery in the commercial
satellite market may take several years at which time we believe
the market will stabilize in the 15-20 satellites per year range.
This recovery in satellite orders should also produce new opportunities in the launch services business. We have taken aggressive actions to right size and restructure our organizations to
meet the future commercial demand, while continuing to meet
our government customer requirements. In addition, we have
worked diligently over the last year to improve processes in our
quality, engineering and manufacturing disciplines. We believe
Boeing Satellite Systems and Boeing Launch Services (Delta II,
III, IV and Sea Launch) are positioned to bring unique and competitive offerings to our commercial customers as their requirements for new or replacement satellites resurfaces.
Boeing Capital Corporation
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
Operating Earnings
Operating Margins
Debt
Debt-to-Equity Ratio

2002

2001

2000

$«««994
$«««482
48.5%
$9,465
5.7-to-1

$«««815
$«««562
69.0%
$7,295
5.3-to-1

$«««545
$«««397
72.8%
$4,318
6.4-to-1

Revenues
Revenues for BCC consisted principally of income earned on
portfolio assets (direct finance leases, operating leases, notes
receivable and investments). The major revenue components
include commercial aircraft and commercial equipment financing.
Interest expense on debt is not included in BCC’s operating
earnings as the Company reports interest expense below operating earnings on the consolidated statements of operations.
However, interest expense of $410 million, $324 million, and
$229 million was associated with debt relating to BCC financing
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activities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000. Beginning in 2003, interest expense will be reported as a
component of operating earnings for BCC.
Operating revenues for BCC were $994 million in 2002, compared with $815 million in 2001 and $545 million in 2000. A
larger portfolio, resulting from new business volume and portfolio
transfers from Boeing over the last two years, is primarily
responsible for the increased revenues in 2002 and 2001.

Other pre-tax charges of $119 million related to valuations of
other assets in the portfolio during the year ended December
31, 2002. Included in this amount was a $66 million impairment
charge recorded during the fourth quarter of 2002 on the return
of 24 717s to the Company by AMR Corporation.
The total BCC portfolio was $11.8 billion as of December 31,
2002, compared with $9.2 billion as of December 31, 2001. At
December 31, 2002, BCC’s debt-to-equity ratio was 5.7-to-1,
compared with 5.3-to-1 at December 31, 2001.

Operating Earnings
Operating earnings for BCC were $482 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, compared with $562 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily
attributable to the impairment and valuation allowance charges
recognized in 2002, offset by additional income due to the
growth in the portfolio. Operating earnings for 2001 were $562
million compared with $397 million in 2000. The growth in
investment in financing assets was principally responsible for the
increase. The increase was partially offset by higher provision for
losses, and higher operating and other expenses.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recognized a pre-tax expense of $426 million primarily in recognition of the deterioration of aircraft values and customer credit
ratings. Total impairment expense recognized in 2001 and 2000
was not significant.
(Dollars in millions)

Increased valuation allowance
Impairment of investment
in equipment trust certificates
Impairment of joint venture aircraft
Other asset impairments

BCC
Segment

Other
Segment Consolidated

$100

$««80

$180

13
48
«39
$200

66

79
48
119
$426

80
$226

A pre-tax expense of $180 million was recorded to increase the
valuation allowance based on the Company’s assessment of the
adequacy of customer financing reserves.
A specific pre-tax impairment of $79 million was recorded during
the third quarter of 2002 related to a long-held investment in
ETCs secured by aircraft on lease to United Airlines (“United”).
The write-down was based on the decline in credit ratings of
United, the long-term maturity of the investment and the decline
in the underlying aircraft collateral valuations. The ultimate realization of this investment will depend upon legal developments in
United’s bankruptcy proceedings and United’s ability to meet its
related contractual obligations.
A specific pre-tax impairment of $48 million was recorded
related to a joint venture investment that was established to
lease and eventually convert 24 727 passenger aircraft to full
cargo configuration. Based on the Company’s assessment of
current market conditions and the average age of the aircraft
(averaging over twenty years old), the Company recorded an
impairment for its share of the adjustment to estimated fair market value for the joint venture’s 727 aircraft. The BCC portfolio
does not include any 727 aircraft other than those held through
this joint venture.
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BCC acts as a captive finance subsidiary for the Company and
provides market-based lease and loan financing primarily to airlines that purchase or lease commercial aircraft manufactured by
the Company or others. BCC competes for aircraft finance business with other finance companies, commercial banks, insurance companies and other financial institutions.
BCC also competes in the commercial equipment leasing and
finance markets, primarily in the United States, against a number
of large ticket competitors, mainly heavily capitalized leasing
companies and relationship banks. Approximately 22% of BCC’s
portfolio has been generated from commercial equipment leasing and financing activities. Commercial equipment consists of
executive aircraft, machine tools and production equipment,
containers and marine equipment, chemical, oil and gas equipment and other equipment. New business volume of BCC is
funded with debt obtained in the capital markets, cash from
operations, and contributions from the Company.
Published sources and recent market transactions indicate that
values for various aircraft types used as collateral in BCC’s portfolio remained depressed. At the same time, the credit ratings of
many airlines, particularly in the United States, have continued to
deteriorate. A substantial portion of BCC’s portfolio is concentrated among commercial airline customers. Certain customers
have filed for bankruptcy protection or requested lease or loan
restructurings; these negotiations were in various stages as of
December 31, 2002. These bankruptcies or restructurings could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s earnings, cash
flows or financial position.
United filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on December 9,
2002. As of the filing date, the Company has not reached agreement with United on a restructuring of its various transactions.
Future negotiations may result in changes to the agreements
under which United has agreed to perform. So long as United
remains in bankruptcy, United has the right to reject or abandon
its transaction with the Company. In the event that future negotiations or proceedings result in the return of a substantial number
of aircraft, there could be a material adverse effect on the
Company’s earnings, cash flows or financial position at least until
such time as the aircraft are sold or redeployed for adequate
consideration.
As of December 31, 2002, there were $311 million of assets,
principally commercial aircraft that were held for sale or re-lease
at BCC, of which $308 million were not yet identified with a firm
contract to sell or place on lease. Additionally, approximately
$207 million of BCC’s assets are currently scheduled to come off

lease in 2003. The inability of BCC to sell such assets or place
such assets into revenue-generating service could pose a
potential risk to results of operations should some of these
assets be deemed to be impaired.
Airlines regularly utilize a special purpose entity (SPE) known as
a Pass Through Trust. The Pass Through Trust enables the airline to aggregate a large number of aircraft secured notes into
one trust vehicle, facilitating the issuance of larger bonds called
Pass Through Certificates (PTCs). The most common form of
PTCs issued by airlines is the EETCs. EETCs provide investors
with tranched rights to cash flows from a financial instrument, as
well as a collateral position in the related asset. While the underlying classes of equipment notes vary by maturity and/or coupon
depending upon tenor or level of subordination of the specific
equipment notes and their corresponding claim on the aircraft,
the basic function of the Pass Through Trust in an EETC remains:
to passively hold separate debt investments to enhance liquidity
for investors, whom in turn pass this liquidity benefit directly to
the airline in the form of lower coupon and/or greater debt
capacity. BCC participates in several EETCs as an investor. The
EETC investments are related to customers the Company
believes have less than investment-grade credit.
BCC also utilizes certain SPEs to isolate individual transactions
for legal liability, perfect security interest from the perspective of
the Company and a third-party lender in certain leveraged transactions, and realize certain income and sales tax benefits. These
SPEs are fully consolidated in the Company’s financial statements.
In December 2002, BCC completed an asset securitization that
raised $299 million of secured debt through the use of a banksponsored Commercial Paper Conduit (C/P Conduit). As collateral for the debt, BCC transferred $331 million of assets from its
portfolio to the C/P Conduit. These portfolio assets consisted of
the cash flows associated with specific financing leases, notes
and other receivables and operating leases. BCC also assigned
to the C/P Conduit perfected security interests in $278 million of
collateral underlying the transferred portfolio assets. The collateral pledged indirectly provides the C/P Conduit with additional
protection in the event that the cash flows from the leases and
notes are insufficient to cover the total debt outstanding under
the transaction. The secured debt and securitized assets remain
on BCC’s balance sheet.
Other
Other segment earnings were $(424) million in 2002, $(354) million in 2001, and $43 million in 2000. As of December 31, 2002
and 2001, operating earnings of $44 million and $23 million
were attributable to four C-17 transport aircraft on lease to the
United Kingdom Royal Air Force. These leases began in 2001.
Offsetting the operating earnings of the C-17 leases were
increases in losses during both 2002 and 2001 primarily due to
increases in intercompany guarantees and asset impairments,
lease accounting differences and other subsidies related to BCC.
See Note 24. Research and development expense attributable
to the Other segment was $129 million in 2002, $294 million in
2001, and $84 million in 2000. Research and development
activities in the Other segment relate primarily to Connexion by
BoeingSM and, to a lesser extent, Air Traffic Management.

Astro Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, operates
as a captive insurance company. This subsidiary enables the
Company’s exposures to be insured at the lowest possible cost
to the Company regardless of whether the market is overpriced.
In addition, it provides flexibility to the Company in handling its
changing risk financing needs and provides access to the reinsurance markets. Currently, Astro Ltd. insures aviation liability,
workers compensation, general liability, property, as well as various smaller risk liability insurances.
Events of September 11, 2001
On September 11, 2001, the United States was the target of
severe terrorist attacks that involved the use of U.S. commercial
aircraft manufactured by the Company. These attacks resulted
in a significant loss of life and property and caused major disruptions in business activities and in the U.S. economy overall.
See Note 3.
Employees and Labor Relations
As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s principal collective
bargaining agreements were with the International Association
of Machinists and Aerospace Workers (IAM) representing 20%
of employees (current agreements expiring in May 2004, and
September and October 2005); the Society of Professional
Engineering Employees in Aerospace (SPEEA) representing
13% of employees (current agreements expiring February 2004
and December 2005); and the United Automobile, Aerospace
and Agricultural Implement Workers of America (UAW) representing 4% of employees (current agreements expiring May
2003, April 2004, and September 2005).
The Company’s workforce level was 166,000 at December 31,
2002.
Contingent Items
Various legal proceedings, claims and investigations related to
products, contracts and other matters are pending against
the Company. Most significant legal proceedings are related to
matters covered by insurance. Major contingencies are discussed below.
The Company is subject to federal and state requirements for
protection of the environment, including those for discharge of
hazardous materials and remediation of contaminated sites. Due
in part to their complexity and pervasiveness, such requirements
have resulted in the Company being involved with related legal
proceedings, claims and remediation obligations since the 1980s.
The Company routinely assesses, based on in-depth studies,
expert analyses and legal reviews, its contingencies, obligations
and commitments for remediation of contaminated sites, including assessments of ranges and probabilities of recoveries from
other responsible parties who have and have not agreed to a
settlement and of recoveries from insurance carriers. The
Company’s policy is to immediately accrue and charge to current expense identified exposures related to environmental
remediation sites based on estimates of investigation, cleanup
and monitoring costs to be incurred.
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The costs incurred and expected to be incurred in connection
with such activities have not had, and are not expected to have,
a material impact to the Company’s financial position. With
respect to results of operations, related charges have averaged
less than 2% of annual net earnings. Such accruals as of
December 31, 2002, without consideration for the related contingent recoveries from insurance carriers, are less than 2% of
total liabilities.
Because of the regulatory complexities and risk of unidentified
contaminated sites and circumstances, the potential exists for
environmental remediation costs to be materially different from
the estimated costs accrued for identified contaminated sites.
However, based on all known facts and expert analyses, the
Company believes it is not reasonably likely that identified environmental contingencies will result in additional costs that would
have a material adverse impact to the Company’s financial position or operating results and cash flow trends.
The Company is subject to U.S. Government investigations from
which civil, criminal or administrative proceedings could result.
Such proceedings could involve claims by the government for
fines, penalties, compensatory and treble damages, restitution
and/or forfeitures. Under government regulations, a company, or
one or more of its operating divisions or subdivisions, can also
be suspended or debarred from government contracts, or lose
its export privileges, based on the results of investigations. The
Company believes, based upon all available information, that the
outcome of any such government disputes and investigations
will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or
continuing operations.
In 1991, the U.S. Navy notified McDonnell Douglas (now a subsidiary of the Company) and General Dynamics Corporation (the
“Team”) that it was terminating for default the Team’s contract for
development and initial production of the A-12 aircraft. The
Team filed a legal action to contest the Navy’s default termination, to assert its rights to convert the termination to one for “the
convenience of the Government,” and to obtain payment for
work done and costs incurred on the A-12 contract but not paid
to date. As of December 31, 2002, inventories included approximately $583 million of recorded costs on the A-12 contract,
against which the Company has established a loss provision of
$350 million. The amount of the provision, which was established in 1990, was based on McDonnell Douglas’s belief, supported by an opinion of outside counsel, that the termination for
default would be converted to a termination for convenience,
and that the best estimate of possible loss on termination for
convenience was $350 million.
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On August 31, 2001, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims issued a
decision after trial upholding the U.S. Government’s default termination of the A-12 contract on the grounds that the Team
could not meet the revised contract schedule unilaterally
imposed by the U.S. Government. This followed an earlier trial
court decision in favor of the contractors and reversal of that initial decision on appeal. The Team appealed that decision to the
Court of Appeals and is awaiting a decision. The Team also
obtained a stay of the trial court’s judgment to prevent the
Navy from collecting any amounts prior to the decision by the
Court of Appeals.
If, after all judicial proceedings have ended, the courts determine
that a termination for default was appropriate, the Company
would incur an additional loss of approximately $275 million,
consisting principally of remaining inventory costs and adjustments, and would be required to pay the U.S. Government onehalf of the unliquidated progress payments of $1,350 million plus
statutory interest from February 1991 (currently totaling approximately $1,040 million). The loss to the Company would total
approximately $1,465 million in pre-tax charges.
Although the Court of Federal Claims sustained the default termination in 2001, the Company believes that the court’s ruling is
contrary to law and fact and that the loss provision established
by McDonnell Douglas in 1990 continues to provide adequately
for the reasonably possible reduction in value of A-12 net contracts in process as of December 31, 2002. Final resolution of
the A-12 litigation will depend upon the outcome of further proceedings or possible negotiations with the U.S. Government.
The Company is a defendant in seven employment discrimination matters in which class certification is sought or has been
granted. These matters are pending in Seattle, Los Angeles,
St. Louis, Tulsa, and Wichita. The Company intends to continue
its aggressive defense of these cases. It is not possible to predict what impact, if any, these cases could have on the financial
statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidation The consolidated financial statements of The Boeing Company, together with its subsidiaries
(herein referred to as the “Company”) include the accounts of all
majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in joint ventures for
which the Company does not have control, but has the ability to
exercise significant influence over the operating and financial
policies, are accounted for under the equity method. Accordingly,
the Company’s share of net earnings and losses from these ventures is included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made
to prior periods to conform with current reporting.
Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make
assumptions and estimates that directly affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statments. Significant
estimates for which changes in the near term are considered
reasonably possible and that may have a material impact on
the financial statements are addressed in these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
Contract accounting Contract accounting is used predominantly by the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems and Space
and Communications segments. The majority of the business
conducted in these segments is performed under contracts for
the U.S. Government and foreign governments that extend over
a number of years.
The process to estimate the total contract cost-revenue relationship results in the development of gross margin and cost of
sales percentages. These percentages are utilized in the recognition of earnings and are significant factors in contract accounting. The amount reported as cost of sales is determined by
applying the estimated cost of sales percentages to the amount
of revenue recognized for each contract.
Revenues under contracts with fixed prices are generally recognized as deliveries are made. For certain fixed-price contracts
that require substantial performance over an extended period
before deliveries begin, revenues are recorded based on the
attainment of performance milestones. Revenues under contracts with terms that reimburse for costs incurred plus an
agreed upon profit are recorded as costs are incurred. Contracts
may contain provisions to earn incentive and award fees if targets are achieved. Incentive and award fees that can be reasonably estimated are recorded over the performance period of the
contract. Incentive and award fees that cannot be reasonably
estimated are recorded when awarded.
Program accounting The Company uses program accounting
for its 7-series commercial airplane products. Program accounting is a method of accounting for the costs of certain products
manufactured for delivery under production type contracts where
profitability is realized over multiple contracts and years. Under
program accounting, inventoriable production costs (including
overhead), program tooling costs and warranty costs are accumulated and charged to revenue by program instead of by individual units or contracts. A program consists of the estimated

number of units (accounting quantity) of a product to be produced in a continuing, long-term production effort for delivery
under existing and anticipated contracts. To establish the
relationship of revenue to cost of sales, program accounting
requires estimates of (a) the number of units to be produced and
sold in a program, (b) the period over which the units can reasonably be expected to be produced, and (c) their expected
selling prices, production costs, program tooling, and warranty
costs for the total program.
The Company recognizes revenue for commercial airplanes
when a unit is completed and accepted by the customer. The
revenue recognized is the price negotiated with the customer
including special features adjusted by an escalation formula. The
amount reported as cost of sales is determined by applying the
estimated cost of sales percentage for the total remaining program to the amount of revenue recognized for the quarter.
Inventories Inventoried costs on commercial aircraft programs
and long-term contracts include direct engineering, production
and tooling costs, and applicable overhead, not in excess of
estimated net realizable value. In accordance with industry practice, inventoried costs include amounts relating to programs and
contracts with long production cycles, a portion of which is not
expected to be realized within one year.
Because of the higher unit production costs experienced at the
beginning of a new airplane program (known as the learning
curve effect) and the substantial investment required for initial
tooling and special equipment, the costs incurred for production
of the early units in the program will exceed the amount reported
as cost of sales for those units. This difference known as
deferred production costs is included in inventory along with
unamortized tooling costs.
Commercial spare parts and general stock materials are stated
at average cost not in excess of net realizable value.
Research and development Research and development costs
are expensed as incurred unless the costs are related to a contractual arrangement. Costs that are incurred pursuant to a contractual arrangement are recorded as inventory costs and charged
to cost of products and services under contract accounting.
Share-based compensation The Company uses a fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based compensation
provided to its employees in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation. The Company values stock options
issued based upon an option-pricing model and recognizes this
value as an expense over the period in which the options vest.
Potential distributions from the ShareValue Trust described in
Note 17 have been valued based upon an option-pricing model,
with the related expense recognized over the life of the trust.
Share-based expense associated with Performance Shares
described in Note 17 is determined based on the market value
of the Company’s stock at the time of the award applied to the
maximum number of shares contingently issuable based on
stock price and is amortized over a five-year period.
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Income taxes Provisions for federal, state and foreign income
taxes are calculated on reported financial statement pre-tax
income based on current tax law and also include, in the current
period, the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from
those used previously in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provisions differ from the amounts currently payable
because certain items of income and expense are recognized in
different time periods for financial reporting purposes than for
income tax purposes.
Postretirement plans The Company sponsors various pension
plans covering substantially all employees. The Company also
provides postretirement benefit plans other than pensions, consisting principally of health care coverage, to eligible retirees and
qualifying dependents. The liabilities and annual income or
expense of the Company’s pension and other postretirement
plans are determined using methodologies that involve several
actuarial assumptions, the most significant of which are the discount rate, the long-term rate of asset return, and medical trend
(rate of growth for medical costs). Not all net periodic pension
income or expense is recognized in net earnings in the year
incurred because it is allocated to production as product costs,
and a portion remains in inventory at the end of a reporting period.
The Company’s funding policy for pension plans is to contribute,
at a minimum, the statutorily required amount to an irrevocable
trust. Benefits under the plans are generally based on age at
retirement, the employee’s annual earnings indexed at the U.S.
Treasury 30-year bond rate, and years of service. The actuarial
cost method used in determining the net periodic pension cost
is the projected unit credit method.
Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist
of highly liquid instruments, such as certificates of deposit, time
deposits, treasury notes and other money market instruments,
which generally have maturities of less than three months. The
Company has adopted the “Net Bank Method” as described in
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation
No. 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts, in
determining the cash accruals for each month. The “Net Bank
Method” nets the current cash balances by bank and totals all
negative balances to determine the Company’s overdraft position. This accrual is included in accounts payable.
Long-lived assets As of January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets deemed held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. Long-lived
assets held for use are subject to an impairment assessment if
the carrying value is no longer recoverable based upon the
undiscounted future cash flows of the asset. The amount of the
impairment is the difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the asset.
Property, plant and equipment Property, plant and equipment
are recorded at cost, including applicable construction-period
interest, and depreciated principally over the following estimated
useful lives: new buildings and land improvements, from 20 to
45 years; and machinery and equipment, from 3 to 18 years.
The principal methods of depreciation are as follows: buildings
and land improvements, 150% declining balance; and machinery
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and equipment, sum-of-the-years’ digits. The Company periodically evaluates the appropriateness of remaining depreciable
lives assigned to long-lived assets subject to a management
plan for disposition.
Investments Investments are classified as ‘Other assets’ on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. The Company
classifies investments as either operating or non-operating.
Operating investments are strategic in nature, which means they
are integral components of the Company’s operations. Nonoperating investments are those the Company holds for nonstrategic purposes. Earnings from operating investments,
including the Company’s share of income or loss from certain
equity method investments, income from cost method investments, impairment charges on investments, and any gain/loss
on the disposition of investments, are recorded in ‘Income/(loss)
from operating investments, net.’ Earnings from non-operating
investments are included in ‘Other income/(expense), net’ on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Certain investments are accounted for under SFAS No. 115,
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at their fair
values and unrealized gains and losses are reported as part of
‘Accumulated other comprehensive income’ on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Held-to-maturity
securities include enhanced equipment trust certificates and
debentures for which the Company has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are
reported at amortized cost. Debt and equity securities are continually assessed for impairment. Other than temporary losses
on operating investments are recorded in ‘Income/(loss) from
operating investments, net’ and other than temporary losses on
non-operating investments are recorded in ‘Other
income/(expense), net.’
Goodwill and acquired intangibles As of January 1, 2002,
upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, goodwill, which now includes assembled
workforce, and indefinite-lived intangible assets are no longer
amortized. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill was
amortized on a straight-line method over 20 to 30 years.
Assembled workforce was amortized on a straight-line method
over 5 to 15 years. The Company’s indefinite-lived intangible
asset, a tradename, was amortized on a straight-line method
over 20 years.
The Company’s finite-lived acquired intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line method and include the following:
developed technology, 5 to 15 years; product know-how, 30
years; customer base, 10 to 15 years; and data repositories,
10 to 20 years.
Derivatives The Company accounts for derivatives pursuant to
SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended. All derivative instruments are
recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. Changes in
the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized periodically in income or shareholders’ equity (as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income), depending on their
use and designation.

Aircraft valuation
Used aircraft under trade-in agreements The Company enters
into certain trade-in agreements to purchase used aircraft from
customers at a specific price at a future point in time when
those customers purchase new aircraft from the Company. In
the event the Company accepts an aircraft under a trade-in
agreement, the aircraft purchased by the Company serves as
collateral to offset amounts paid by the Company to the customer.
Obligations recorded from trade-in aircraft agreements are
measured as the difference between gross amounts payable to
customers and the estimated fair value of the collateral. The fair
value of collateral is determined using a process based on the
net present value of expected future cash flows from the trade-in
aircraft, assuming the most likely market placement of the aircraft. The first step in this process uses the Company’s assessment of the market for each trade-in aircraft, which in most
instances begins years before the return of the aircraft. There are
several possible markets to which the Company continually pursues opportunities to place used aircraft. These markets include,
but are not limited to, (1) the resale market, which could potentially include the cost of long-term storage, (2) the leasing
market, with the potential for refurbishment costs to meet the
leasing customer’s requirements, or (3) the scrap market.
Collateral valuation varies significantly depending on which market the Company determines is most likely for each aircraft. On
a quarterly basis, the Company updates its valuation analysis
based on the actual activities associated with placing each aircraft into a market. This quarterly collateral valuation process
yields results that are typically lower than residual value estimates by independent sources and tends to more accurately
reflect results upon the actual placement of the aircraft.
Asset valuation for equipment under operating lease, held for
re-lease and collateral on receivables The fair value of owned
assets (equipment under operating leases and assets held for
re-lease) and collateral on receivables is periodically assessed
to determine if the fair value is less than the carrying value.
Differences between carrying value and fair value are considered
in determining the allowance for losses on receivables and, in
certain circumstances, recorded as impairment for owned assets.
The Company uses the average published value from multiple
sources based on the type and age of the aircraft to determine
the fair value of aircraft. Under certain circumstances, the
Company applies judgment based on the attributes of the specific aircraft to determine fair value, usually when the features or
utilization of the aircraft varies significantly from the more generic
aircraft attributes covered by outside publications.
Impairment review for equipment under operating leases and
held for re-lease The Company reviews these assets for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of these assets may not be recoverable. An asset under
operating lease or held for re-lease is considered impaired when
the expected undiscounted cash flow over the remaining useful
life is less than the book value. Various assumptions are used
when determining the expected undiscounted cash flow. These
assumptions include lease rates, lease term(s), periods in which
the asset may be held in preparation for a follow-on lease, maintenance costs, remarketing costs and the life of the asset. The

determination of expected lease rates is generally based on outside publications. The Company uses historical information and
current economic trends to determine the remaining assumptions. When impairment is indicated for an asset, the amount of
impairment loss is the excess of carrying value over fair value.
Allowance for losses on receivables The allowance for losses on
receivables (valuation allowance) is a valuation account used to
provide for potential impairment of receivables on the balance
sheet. The balance is an accounting estimate of probable but
unconfirmed losses in the receivable portfolio. The valuation
allowance relates to two components of receivables: (a) specifically identified receivables that are evaluated individually for
impairment, and (b) pools of receivables that are evaluated for
impairment.
A specific receivable is reviewed for impairment when, based on
current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect amounts due according to the contractual terms of the receivable agreement. Factors considered in
assessing uncollectibility include a customer’s extended delinquency, requests for restructuring and filing for bankruptcy. A
specific impairment allowance is provided based on the difference between the carrying value of the receivable and the estimated fair value of the related collateral.
The Company reviews the adequacy of the general valuation
allowance attributable to the remaining pool of receivables by
assessing both the collateral exposure and the applicable default
rate. Collateral exposure for a particular receivable is the excess
of the carrying value over the applicable collateral value of the
related asset. A receivable with an estimated collateral value in
excess of the carrying value is considered to have no collateral
exposure. The applicable default rate is determined using two
components: customer credit ratings and weighted-average
remaining portfolio term. Credit ratings are identified for each
customer in the portfolio. Customer credit ratings are updated
based on current rating agency information or the Company’s
best estimates.
For each credit rating category, the collateral exposure is multiplied by an applicable historical default rate, yielding a creditadjusted collateral exposure. Historical default rates are
published by Standard & Poor’s reflecting both the customer
credit rating and the weighted-average remaining portfolio term.
The sum of the credit-adjusted collateral exposures generates
an initial estimate of the general valuation allowance. In recognition of the uncertainty of the ultimate loss experience and
relatively long duration of the portfolio, a range of reasonably
possible outcomes of the portfolio’s credit-adjusted collateral
exposure is calculated by varying the applicable default rate by
approximately plus and minus 15%. The valuation allowance
recorded represents the best estimate within the resulting range
of credit-adjusted collateral exposure, factoring in considerations
of risk of individual credits, current and projected economic and
political conditions, and prior loss experience.
Postemployment plans The Company accounts for postemployment benefits, such as severance or job training, under
SFAS No.112, Employer’s Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits. A liability for postemployment benefits is recorded when
payment is probable, the amount is reasonably estimable, and
the obligation relates to rights that have vested or accumulated.
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Note 2 – Standards Issued and Not Yet Implemented
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations, which is effective January 1, 2003.
This standard addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets and the associated retirement costs. The Company has
determined that the implementation of this standard will not have
a material effect on its financial statements.
In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. This standard
requires costs associated with exit or disposal activities to be
recognized when they are incurred. The requirements of SFAS
No. 146 apply prospectively to activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, and as such, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the impact of adopting these new rules until and
unless it undertakes relevant activities in future periods.
In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45 (FIN
45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of the Indebtedness of
Others, which clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5, Accounting
for Contingencies, relating to a guarantor’s accounting for and
disclosures of certain guarantees issued. FIN 45 requires
enhanced disclosures for certain guarantees. It also will require
certain guarantees that are issued or modified after December
31, 2002, including certain third-party guarantees, to be initially
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. For guarantees
issued on or before December 31, 2002, liabilities are recorded
when and if payments become probable and estimable. The
Company expects FIN 45 to have the general effect of delaying
recognition for a portion of the revenue for product sales that are
accompanied by certain third-party guarantees. The financial
statement recognition provisions are effective prospectively, and
the Company cannot reasonably estimate the impact of adopting
FIN 45 until guarantees are issued or modified in future periods,
at which time their results will be initially reported in the financial
statements. See Note 20.
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated
Financial Statements, relating to consolidation of certain entities.
First, FIN 46 will require identification of the Company’s participation in variable interests entities (VIE), which are defined as entities with a level of invested equity that is not sufficient to fund
future activities to permit them to operate on a standalone basis,
or whose equity holders lack certain characteristics of a controlling financial interest. Then for entities identified as VIE, FIN 46
sets forth a model to evaluate potential consolidation based on
an assessment of which party to the VIE, if any, bears a majority
of the exposure to its expected losses, or stands to gain from a
majority of its expected returns. FIN 46 also sets forth certain
disclosures regarding interests in VIE that are deemed significant, even if consolidation is not required. The Company is currently assessing the application of FIN 46 as it relates to its
variable interests. See Note 20.
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Note 3 – Accounting for the Impact of the
September 11, 2001 Terrorist Attacks
On September 11, 2001, the United States was the target of
severe terrorist attacks that involved the use of U.S. commercial
aircraft manufactured by the Company. These attacks resulted in
a significant loss of life and property and caused major disruptions in business activities and in the U.S. economy overall.
To address the widespread financial impact of the attacks, the
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) released Issue No. 01-10,
Accounting for the Impact of Terrorist Attacks of September 11,
2001. This issue specifically prohibits treating costs and losses
resulting from the events of September 11, 2001, as extraordinary items; however, it observes that any portion of these costs
and losses deemed to be unusual or infrequently occurring
should be presented as a separate line item in income from
continuing operations.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
reassessed the impact of the events of September 11, 2001,
and recorded a net reduction to expense of $2 in the caption
‘Impact of September 11, 2001, charges/(recoveries).’ These
adjustments related to the Commercial Airplanes segment.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded
a charge of $935 in the caption ‘Impact of September 11, 2001,
charges/(recoveries).’ Of this charge, $908 is related to the
Commercial Airplanes segment and $27 is related to the Other
segment.
The following table summarizes the expense (reduction to
expense) recorded in the caption ‘Impact of September 11,
2001, charges/(recoveries)’ for the year ended December 31:
Employee severance
717 forward loss
Used aircraft valuation
Inventory valuation
Vendor penalties
Guarantees

2002

2001

$««(5)

$285
250
185
98
68
49
$935

22
(12)
(7)
$««(2)

A description of the nature of the charges incurred as a result of
the events of September 11, 2001, is listed below.
Employee severance The Company incurred employment reductions resulting from the decrease in aircraft demand, which
directly related to the attacks of September 11, 2001. For the year
ended December 31, 2002, the Company revised its estimate
related to its employee severance obligations and recorded a
reduction to expense of $5. For the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company recorded a charge of $285 related to these
obligations.
717 forward loss As a result of the decrease in aircraft demand
subsequent to September 11, 2001, the Company was forced
to sharply decrease its production rate on multiple airplane programs during the fourth quarter of 2001 due to changes in the
order forecast and customer delivery requirements. Although all
airplane programs were affected by the events of September 11,
2001, through reduced margins on future deliveries, the 717
program was the only program in a forward loss position.

Due to a lack of firm demand for the 717 aircraft subsequent to
September 11, 2001, the Company reduced the program quantity to 135 units from 200 units and decreased the 717 production rate from 3.5 per month to 1.0 per month. This decrease in
the production rate in conjunction with its order quantity reduction significantly impacted the 717 annual revenue and cost
structure. Decreasing the number of airplanes in the program
quantity accelerates tooling and special equipment costs over a
reduced number of units, thereby reducing the gross margin of
the program. As a function of reducing the number of employees
and other production disruptions, costs to be incurred for the
program increased. All of these factors, which were directly
attributable to the events of September 11, 2001, contributed to
the program incurring an additional $250 forward loss. The estimates for the revised accounting quantity assume that the 717
would remain an ongoing program.
Used aircraft valuation The events of September 11, 2001,
resulted in a significant decrease in the market value of used aircraft held for resale as well as asset purchase obligations relating
to trade-in of used aircraft. For the year ended December 31,
2002, the Company recorded a charge of $22 related to a further decrease in used airplane values. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company recorded a charge of $185.
Inventory valuation Subsequent to September 11, 2001,
commercial airline customers worldwide removed a substantial
number of aircraft from service. The ultimate realization of future
sales for specific spare parts held in inventory is highly dependent on the active aircraft fleet in which that spare part supports.
The revised projections for future demand of certain spare parts
indicated that current inventory quantities were in excess of total
expected future demand. For the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company recorded a charge of $98 relating to excess
and obsolete commercial airplane spares inventory.
Vendor penalties The decrease in production rates on certain
commercial airplane models and related products triggered contractual penalty clauses with various vendors and subcontractors. The decrease in production rates resulted directly from the
change in aircraft demand after the events of September 11,
2001. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
revised its estimate related to its outstanding vendor penalties
obligations and recorded a reduction to expense of $12. For the
year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded a
charge of $68 for these penalties.
Guarantee commitments The Company has extended certain
guarantees and commitments, such as asset related guarantees, discussed in Note 20. The events of September 11, 2001,
adversely impacted aircraft market prices and aircraft demand of
customers who are counterparties in these guarantees. For the
year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded a net
reduction to expense of $7 as a result of favorable contract
negotiations. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the
Company recorded a charge of $49 related to the adverse exposure.
Outstanding liabilities As of December 31, 2002, the
Company’s outstanding liabilities attributable to the events of
September 11, 2001, were $146. Of this amount, $53 relates to
liabilities to be primarily settled in cash and the remaining $93

was recorded as asset impairments to reflect the decrease in the
anticipated fair value of aircraft under purchase commitments.
As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding liabilities were $542.
Of this amount, $402 related to liabilities to be primarily settled in
cash and $140 related to used aircraft purchase commitments.
Liabilities to be primarily settled in cash attributable to the events
of September 11, 2001, as of December 31 were as follows:

Employee severance
Vendor penalties
Guarantees

2001

Payments

Change in
Estimate

2002

$285
68
49
$402

$(248)
(44)
(33)
$(325)

$««(5)
(12)
(7)
$(24)

$32
12
9
$53

Ongoing assessment The Company will continue to assess
other losses and costs it might incur in relation to the events of
September 11, 2001. Any costs or adjustments in estimates will
continue to be recognized as a separate component of earnings
from operations entitled ‘Impact of September 11, 2001,
charges/(recoveries).’
Note 4 – Acquisitions
On October 6, 2000, the Company acquired the Hughes
Electronics Corporation (Hughes) space and communications
and related businesses. The acquisition was accounted for under
the purchase method, by which the purchase price was allocated
to the net assets acquired based on their fair values. The original
purchase price was $3,849, initial goodwill was valued at $740
and the other intangible assets were valued at $631. The initial
recording relied on asset and liability values reported by Hughes
as of the date of the acquisition with adjustments based on
preliminary valuation assessments of property and equipment,
purchased intangibles and retirement plan assets and liabilities.
During the period from acquisition to the third quarter of 2001,
the Company completed its assessment of the net assets
acquired and goodwill increased to $2,166. The increased goodwill reflects finalization of fair value assessments for the net assets
acquired and the impact of the Company’s accounting policies
on acquired balances. Changes to the fair value for the net
assets acquired primarily relate to the valuation of acquired longterm contracts and completion of the valuation of property and
equipment. The impact of the Company’s accounting policies on
acquired balances relate primarily to the application of the
Company’s recognition of contract revenue using percentage
completion based on completed work effort.
Note 5 – Goodwill and Acquired Intangibles
Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No.
142. This statement changed the accounting for goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets from an amortization approach
to an impairment-only approach. As a result of the adoption of
SFAS No. 142, the Company recorded a transitional goodwill
impairment charge during the first quarter of 2002 of $2,410
($1,827 net of tax), presented as a cumulative effect of accounting change. This charge related to the Company’s segments as
follows: Space and Communications $1,586; Commercial
Airplanes $430; and Other $394. The Other segment charge
related to Connexion by BoeingSM and Air Traffic Management.

The Boeing Company and Subsidiaries 63

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment model is a two-step
process. First, it requires a comparison of the book value of net
assets to the fair value of the related operations that have goodwill assigned to them. The Company estimates the fair values of
the related operations using discounted cash flows. The cash flow
forecasts are adjusted by an appropriate discount rate derived
from the Company’s market capitalization plus a suitable control
premium at the date of evaluation. If the fair value is determined
to be less than book value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment. In this process, a fair value
for goodwill is estimated, based in part on the fair value of the
operations used in the first step, and is compared to its carrying
value. The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value represents the amount of goodwill impairment. SFAS No. 142
requires goodwill to be tested for impairment annually at the
same time every year, and when an event occurs or circumstances change such that it is reasonably possible that an

impairment may exist. The Company selected April 1 as its
annual testing date.
As a result of the Company’s assessment as of April 1, 2002, no
impairment was indicated and no impairment triggers have been
identified as of December 31, 2002. Effective January 1, 2003,
the Company has reorganized its Military Aircraft and Missile
Systems and Space and Communications segments into Integrated
Defense Systems. This reorganization as well as the impact of
several other variables, such as the decline in the Company’s
stock price, has triggered a goodwill impairment analysis as of
January 1, 2003. The Company is currently completing step one
of this analysis and as of the filing date does not know the
impact, if any, to its financial position and results of operations.
The following tables reconcile net earnings, basic earnings per
share and diluted earnings per share adjusted for SFAS No. 142
for the year ended December 31:

Net earnings:
Net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change
Add back: Goodwill and assembled workforce amortization, net of tax
Add back: Tradename amortization, net of tax
Adjusted net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Adjusted net earnings

2000

$«2,319

$2,826
158
5
2,989
1
$2,990

$2,128
111

$««3.46
0.19
0.01
3.66

$««2.48
0.13

$««3.66

$««2.61

$««3.41
0.19
0.01
3.61

$««2.44
0.13

$««3.61

$««2.57

$«««2.90

2.90
(2.28)
$«««0.62

Diluted earnings per share:
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change
Add back: Goodwill and assembled workforce amortization, net of tax
Add back: Tradename amortization, net of tax
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Adjusted diluted earnings per share

Space and Communications
Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
Other

2001

2,319
(1,827)
$««««492

Basic earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change
Add back: Goodwill and assembled workforce amortization, net of tax
Add back: Tradename amortization, net of tax
Adjusted basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Adjusted basic earnings per share

As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142 and the transition
provisions of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, the
Company reclassified assembled workforce with goodwill,
ceased amortization of goodwill and recorded an impairment
loss. The balance of goodwill subsequent to the recognition of

2002

$«««2.87

2.87
(2.26)
$«««0.61

2,239
$2,239

2.61

2.57

the first quarter 2002 transitional impairment charge discussed
above was $2,751. During the fourth quarter of 2002, goodwill
increased by $9 as a result of an acquisition. The changes in the
carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the year
ended December 31, 2002, were as follows:
December 31
2001

Goodwill
Adjustments (1)

Reclassification
of Assembled
Workforce

Impairment
Losses

December 31
2002

$3,264
1,032
434
397
$5,127

$(115)
4

$133
21

$(1,586)
(430)

$(111)

$154

(394)
$(2,410)

$1,696
627
434
3
$2,760

(1) The goodwill adjustments primarily represent post-acquisition adjustments of deferred tax assets established in purchase accounting relating
to the Hughes acquisition and goodwill related to an acquisition.
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Included in goodwill are certain claims submitted to Hughes for
resolution as contractual purchase price contingencies relating
to the acquisition of Hughes Electronics Corporation space and
communications and related businesses in October 2000. The
Company anticipates finalizing the Hughes purchase price allocation at the conclusion of arbitration procedures related to
these contingencies.
In conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company
reassessed the useful lives and the classification of its finite-lived
acquired intangible assets and determined that no revisions were
necessary. The Company’s finite-lived acquired intangible assets
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the following
weighted-average useful lives:
Weighted-Average
Useful Life

Product know-how
Customer base
Developed technology
Other

30
14
10
12

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of
the Company’s acquired intangible assets as of December 31,
2002 and December 31, 2001, were as follows:

Developed technology
Product know-how
Assembled workforce
Customer base
Other

December 31, 2002

December 31, 2001

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization

$«««566
308

$135
23

106
145
$1,125

14
22
$194

$«««566
308
172
96
105
$1,247

$««75
13
18
8
10
$124

Amortization expense for acquired finite-lived intangible assets
for the year ended December 31, 2002, was $88. Estimated
amortization expense for the five succeeding years are as follows:
Estimated
Amortization
Expense

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

$92
$92
$88
$82
$82

As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, the
Company had one indefinite-lived intangible asset, a trademark,
with a carrying amount of $197.

Note 6 – Earnings per Share
The weighted average number of shares outstanding (in millions)
used to compute earnings per share are as follows:
Basic weighted average
shares outstanding
Dilutive securities:
Stock options
Stock units
ShareValue Trust
Diluted potential common shares
Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding

2002

2001

2000

799.0

816.2

859.5

2.0
7.4
9.4

5.1
5.7
2.3
13.1

5.9
3.4
2.5
11.8

808.4

829.3

871.3

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted
average number of shares outstanding, excluding treasury
shares and the outstanding shares held by the ShareValue Trust.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated based on that same
number of shares plus additional dilutive shares representing
stock distributable under stock option and stock unit plans
computed using the treasury stock method, plus contingently
issuable shares from other share-based plans on an as-if
converted basis.
Options to purchase 22.9, 10.8 and 9.3 shares of common stock
were outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, and not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have
been antidilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively, 19.0, 13.3 and 7.5 units of Performance
Shares were not included in the computation of diluted earnings
per share because the average market price did not exceed, or
was not maintained, above the conversion threshold price. For
the year ended December 31, 2002, potentially distributable
shares held by the ShareValue Trust were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the average
market price did not exceed the threshold price. However, these
options, Performance Shares and ShareValue Trust potentially
distributable shares could be dilutive in the future.
Note 7 – Income Taxes
The provision for taxes on income consisted of the following:
Year ended December 31,

U.S. Federal
Taxes paid or currently payable
Change in deferred taxes
State
Taxes paid or currently payable
Change in deferred taxes
Income tax provision

2002

2001

2000

$256
638
894

$454
166
620

$1,517
(770)
747

(78)
45
(33)
$861

80
38
118
$738

246
(122)
124
$«««871
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The following is a reconciliation of the tax derived by applying
the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% to the earnings before
income taxes and comparing that to the recorded income tax
provision:
Year ended December 31,

U.S. federal statutory tax
Foreign Sales Corporation/
Extraterritorial Income tax benefit
Research benefit
Non-deductibility of goodwill
State income tax provision,
net of effect on U.S. federal tax
Other provision adjustments
Income tax provision

2002

2001

2000

$1,113

$1,247

$1,050

(195)
(28)

(222)
(383)
36

(291)

76
(16)
$«««738

80
(5)
$«««871

(21)
(8)
$«««861

37

The effective income tax rate for 2002 was 27.1% compared
with 20.7% in 2001 and 29.0% in 2000. The 2002 effective
income tax rate of 27.1% varies from the federal statutory tax
rate of 35%, principally due to Foreign Sales Corporation (FSC)
and Extraterritorial Income (ETI) Exclusion tax benefits. This rate
also reflects tax credits, state income taxes and favorable resolution of certain audit issues.
The effective income tax rates of 20.7% for 2001 and 29.0% for
2000 also vary from the federal statutory tax rate principally due
to FSC and ETI benefits. Offsetting these benefits are state
income taxes and the non-deductibility of certain goodwill, principally the goodwill acquired by the acquisition of the aerospace
and defense units from Rockwell International Corporation in
1996. The 2001 income tax rate also reflects a one-time benefit
of $343 reflecting a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) relating to research credit claims on McDonnell Douglas
Corporation fixed price government contracts applicable to the
1986–1992 federal income tax returns.
The components of net deferred tax assets at December 31
were as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

2002

2001

$««9,024
(19)

$«6,181

(4,691)

(3,914)
$«2,267

$««4,314

At December 31, the deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax
liabilities, resulted from temporary differences associated with
the following:
Inventory and long-term contract
methods of income recognition
In-process research and development
related to acquisitions
Pension benefit accruals
Retiree health care accruals
Other employee benefits accruals
Customer and commercial financing
Other comprehensive income provision
(net of valuation allowance of $19)
Net deferred tax assets
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2002

2001

$««1,785

$«1,561

170
(2,079)
1,978
904
(760)

182
(1,798)
1,970
829
(761)

2,316
$««4,314

284
$«2,267

Income taxes have been settled with the IRS for all years
through 1978, and IRS examinations have been completed
through 1991. In connection with these examinations, the
Company disagrees with IRS proposed adjustments, and the
years 1979 through 1987 are in litigation. The IRS examination
for McDonnell Douglas Corporation for the years 1993 through
1995 has been settled and the Company received a refund of
$102 in 2002. The Company believes adequate provision for all
outstanding issues has been made for all open years.
In December 1996, The Boeing Company filed suit in the U.S.
District Court for the Western District of Washington for the
refund of over $400 in federal income taxes and related interest.
If the Company were to prevail, the refund of the amount in dispute would include interest computed to the payment date.
However, the Company cannot predict the likelihood of a favorable outcome. The suit challenged the IRS method of allocating
research and development costs for the purpose of determining
tax incentive benefits on export sales through the Company’s
Domestic International Sales Corporation (DISC) and its FSC for
the years 1979 through 1987. The Company prevailed with the
District Court, but lost an appeals decision with the Ninth Circuit
Court of Appeals. The Company appealed to the Supreme Court
and is awaiting their decision, which is expected in the first half
of 2003. The Company’s financial statements will not be negatively impacted as a result of the suit’s outcome.
Income tax payments, net of tax refunds, were $(49), $1,521
and $405 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Note 8 – Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable at December 31 consisted of the following:
U.S. Government contracts
Commercial contracts
Other
Less valuation allowance

2002

2001

$2,860
1,390
868
(111)
$5,007

$2,597
1,535
1,088
(64)
$5,156

The following table summarizes the Company’s accounts receivable under U.S. Government contracts that were not billable or
related to outstanding claims as of December 31:
Unbillable
Current
Expected to be collected after one year
Claims
Current
Expected to be collected after one year

2002

2001

$340
482
$822

$326
466
$792

$««««7
31
$««38

$««20
55
$««75

Unbillable receivables on U.S. Government contracts arise when
the sales or revenues based on performance attainment, though
appropriately recognized, cannot be billed yet under terms of the
contract. Accounts receivable related to claims are items that
the Company believes are earned, but are subject to uncertainty
concerning their determination or ultimate realization.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, installment receivables due
under U.S. Government and commercial contracts totaled $295
and $185, respectively.
As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, other accounts receivable
included $474 and $450 of reinsurance receivables relating to
Astro Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, that
operates as a captive insurance company. Currently, Astro Ltd.
insures aviation liability, workers compensation, general liability,
property, as well as various other smaller risk liability insurances.

Aircraft financing and commercial equipment financing operating
lease equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated over its
useful life, primarily on a straight-line basis, to an estimated
salvage value.
Commercial equipment consists of executive aircraft, machine
tools and production equipment, containers and marine equipment, chemical, oil and gas equipment and other equipment,
which the Company believes has adequate collateral value.
Customer and commercial financing at December 31 consisted
of the following:

Note 9 – Inventories
Inventories at December 31 consisted of the following:
2002

2001

Commercial aircraft programs
$«««7,665
Long-term contracts in progress
9,695
Commercial spare parts, used aircraft, general
stock materials and other, net of reserves
2,522
19,882
Less advances and progress billings
(13,698)
$«««6,184

$«11,084
7,307
2,629
21,020
(13,461)
$«««7,559

Inventory production costs incurred on in-process and delivered
units in excess of the estimated average cost of such units
determined as described in Note 1 represent deferred production costs. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no
significant excess deferred production costs or unamortized
tooling costs not recoverable from existing firm orders for the
737 Next-Generation and 777 programs.
The unamortized tooling and deferred production costs included
in inventory at December 31 are summarized in the following
table:
Unamortized tooling
737 Next-Generation
777
Deferred production costs
737 Next-Generation
777

Note 10 – Customer and Commercial Financing

2002

2001

$239
709

$305
«821

«57
785

429
863

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the balance of deferred
production costs and unamortized tooling related to the 717,
747, 757 and 767 programs was insignificant.
As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Commercial Airplanes
segment inventory had a small quantity of airplanes that were
completed but unsold. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
these aircraft were valued at $246 and $183.
During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company purchased $508 and $524, respectively, of used aircraft. Used aircraft in inventory totaled $506 and $316 as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Inventory balances included $233 subject to claims or other
uncertainties primarily relating to the A-12 program as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001. See Note 23.

Aircraft financing
Notes receivable
Investment in sales-type/financing leases
Operating lease equipment, at cost,
less accumulated depreciation of
$553 and $337
Commercial equipment financing
Notes receivable
Investment in sales-type/financing leases
Operating lease equipment, at cost, less
accumulated depreciation of $99 and $85
Less valuation allowance

2002

2001

$««2,036
3,529

$««1,401
2,796

4,353

3,843

918
880

1,008
776

837
(342)
$12,211

716
(142)
$10,398

Interest rates on fixed-rate notes ranged from 5.99% to 14.68%,
and effective interest rates on variable-rate notes ranged from
2.40% to 7.42%.
The change in the valuation allowance for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
Valuation
Allowance

Beginning balance – December 31, 2000
Charged to costs and expenses
Reduction in customer and commercial financing assets
Beginning balance – December 31, 2001
Charged to costs and expenses
Reduction in customer and commercial financing assets
Ending balance – December 31, 2002

$(173)
(42)
73
(142)
(219)
19
$(342)

During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, $39 and
$42 were recorded to increase the valuation allowance due to
the normal growth of the customer financing portfolio. However,
during the year ended December 31, 2002, an additional pre-tax
expense of $180 was recorded to increase the valuation allowance
due to deteriorated airline credit ratings and depressed aircraft
values based on the Company’s quarterly assessments of the
adequacy of customer financing reserves.
The valuation allowance includes amounts recorded either as
specific impairment allowances on receivables or general valuation allowances. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, carrying
amounts of impaired receivables were $1,367 and $195, respectively. Specific impairment allowances for losses of $50 and
$11 were allocated to $146 and $55 of impaired receivables as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Remaining
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allowance balances of $292 and $131 were recorded as general
valuation allowances as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
The average recorded investment in impaired receivables as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, was $277 and $155, respectively. Income recognition is generally suspended for receivables
at the date when a full recovery of income and principal becomes
doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when the receivables
become contractually current and performance is demonstrated
by the customer. The amount of interest income recognized on
such receivables during the period in which they were considered impaired was $24 and $7 for the years ended December
31, 2002 and 2001, of which $17 and $4 was recognized on a
cash basis. Interest income recognized on impaired receivables
in 2000 was insignificant.
The components of investment in sales-type/financing leases at
December 31 were as follows:
Minimum lease payments receivable
Estimated residual value of leased assets
Unearned income
Deferred initial direct costs

2002

2001

$«6,183
1,302
(3,098)
22
$«4,409

$«5,221
970
(2,640)
21
$«3,572

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, sales-type/financing leases
and operating leases attributable to aircraft financing included
$1,858 and $1,499 attributable to 717 model aircraft ($597 and
$692 accounted for as operating leases) and $835 and $1,030
attributable to MD-11 model aircraft ($695 and $810 accounted
for as operating leases).
Aircraft financing is collateralized by security in the related asset,
and the Company has not experienced problems in accessing
such collateral. However, the value of the collateral is closely tied
to commercial airline performance and may be subject to
reduced valuation with market decline. The operating lease aircraft category primarily includes new and used jet and commuter aircraft. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, aircraft
financing operating lease equipment included $786 and $510 of
equipment available for re-lease. During 2002, AMR Corporation
returned 24 717s to the Company. As of December 31, 2002,
two of the returned aircraft have been placed out on lease and
22 of the returned aircraft have firm commitments to be placed,
subject to completion of modifications. The 22 aircraft with firm
commitments are classified as equipment available for re-lease.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, impairment charges of
$117 were recorded in operating earnings. This amount included
a $66 charge on the 717s returned to the Company by AMR
Corporation recorded during the fourth quarter of 2002. These
impairments primarily resulted from deteriorated aircraft values
and airline customer credit ratings for sales-type/financing lease
assets and reduced estimated cash flows for operating lease
assets. Impairments for the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000, were not significant.
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See Note 21 for a discussion regarding the creditworthiness of
counterparties in customer and commercial financing arrangements.
Scheduled payments on customer and commercial financing are
as follows:

Year

Principal
Payments on
Notes Receivable

Sales-Type/
Financing
Lease
Payments
Receivable

Operating
Lease
Payments
Receivable

$376
798
280
289
322
889

$«««561
539
513
485
452
3,633

$«««497
413
380
341
257
1,038

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
Beyond 2007

Customer and commercial financing assets that are leased by
the Company under capital leases and have been subleased
to others totaled $533 and $437 as of December 31, 2002
and 2001.
Note 11 – Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment at December 31 consisted of the
following:
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

2002

2001

$««««««461
9,081
11,105
837
21,484
(12,719)
$«««8,765

$««««««489
8,598
10,642
1,099
20,828
(12,369)
$«««8,459

Depreciation expense was $1,094, $1,140 and $1,159 for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Interest capitalized as construction-period property, plant and
equipment costs amounted to $71, $72 and $70 for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Rental expense for leased properties was $519, $318 and $280
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. These expenses, substantially all minimum rentals,
are net of sublease income. Minimum rental payments under
operating and capital leases with initial or remaining terms of one
year or more aggregated $1,915 and $67, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Payments, net of sublease
amounts, due during the next five years are as follows:
Operating leases
Capital leases

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

$349
30

$284
22

$213
5

$198
3

$175
2

Note 12 – Investments
Joint ventures and other investments All investments are
recorded in other assets. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
other assets included $124 and $274 attributable to investments
in joint ventures. This change is attributable to a joint venture
investment that was acquired and consolidated in 2002. The
Company also held other non-marketable securities of $103 and
$274 at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
The principal joint venture arrangements are United Space
Alliance; HRL Laboratories, LLC; APB Winglets Company, LLC;
BATA Leasing, LLC; and Sea Launch. The Company has a 50%
partnership with Lockheed Martin in United Space Alliance,
which is responsible for all ground processing of the Space
Shuttle fleet and for space-related operations with the U.S. Air
Force. United Space Alliance also performs modifications, testing and checkout operations that are required to ready the
Space Shuttle for launch. The Company is entitled to 33% of the
earnings from HRL Laboratories, LLC, which conducts applied
research in the electronics and information sciences; and creates
new products and services for space, telecommunications,
defense and automotive applications. The Company has a 45%
ownership of APB Winglets Company, LLC, which was established for the purposes of designing, developing, manufacturing,
installing, certifying, retrofitting, marketing, selling, and providing
after-sales support with respect to winglets for retrofit aircraft.
The Company has a 50% partnership with American Trans Air,
Inc. in BATA Leasing, LLC, which was established to acquire aircraft and market and lease the aircraft to a third parties.
The Sea Launch venture, in which the Company is a 40% partner
with RSC Energia (25%) of Russia, Kvaerner ASA (20%) of Norway,
and KB Yuzhnoye/PO Yuzhmash (15%) of Ukraine, provides

ocean-based launch services to commercial satellite customers.
The venture had one successful launch in 2002.The Company’s
investment in this venture as of December 31, 2002, is reported
at zero, which reflects the recognition of losses reported by Sea
Launch in prior years. The venture incurred losses in 2002, due
to the relatively low volume of launches, reflecting a depressed
satellite market. The Company has financial exposure with
respect to the venture, which relates to guarantees by the
Company provided to certain Sea Launch creditors, performance
guarantees provided by the Company to a Sea Launch customer
and financial exposure related to accounts receivable/inventory
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. See Note 20.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, a $100 impairment
charge was recorded to write off a cost-method investment in
Teledesic, LLC, which stopped work on its satellite constellation
and announced its intent to reduce staff. In addition, the
Company recorded a $48 impairment charge related to its BATA
Leasing, LLC, joint venture investment. This charge was the
Company’s share of the adjustment to estimated fair market
value for the joint venture’s 727 aircraft.
Investments in debt and equity securities The following table
shows the impact of investments accounted for pursuant to
SFAS No. 115. Available-for-sale securities are recorded in other
assets at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains/losses of available-for-sale securities are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income; however, losses deemed other than
temporary are recorded in net earnings. Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost. The unrealized gains/losses
of held-to-maturity securities are not recorded in the consolidated financial statements and are shown in the table below for
informational purposes only.

Investments consisted of the following at December 31:
2002
Cost

Available-for-Sale
Equity
Debt
Held-to-Maturity
Debt

$««««5
4
490
$499

Gross
Unrealized
Gain

Gross
Unrealized
Loss

$4

$4

There were no gross unrealized gains as of December 31, 2001.
Included in held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized
cost as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, were $455 and $128
of equipment trust certificates (ETCs), of which $455 and $52
were enhanced equipment trust certificates (EETCs). EETCs are
secured by aircraft on lease to commercial airlines. EETCs provide investors with tranched rights to cash flows from a financial
instrument, as well as a collateral position in the related asset.
While the underlying classes of equipment notes vary by maturity and/or coupon depending upon tenor or level of subordination of the specific equipment notes and their corresponding
claim on the aircraft, the basic function of an EETC remains: to
passively hold separate debt investments to enhance liquidity for

2001
Gross
Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

$« «««–

$««««9
4

$««44
4

$24

$««20
4

239
$239

251
$264

158
$206

74
$98

84
$108

investors, whom in turn pass this liquidity benefit directly to the
airline in the form of lower coupon and/or greater debt capacity.
Boeing Capital Corporation (BCC), a corporation wholly-owned
by the Company, participates in several EETCs as an investor.
The EETC investments are related to customers the Company
believes have less than investment-grade credit.
During the third quarter of 2002, an impairment of $79 was
recorded in income/(loss) from operating investments related to
a long-held investment in ETCs secured by aircraft on lease to
United Airlines. This debt investment was classified as held-tomaturity and had declined in value for a period that was determined to be other than temporary.
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Maturities of debt securities at December 31, 2002, were
as follows:
Available-for-Sale

Due
Due
Due
Due

Note 15 – Debt
Debt at December 31 consisted of the following:

Held-to-Maturity

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

$«–

$««–

4
$«4

4
$«4

$««30
331
62
67
$490

$««14
174
37
26
$251

in 1 year or less
from 1 to 5 years
from 5 to 10 years
after 10 years

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, $13 and $20 of unrealized
loss was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
related to debt securities that were reclassified from available-forsale to held-to-maturity at their fair values. The unrealized loss will
be amortized to earnings over the remaining life of each security.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, $40 ($25 net of tax)
of unrealized loss was reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to other income due to other than temporary
impairments of available-for-sale investments.

Boeing Capital Corporation debt:
Non-recourse debt and notes
2.540% – 14.280% notes
due through 2012
Senior debt securities
1.400% – 7.375% due through 2013
Senior medium-term notes
1.440% – 7.530% due through 2017
Euro medium-term notes
3.410% due through 2004
Subordinated notes
3.900% – 8.310% due through 2012
Capital lease obligations due through 2008
Retail notes
Commercial paper securitized due 2012
Commercial paper
Subtotal Boeing Capital Corporation

Note 13 – Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities at December 31 consisted
of the following:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and
employee benefit costs
Pension liabilities
Product warranty liabilities
Lease and other deposits
Dividends payable
Other

2002

2001

$««4,431

$««4,793

2,876
1,177
898
280
143
3,934
$13,739

2,590
745
1,012
354
143
4,600
$14,237

Accounts payable included $301 and $351 as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, attributable to checks written but not yet cleared
by the bank. Other liabilities as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
included $146 and $542 attributable to the special charges due
to the events of September 11, 2001, described in Note 3.
Note 14 – Deferred Lease Income
In 2001, the Company delivered four C-17 transport aircraft to
the United Kingdom Royal Air Force (UKRAF), which were
accounted for as operating leases. The lease term is seven
years, at the end of which the UKRAF has the right to purchase
the aircraft for a stipulated value, continue the lease for two
additional years, or return the aircraft. Concurrent with the negotiation of this lease, the Company and the UKRAF arranged to
assign the contractual lease payments to an independent financial institution. The Company received proceeds from the financial institution in consideration of the assignment of the future
lease receivables from the UKRAF. The assignment of lease
receivables is non-recourse to the Company. The initial proceeds
represented the present value of the assigned total lease receivables discounted at a rate of 6.6%. As of December 31, 2002
and 2001, the balance of $542 and $622 represented the present value of the remaining deferred lease income.
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Other Boeing debt:
Non-recourse debt and notes
Enhanced equipment trust
Unsecured debentures and notes
49, 7.565% due Mar. 30, 2002
120, 9.250% due Apr. 1, 2002
300, 6.750% due Sep. 15, 2002
300, 6.350% due Jun. 15, 2003
200, 7.875% due Feb. 15, 2005
199, 0.000% due May 31, 2005
300, 6.625% due Jun. 1, 2005
250, 6.875% due Nov. 1, 2006
175, 8.100% due Nov. 15, 2006
350, 9.750% due Apr. 1, 2012
400, 8.750% due Aug. 15, 2021
300, 7.950% due Aug. 15, 2024
250, 7.250% due Jun. 15, 2025
250, 8.750% due Sep. 15, 2031
175, 8.625% due Nov. 15, 2031
300, 6.625% due Feb. 15, 2038
100, 7.500% due Aug. 15, 2042
175, 7.875% due Apr. 15, 2043
125, 6.875% due Oct. 15, 2043
Senior medium-term notes
6.840% – 7.460% due through 2006
Capital lease obligations due through 2005
Other notes

2002

2001

$«««««««50

$«««««««60

5,006

4,737

3,113

2,039

51
24
362
487
299
73

24
392

$««9,465

$««7,295

$«««««566

$«««««593

300
203
174
297
249
175
348
398
300
247
248
173
300
100
173
125

43

46
120
300
300
204
295
249
175
348
398
300
247
248
173
300
100
173
125

60
337
165

70
67
139

Subtotal other Boeing debt

$««4,938

$««4,970

Total debt

$14,403

$12,265

The $199 note due May 31, 2005, is a promissory note to
FlightSafety International for the purchase of its 50% interest in
FlightSafety Boeing Training International (FSBTI). The promissory note carries a zero percent interest rate.

Capital lease obligations include three aircraft that the Company
will purchase in 2003.
The $300 debentures due August 15, 2024, are redeemable at
the holder’s option on August 15, 2012. All other debentures
and notes are not redeemable prior to maturity.
Additional disclosure information Maturities of long-term debt
for the next five years are as follows:
BCC
Other Boeing

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

$1,153
661
$1,814

$1,042
96
$1,138

$1,076
714
$1,790

$1,242
483
$1,725

$1,196
38
$1,234

The Company has $4,500 currently available under credit line
agreements with a group of commercial banks. BCC is named a
subsidiary borrower for up to $2,000 under these arrangements.
The Company continues to be in full compliance with all
covenants contained in various debt agreements.
Total debt interest, including amounts capitalized, was $749,
$730 and $527 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, and interest payments were $720, $587 and $599,
respectively.
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt as of
December 31, 2002, consisted of the following:
Consolidated

C/P conduit
Senior medium-term notes
Commercial paper
Unsecured debentures and notes
Capital lease obligations
Non-recourse debt and notes
Other notes

BCC

Total

Only

$«««««30
915
73
300
437
35
24
$1,814

$«««««30
900
73
143
7
$1,153

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, BCC had borrowings under
its commercial paper program totaling $73 and $43. The
weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, was 2.8% and 4.4%.
Financing activities On February 16, 2001, BCC filed a public
shelf registration of $5,000 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), which was declared effective on February
26, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, BCC had received proceeds from the issuance of $3,250, in aggregate, of senior
notes. Effective October 31, 2001, BCC allocated $1,000 to the
Series XI medium-term note program. Effective June 20, 2002,
the remaining $750 under the shelf registration was allocated to
this program. As of the filing date hereof, an aggregate amount
of $427 remains available under the Series XI medium-term program for potential debt issuance.

On February 22, 2002, BCC filed a public shelf registration of
$5,000 with the SEC, which was declared effective on March 4,
2002. BCC allocated $1,000 to establish a new retail mediumterm note program involving the sale of notes with a minimum
denomination of one thousand dollars. As of the filing date
hereof, an aggregate amount of $3,895, of which $495 is retail
notes, remains available for potential debt issuance.
On June 6, 2002, BCC established a $1,500 Euro medium-term
note program. As of the filing date hereof, an aggregate amount
of $1,440 remains available for potential debt issuance.
On September 13, 2002, the Company filed a public shelf registration of $1,000 with the SEC, which was declared effective on
September 20, 2002. On February 11, 2003, the Company had
received proceeds from the issuance of $1,000 of unsecured
notes. This issuance was made up of two offerings; $600,
5.125% note due 2013, and $400, 6.125% note due 2033.
On May 24, 2001, American Airlines issued EETCs, and the
Company through BCC received proceeds attributable to monetization of lease receivables associated with 32 MD-83 aircraft
owned by BCC and on lease to American Airlines. These borrowings of $566 as of December 31, 2002, are non-recourse to
the Company and are collateralized by the aircraft. The effective
interest rates range from 6.82% to 7.69%. BCC accounts for
this transaction as a leveraged lease, therefore, this debt balance
is netted against the BCC sales-type/financing lease assets.
In December 2002, BCC completed an asset securitization that
raised $299 of secured debt through the use of a bank-sponsored Commercial Paper Conduit (C/P Conduit). As collateral for
the debt, BCC transferred $331 of assets from its portfolio to the
C/P Conduit. These portfolio assets consisted of the cash flows
associated with specific financing leases, notes and other
receivables and operating leases. BCC also assigned to the
C/P Conduit perfected security interests in $278 of collateral
underlying the transferred portfolio assets. The collateral pledged
indirectly provides the C/P Conduit with additional protection in
the event that the cash flows from the leases and notes are
insufficient to cover the total debt outstanding under the transaction. The secured debt and securitized assets remain on
BCC’s balance sheet.
Note 16 – Postretirement Plans
The Company’s postretirement benefits other than pensions
consist principally of health care coverage for eligible retirees and
qualifying dependents, and to a lesser extent, life insurance to
certain groups of retirees. Retiree health care is provided principally until age 65 for approximately half those retirees who are
eligible for health care coverage. Certain employee groups,
including employees covered by most United Auto Workers bargaining agreements, are provided lifetime health care coverage.
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The following table reconciles the funded status of both pensions and the other postretirement benefits (OPB), principally
retiree health care, to the balance on the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position. Plan assets consist primarily of
equities, fixed income obligations and cash equivalents. The
pension benefit obligations and plan assets shown in the table
are valued as of September 30.
Other Postretirement
Benefits

Pensions

2002

2001

2002

2001

Benefit obligation
Beginning balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan participants’ contributions
Amendments
Actuarial loss
Acquisitions/dispositions, net
Settlement/curtailment
Benefits paid
Ending balance

$32,693
703
2,261
«13
«204
2,273
(13)
(90)
(2,073)
$35,971

$29,102
591
2,187
12
188
2,562

$«6,800
133
471

$«6,268
132
478

(63)
1,464

73
258
(34)

Plan assets – fair value
Beginning balance
Acquisitions/dispositions, net
Actual return on plan assets
Company contribution
Plan participants’ contributions
Benefits paid
Exchange rate adjustment
Ending balance

$33,810
(20)
(3,273)
340
13
(2,037)
1
$28,834

Reconciliation of funded status to net amounts recognized
Funded status – plan assets in excess of (less than) projected benefit obligation
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service costs
Unrecognized net transition asset
Adjustment for fourth quarter contributions
Net amount recognized
Amount recognized in statement of financial position
Prepaid benefit cost
Intangible asset
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Accrued retiree health care
Accrued pension plan liability
Net amount recognized

As of December 31, 2002, accounts payable and other liabilities
included $64 for the Company’s reserves for claims incurred, but
not reported (IBNR).
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(57)
(440)
$«8,308

(375)
$«6,800

$42,856
6
(7,150)
19
12
(1,918)
(15)
$33,810

$««««««39

$««««««30

16

14

(7)

(5)

$««««««48

$««««««39

$«(7,137)
11,952
1,442
(1)
8
$««6,264

$««1,117
2,897
1,465
(5)
7
$««5,481

$(8,260)
2,980
(338)

$(6,761)
1,652
(360)

120
$(5,498)

102
$(5,367)

$««6,671
770
6,271
(1,177)

$««5,838
388
555
(745)

$«««««(64)
(5,434)

$(5,367)

(6,271)
$««6,264

(555)
$««5,481

$(5,498)

$(5,367)

(1,949)
$32,693

Components of net periodic benefit costs and other supplemental information were as follows:
Year ended December 31,

2001

2000

Components of net periodic
benefit cost – pensions
Service cost
$««««703 $««««591
Interest cost
2,261
2,187
Expected return on plan assets
(3,558)
(3,452)
Amortization of net transition asset
(3)
(26)
Amortization of prior service costs
160
150
Recognized net actuarial gain
(35)
(370)
Settlement/curtailment
68
Net periodic benefit cost/(income)
$«««(404) «$«««(920)

$««««636
2,079
(3,117)
(103)
149
(72)

Year ended December 31,

Components of net periodic
benefit cost – OPB
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service costs
Recognized net actuarial loss
Settlement/curtailment
Net periodic benefit cost
Weighted average assumptions
as of December 31,

Discount rate: pensions and OPB
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase
Effect of 1% change in
assumed health care costs

2002

$«««(428))

2002

2001

2000

$««««133
472
(4)
(57)
82
(27)
$««««599

$««««132
478
(3)
(69)
60

$««««138
419
(2)
(66)
44

$««««598

$««««533

2002

2001

2000

6.50%
9.00%
5.50%

7.00%
9.25%
5.50%

7.75%
9.25%
5.50%

2002

2001

2000

$««««««70
(60)

$««««««64
(57)

$««««626
(542)

$««««603
(517)

Effect on total of service and interest cost
1% increase
$««««««67
1% decrease
(57)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation
1% increase
$««««802
1% decrease
(686)

Postretirement net periodic costs were calculated based on
assumed cost growth for retiree health care costs of a 12%
annual rate for 2003, decreasing to a 5% annual growth rate by
2010. For 2002, benefit costs for retiree health care were calculated based on an annual growth rate of 9%, decreasing to a
5% annual growth rate by 2010.

The Company has various pension plans covering substantially
all employees. All major pension plans are funded, and all but one
have accumulated benefit obligations that exceed plan assets.
The following table shows the key information for the plans with
accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets.
December 31,

Accumulated benefit obligation
Effect of future salary growth
Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2002

2001

$23,729
1,393
25,122

$3,159
142
3,301

19,709

2,481

Funded status – projected benefit obligation
in excess of fair value of plan assets
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Adjustment for fourth quarter
contributions expense
Prepaid pension expense

$«(5,413)
7,651
770

$««(820)
665
389

7
$««3,015

7
$«««241

Net periodic pension (income)/expense

$««««(365)

$«««««34

Certain of the pension plans provide that, in the event there is a
change in control of the Company which is not approved by the
Board of Directors and the plans are terminated within five years
thereafter, the assets in the plan first will be used to provide the
level of retirement benefits required by the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act, and then any surplus will be used to fund a
trust to continue present and future payments under the postretirement medical and life insurance benefits in the Company’s
group insurance benefit programs.
The Company has an agreement with the U.S. Government with
respect to certain of the Company pension plans. Under the
agreement, should the Company terminate any of the plans
under conditions in which the plan’s assets exceed that plan’s
obligations, the U.S. Government will be entitled to a fair allocation of any of the plan’s assets based on plan contributions that
were reimbursed under U.S. Government contracts. Also, the
Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1990 imposes a 20% nondeductible excise tax on the gross assets reverted if the
Company establishes a qualified replacement plan or amends
the terminating plan to provide for benefit increases; otherwise, a
50% tax is applied. Any net amount retained by the Company is
treated as taxable income.
The Company provides certain defined contribution plans to
all eligible employees. The principal plans are the Companysponsored 401(k) plans and a funded plan for unused sick leave.
The provision for these defined contribution plans was $448,
$452 and $406 in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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Note 17 – Share-Based Compensation
The ‘Share-based plans expense’ caption on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations represents the total expense recognized for all Company plans that are payable only in stock.
These plans are described below.
Certain deferred stock compensation plans are reflected in
general and administrative expense. The Company has issued
7,244,094 stock units as of December 31, 2002, that are convertible to either stock or a cash equivalent, of which 6,639,457
are vested, and the remainder vest with employee service.
These stock units principally represent a method of deferring
employee compensation by which a liability is established based
upon the current stock price. An expense or reduction in
expense is recognized associated with the change in that liability
balance. The reduction in expense (expense) related to deferred
stock compensation was $42, $163 and $(75) in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.
The following summarizes share-based expense for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively:
Performance Shares
ShareValue Trust
Stock options, other

2002

2001

2000

$295
71
81
$447

$227
72
79
$378

$147
72
97
$316

Performance Shares Performance Shares are stock units that
are convertible to common stock contingent upon stock price
performance. If, at any time up to five years after award, the
stock price reaches and maintains a price equal to 161.0% of
the stock issue price at the date of the award (representing a
growth rate of 10% compounded annually for five years), 25% of
the Performance Shares awarded are convertible to common
stock. Likewise, at stock prices equal to 168.5%, 176.2%,
184.2%, 192.5% and 201.1% of the stock price at the date of
award, the cumulative portion of awarded Performance Shares
convertible to common stock are 40%, 55%, 75%, 100% and
125%, respectively. Performance Shares awards not converted
to common stock expire five years after the date of the award;
however, the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors may, at its discretion, allow vesting of up to 100% of
the target Performance Shares if the Company’s total shareholder return (stock price appreciation plus dividends) during the
five-year performance period exceeds the average total shareholder return of the S&P 500 over the same period.
No Performance Share awards were converted to common
stock or deferred stock units in 2002 or 2001. During 2000,
75% of the Performance Share awards expiring February 22,
2004, were converted to common stock or deferred stock units
(cumulative 3,402,874 Performance Shares), and 55% of the
Performance Share awards expiring February 28, 2005, were
converted to common stock or deferred stock units (cumulative
3,495,725 Performance Shares).
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The following table summarizes information about Performance
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
(Shares in thousands)

Performance Shares Outstanding

Grant
Date

Expiration
Date

Issue
Price

2002

2001

2000

2/23/98
2/22/99
2/28/00
10/09/00
2/26/01
2/25/02

2/23/03
2/22/04
2/28/05
2/28/05
2/26/06
2/25/07

$50««11⁄16««
36«1⁄4
37
37
62«3⁄4
44«15⁄16

3,572
1,155
2,286
576
5,810
5,643

3,528
1,142
2,262
578
5,797

3,490
1,131
2,264
583

ShareValue Trust The ShareValue Trust, established effective
July 1, 1996, is a 14-year irrevocable trust that holds Boeing
common stock, receives dividends, and distributes to employees
appreciation in value above a 3% per annum threshold rate of
return. As of December 31, 2002, the Trust held 40,373,809
shares of the Company’s common stock, split equally between
two funds, “fund 1” and “fund 2.” If on June 30, 2004, the market
value of fund 2 exceeds $913 (the threshold representing a 3%
per annum rate of return), the amount in excess of the threshold
will be distributed to employees. The June 30, 2004, market
value of fund 2 after distribution (if any) will be the basis for
determining any potential distribution on June 30, 2008.
Similarly, if on June 30, 2006, the market value of fund 1
exceeds $1,004, the amount in excess of the threshold will be
distributed to employees. Shares held by the Trust on June 30,
2010, after final distribution will revert back to the Company.
The ShareValue Trust is accounted for as a contra-equity
account and stated at market value. Market value adjustments
are offset to additional paid-in capital.
Stock options The Company’s 1997 Incentive Stock Plan (1997
Plan) permits the grant of stock options, stock appreciation
rights (SARs) and restricted stock awards (denominated in stock
or stock units) to any employee of the Company or its subsidiaries and contract employees. Under the terms of the plan,
64,000,000 shares are authorized for issuance upon exercise of
options, as payment of SARs and as restricted stock awards, of
which no more than an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares are available for issuance as restricted stock awards and no more than
an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares are available for issuance as
restricted stock that is subject to restrictions based on continuous employment for less than three years. This authorization for
issuance under the 1997 Plan will terminate on April 30, 2007.
As of December 31, 2002, no SARs have been granted under
the 1997 Plan. The 1993 Incentive Stock Plan permitted the
grant of options, SARs and stock to employees of the Company
or its subsidiaries. The 1988 and 1984 stock option plans permitted the grant of options or SARs to officers or other key
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries. No further grants
may be awarded under these three plans.
Options have been granted with an exercise price equal to the
fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant
and expire ten years after the date of grant. Vesting is generally
over a five-year period with portions of a grant becoming
exercisable at one year, three years and five years after the
date of grant.

Information concerning stock options issued to directors, officers
and other employees is presented in the following table:
2002

(Shares in thousands)

Number of shares under option:
Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Canceled or expired
Exercised as SARs
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

As of December 31, 2002, 14,323,687 shares were available
for grant under the 1997 Plan, and 3,715,168 shares were available for grant under the Incentive Compensation Plan.
The following table summarizes information about stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2002 (shares in thousands):

Range of
Exercise Prices

$10
$20
$30
$40
$50
$60

to
to
to
to
to
to

$19
$29
$39
$49
$59
$69

Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted
Contractual
Average
Shares
Life (years)
Price

1,602
2,279
3,622
9,120
11,792
253
28,668

1.4
1.9
6.2
6.3
5.7
8.2

$15.10
23.39
39.08
42.00
54.58
63.79

Options Exercisable

Shares

1,602
2,277
2,168
5,462
8,773
102
20,384

Weighted
Average
Price

$15.10
23.39
38.95
42.23
53.85
63.81

2002
2001
2000

7/19/02
7/20/01
6/21/00
10/9/00
10/10/00

9
9
9
9
9

years
years
years
years
years

2000

Shares

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

28,186
2,745
(1,998)
(265)

$42.97
40.69
24.47
46.17

27,904
2,812
(2,316)
(214)

$40.58
56.94
30.58
48.13

28,668
20,384

44.01
42.75

28,186
19,416

42.97
39.45

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

29,228
3,693
(4,673)
(328)
(16)
27,904
18,710

$38.02
45.63
28.30
46.20
21.56
40.58
37.32

Note 18 – Shareholders’ Equity
In August 1998, the Board of Directors approved a resolution
authorizing management to repurchase up to 15% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding stock as of June 30, 1998
(excluding shares held by the ShareValue Trust), which amounted
to 145,899,000 shares. This repurchase program was completed
in 2000. In December 2000 an additional repurchase program
was authorized by the Board of Directors. Under this resolution,
management is authorized to repurchase up to 85,000,000
shares. The Company did not repurchase any shares during the
yeat ended December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company had repurchased 40,734,500 shares.
Twenty million shares of authorized preferred stock remain
unissued.
Note 19 – Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has determined the weighted average fair values
of stock-based arrangements granted, including ShareValue
Trust, during 2002, 2001 and 2000 to be $16.78, $21.35 and
$18.18, respectively. The fair values of stock-based compensation awards granted and of potential distributions under the
ShareValue Trust arrangement were estimated using a binomial
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:
Grant Date Option Term

2001

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Expected
Volatility

Dividend
Yield

Risk Free
Interest
Rate

30%
23%
22%
23%
23%

1.1%
1.1%
1.1%
1.1%
1.1%

4.5%
5.1%
6.1%
5.8%
5.8%

Other stock unit awards The total number of stock unit awards
that are convertible only to common stock and not contingent
upon stock price were 1,823,591, 1,597,343 and 1,880,544 as
of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Derivative and hedging activities As adopted January 1, 2001,
the Company accounts for derivatives pursuant to SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended. This standard requires that all derivative instruments
be recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair
value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. The
adoption of SFAS No. 133 in 2001 resulted in a transition gain of
$1 on the Consolidated Statements of Operations shown under
the caption ‘Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax,’
and a net loss of $18 ($11 net of tax) recorded to accumulated
other comprehensive income.
The Company is exposed to a variety of market risks, including
the effects of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, and commodity prices. These exposures are
managed, in part, with the use of derivatives. Interest rate swap
contracts under which the Company agrees to pay fixed rates of
interest are generally designated as cash flow hedges of variable-rate debt obligations. The Company uses interest rate
swaps to adjust the amount of total debt that is subject to variable and fixed interest rates. The following is a summary of the
Company’s risk management strategies and the effect of these
strategies on the consolidated financial statements.
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Fair value hedges For derivatives designated as hedges of the
exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or a firm commitment (referred to as fair value hedges),
the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period of change
together with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item
attributable to the risk being hedged. The effect of that accounting is to reflect in earnings the extent to which the hedge is not
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, net losses of $74 ($47 net of
tax) and $172 ($108 net of tax) were recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income associated with the Company’s
cash flow hedging transactions. For the years ended December
31, 2002 and 2001, losses of $46 and $14 (net of tax) were
reclassified to cost of products and services. During the next
year, the Company expects to reclassify to cost of products and
services a loss of $22 (net of tax).

Interest rate swaps under which the Company agrees to pay
variable rates of interest are designated as fair value hedges of
fixed-rate debt. The Company also holds forward-starting interest rate swap agreements to fix the cost of funding a firmly committed lease for which payment terms are determined in
advance of funding. This hedge relationship mitigates the
changes in fair value of the hedged portion of the firm commitment caused by changes in interest rates. The net change in fair
value of the derivatives and the hedged items is reported in
earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2002, ineffectiveness losses of $8 were recorded in interest expense related to
the forward-starting interest rate swaps. Ineffectiveness was
insignificant for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Derivative financial instruments not receiving hedge
treatment The Company also holds certain non-hedging instruments, such as interest exchange agreements, interest rate
swaps, warrants, conversion feature of convertible debt, and foreign currency forward contracts. The changes in fair value of
these instruments are recorded in earnings. For the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, these non-hedging instruments
resulted in gains of $25 and $15.

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, $5 and $1
of gains related to the basis adjustment of certain terminated
interest rate swaps were amortized to earnings. During 2003,
the Company expects to amortize $8 of gains from the amount
recorded in the basis adjustment of certain terminated fair value
hedge relationships to earnings.
Cash flow hedges For derivatives designated as hedges of the
exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction
(referred to as cash flow hedges), the effective portion of the
derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported in shareholders’ equity
(as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income)
and subsequently reclassified into earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately.
Cash flow hedges used by the Company include certain interest
rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts, and commodity
purchase contracts. Interest rate swap contracts under which
the Company agrees to pay fixed rates of interest are designated as cash flow hedges of variable-rate debt obligations. The
Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage
currency risk associated with certain forecasted transactions,
specifically sales and purchase commitments made in foreign
currencies. The Company’s foreign currency forward contracts
hedge forecasted transactions principally occurring up to five
years in the future. Commodity derivatives, such as fixed-price
purchase commitments, are used by the Company to hedge
against potentially unfavorable price changes for items used in
production.
The Company entered into certain commitments to purchase
electricity at fixed prices over the next two years, a percentage
of which are designated as cash flow hedges. The changes in
fair value of the percentage of the commodity derivatives that are
not designated in a hedging relationship are recorded in earnings
immediately. There were no significant changes in fair value
reported in earnings for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001.
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Note 20 – Arrangements with Off-Balance Sheet Risk
The Company is a party to certain arrangements with off-balance
sheet risk in the normal course of business, as discussed below.
Guarantees In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 45 (FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
the Indebtedness of Others, which clarifies the requirements of
SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, relating to a guarantor’s accounting for and disclosures of certain guarantees
issued. Refer to Note 2 for more information about the impact of
FIN 45 on the Company’s financial statements.
Third-party guarantees The following tables provide quantitative data regarding the Company’s third-party guarantees. The
maximum potential payments represent a “worst-case scenario,”
and do not necessarily reflect results expected by the Company.
Estimated proceeds from collateral and recourse represent the
anticipated values of assets the Company could liquidate or
receive from other parties to offset its payments under guarantees.
The carrying amount of liabilities recorded on the balance sheet
reflects the Company’s best estimate of future payments it may
incur as part of fulfilling its guarantee obligations. Portions of certain
liabilities were established in prior periods as part of the Company’s
special charges due to the events of September 11, 2001.

As of December 31, 2002

Asset-related guarantees
Credit guarantees related to
the Sea Launch venture
Other credit guarantees
Equipment trust certificates
Performance guarantees

Portion of
Liabilities
Related to the
Carrying
Events of
Amount of
September
Liabilities*
11, 2001

Maximum
Potential
Payments

Estimated
Proceeds
from
Collateral/
Recourse

$790

$629

$««17

535
245
182
57

186
72
101

200
19
1

$7

As of December 31, 2001

Asset-related guarantees
Credit guarantees related to
the Sea Launch venture
Other credit guarantees
Equipment trust certificates
Performance guarantees

Portion of
Liabilities
Related to the
Carrying
Events of
Amount of
September
Liabilities*
11, 2001

Maximum
Potential
Payments

Estimated
Proceeds
from
Collateral/
Recourse

$874

$711

$158

557
324
184
93

187
69
103

200
59

$48

2

*Amounts included in accounts payable and other liabilities

The Company has issued various asset-related guarantees, principally to facilitate the sale of certain commercial aircraft. Under
these arrangements, the Company is obligated to make payments to a guaranteed party in the event the related aircraft fair
values fall below a specified amount at a future point in time.
These obligations are collateralized principally by commercial aircraft, and expire within the next 16 years. No aircraft have been
delivered with these types of guarantees in several years.
The Company has issued credit guarantees to creditors of the
Sea Launch venture, of which the Company is a 40% owner, to
assist the venture in obtaining financing. In the event the
Company is required to perform on these guarantees, it has the
right to recover a portion of the loss from another venture partner, and has collateral rights to certain assets of the venture. In
addition, the Company has issued credit guarantees, principally
to facilitate the sale of certain commercial aircraft. Under these
arrangements, the Company is obligated to make payments to
a guaranteed party in the event that lease or loan payments are
not made by the original debtor or lessee. The Company’s commercial aircraft credit-related guarantees are collateralized by the
underlying commercial aircraft. A substantial portion of these
guarantees have been extended on behalf of original debtors or
lessees with less than investment-grade credit. Current outstanding credit guarantees expire within the next 13 years.
As a liquidity provider for ETC pass-through arrangements, the
Company has certain obligations to investors in the trusts,
which requires funding to the trust to cover interest due to such
investors resulting from an event of default by United Airlines. In
the event of funding, the Company receives a first priority position
in the ETC collateral in the amount of the funding. On February 7,
2003, the Company advanced $101 to the trust perfecting its
collateral position and terminating its liquidity obligation. The
trust currently has collateral value that significantly exceeds the
amount due to the Company.
Also relating to its ETC investments, the Company has potential
obligations relating to shortfall interest payments in the event
that the interest rates in the underlying agreements are reset
below a certain level according to the terms of these agreements. These obligations would cease if United Airlines were to
default on its interest payments to the trust. These guarantees
will expire within the next 12 years.

The Company has outstanding performance guarantees issued
in conjunction with joint venture investments. Pursuant to these
guarantees, the Company would be required to make payments
in the event a third-party fails to perform specified services.
Current performance guarantees expire within the next 15 years.
Product warranties The Company provides product warranties
in conjunction with certain product sales.
The majority of the Company’s warranties are issued by the
Commercial Airplanes segment. Generally, aircraft sales are
accompanied by a 3 to 4 year standard warranty for systems,
accessories, equipment, parts, and software manufactured by
the Company or manufactured to certain standards under its
authorization. These warranties cover factors such as nonconformance to specifications and defects in material and
design. Warranties issued by the Space and Communications
and Military Aircraft and Missile Systems segments principally
relate to sales of military aircraft and weapons hardware. These
sales are generally accompanied by a six to twelve-month warranty period and cover systems, accessories, equipment, parts,
and software manufactured by the Company to certain contractual specifications. These warranties cover factors such as
non-conformance to specifications and defects in material and
workmanship.
Estimated standard warranty costs are recorded in the period in
which the related product sales occur. The warranty liability
recorded at each balance sheet date reflects the estimated
number of months of warranty coverage outstanding for products
delivered times the average of historical monthly warranty payments, as well as additional amounts for certain major warranty
issues that exceed a normal claims level. The following table
summarizes product warranty activity recorded during 2002.
As of December 31,

Additions
for New
2001 Warranties

Product warranty
liabilities*
$1,012

$139

Reductions
for Payments
Made

Changes in
Estimates

$(289)

2002

$36 $898

*Amounts included in accounts payable and other liabilities

Material variable interests in unconsolidated entities The
Company is currently assessing the application of FIN 46 as it
relates to its variable interests. While the Company is currently
not required to consolidate the full amount of the ETCs, EETCs
or the Sea Launch venture in which it has invested, it is unable
to definitively conclude at this time whether consolidation or disclosure will be required for these investments upon full adoption
of FIN 46. The Company’s investment in ETCs and EETCs
aggregated $455 at December 31, 2002. The Company’s total
maximum exposure to loss from ETCs and EETCs is $637,
comprised of the $455 investment balance, rights to collateral
estimated at $101 related to liquidity obligations satisfied in
February 2003, and a maximum potential exposure of $81 relating to potential shortfall interest payments. During the year
ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded revenues of
$25, cash inflows of $41, and impairment expense of $79 relating to these investments. As of December 31, 2002, the VIE
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(ETCs and EETCs) in which the Company has invested have total
assets of approximately $4,200 and total debt (which is nonrecourse to the Company) of approximately $3,700. Related to
the Sea Launch venture, the Company’s total maximum exposure
to loss is $621 assuming no estimated proceeds from collateral
or recourse from other venture partners, comprised of $335 of
exposure related to guarantees to certain Sea Launch creditors
($535 net of $200 in established reserves), $33 of exposure
related to performance guarantees provided by the Company to
a Sea Launch customer and $253 of financial exposure related
to accounts receivable/inventory reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. The total assets and total liabilities of the Sea
Launch venture each represent less than 4% of the Company’s
consolidated total assets and total liabilities as of December 31,
2002. The Company made no additional capital contributions to the
Sea Launch venture during the year ended December 31, 2002.
Other commitments The Company enters into certain trade-in
agreements to purchase used aircraft from customers at a
specific price at a future point in time when those customers
purchase new aircraft from the Company. In the event the
Company accepts an aircraft under a trade-in agreement, the
aircraft purchased by the Company serves as collateral to offset
amounts paid by the Company to the customer. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, accounts payable and other liabilities included $156 and $189 related to trade-in commitments,
of which $93 and $140 was related to the events of September
11, 2001. The total contractual trade-in value of all aircraft that
customers had the right to sell to the Company was $1,993 and
$3,262 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company estimated the fair value of those aircraft was $1,837 and $3,073 as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001. There is a high degree of
uncertainty inherent in the assessment of the likelihood of tradein commitments. Updates on the likelihood that trade-in commitments will be exercised using both quantitative information from
valuation sources and qualitative information from other sources
are continually assessed. The Company continues to monitor all
trade-in commitments for adverse developments.
Irrevocable financing commitments related to aircraft on order,
including options, scheduled for delivery through 2007 totaled
$3,223 and $7,508 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. The
Company anticipates that not all of these commitments will be
utilized and that it will be able to arrange for third-party investors
to assume a portion of the remaining commitments, if necessary.
The Company has other additional commitments to arrange for
equipment financing totaling $106 and $344 as of December 31,
2002 and 2001.
As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, future lease commitments
on aircraft not recorded on the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position totaled $246 and $323. These
lease commitments extend through 2015, and the Company’s
intent is to recover these lease commitments through sublease
arrangements. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, accounts
payable and other liabilities included $130 ($2 related to the
events of September 11, 2001) and $116 ($1 related to the
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events of September 11, 2001) attributable to adverse commitments under these lease arrangements.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company had extended a $69
credit line agreement to one of its joint venture partners. To date,
$33 had been drawn on this agreement, which was recorded as
an additional investment in the joint venture.
Note 21 - Significant Group Concentrations of Risk
Credit risk Financial instruments involving potential credit risk
are predominantly with commercial aircraft customers and the
U.S. Government. Of the $17,218 in accounts receivable and
customer financing included in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position, $8,837 related to commercial aircraft customers
($315 of accounts receivable and $8,522 of customer financing)
and $2,860 related to the U.S. Government. Of the $8,522 of
aircraft customer financing, $7,606 related to customers the
Company believes have less than investment-grade credit. AMR
Corporation, AirTran Airways and UAL Corporation were associated with 11%, 12% and 14% of all financial instruments related
to customer financing. Financing for aircraft is collateralized by
security in the related asset, and historically the Company has
not experienced a problem in accessing such collateral.
As of December 31, 2002, off-balance sheet financial instruments described in Note 20 predominantly related to commercial aircraft customers. Similarly, of the $3,223 of irrevocable
financing commitments related to aircraft on order including
options, $3,128 related to customers the Company believes
have less than investment-grade credit.
Other risk The Commercial Airplanes segment is subject to both
operational and external business environment risks. Operational
risks that can disrupt the Company’s ability to make timely
delivery of its commercial jet aircraft and meet its contractual
commitments include execution of internal performance plans,
product performance risks associated with regulatory certifications of the Company’s commercial aircraft by the U.S.
Government and foreign governments, other regulatory uncertainties, collective bargaining labor disputes, performance issues
with key suppliers and subcontractors and the cost and availability of energy resources, such as electrical power. Aircraft programs, particularly new aircraft models such as the 717
program, face the additional risk of pricing pressures and cost
management issues inherent in the design and production of
complex products. Financing support may be provided by the
Company to airlines, some of which are unable to obtain other
financing. External business environment risks include adverse
governmental export and import policies, factors that result in
significant and prolonged disruption to air travel worldwide, and
other factors that affect the economic viability of the commercial
airline industry. Examples of factors relating to external business
environment risks include the volatility of aircraft fuel prices,
global trade policies, worldwide political stability and economic
growth, acts of aggression that impact the perceived safety of
commercial flight, escalation trends inherent in pricing the
Company’s aircraft, and a competitive industry structure which
results in market pressure to reduce product prices.

In addition to the foregoing risks associated with the Commercial
Airplanes segment, the Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
segment and the Space and Communications segment are subject to changing priorities or reductions in the U.S. Government
defense and space budget, and termination of government
contracts due to unilateral government action (termination for
convenience) or failure to perform (termination for default). Civil,
criminal or administrative proceedings involving fines, compensatory and treble damages, restitution, forfeiture and suspension
or debarment from government contracts may result from violations of business and cost classification regulations on U.S.
Government contracts.
The commercial launch and satellite service markets have some
degree of uncertainty since global demand is driven in part by
the launch customers’ access to capital markets. Additionally,
some of the Company’s competitors for launch services receive
direct or indirect government funding. The satellite market includes
some degree of risk and uncertainty relating to the attainment of
technological specifications and performance requirements.
Risk associated with the Boeing Capital Corporation segment includes interest rate risks, asset valuation risks, specifically, aircraft
valuation risks, and credit and collectability risks of counterparties.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s principal collective
bargaining agreements were with the International Association of
Machinists and Aerospace Workers (IAM) representing 20% of
employees (current agreements expiring in May 2004, and
September and October 2005); the Society of Professional
Engineering Employees in Aerospace (SPEEA) representing 13%
of employees (current agreements expiring February 2004 and
December 2005); and the United Automobile, Aerospace and
Agricultural Implement Workers of America (UAW) representing
4% of employees (current agreements expiring May 2003, April
2004, and September 2005).
Note 22 - Disclosures about Fair Value
of Financial Instruments
As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the carrying amount of
accounts receivable was $5,007 and $5,156, respectively, and
the fair value of accounts receivable was estimated to be $4,772
and $5,054, respectively. The lower fair value reflects a discount
due to deferred collection for certain receivables that will be collected over an extended period. The carrying value of accounts
payable is estimated to approximate fair value.
As of December 31, 2002, the carrying amount of notes receivable, net of valuation allowance, was $2,954 and the fair value
was estimated to be $3,258. As of December 31, 2001, the
carrying amount of notes receivable, net of valuation allowance,
was estimated to approximate fair value. Although there are generally no quoted market prices available for customer financing
notes receivable, the valuation assessments were based on the
respective interest rates, risk-related rate spreads and collateral
considerations.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the carrying amount of debt,
net of capital leases, was $13,704 and $11,805, respectively,
and the fair value of debt, based on current market rates for
debt of the same risk and maturities, was estimated at $14,604
and $12,274, respectively. The Company’s debt, however, is
generally not callable until maturity.
With regard to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, it
is not practicable to estimate the fair value of future financing
commitments because there is not a market for such future
commitments. Other off-balance sheet financial instruments,
including asset-related guarantees, credit guarantees, and interest rate guarantees related to an equipment trust certificate, are
estimated to have a fair value of $358 at December 31, 2002.
Note 23 – Contingencies
Legal Various legal proceedings, claims and investigations
related to products, contracts and other matters are pending
against the Company. Most significant legal proceedings are
related to matters covered by insurance. Major contingencies
are discussed below.
The Company is subject to U.S. Government investigations from
which civil, criminal or administrative proceedings could result.
Such proceedings could involve claims by the government for
fines, penalties, compensatory and treble damages, restitution
and/or forfeitures. Under government regulations, a company, or
one or more of its operating divisions or subdivisions, can also
be suspended or debarred from government contracts, or lose
its export privileges, based on the results of investigations. The
Company believes, based upon all available information, that the
outcome of any such government disputes and investigations
will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or
continuing operations.
In 1991, the U.S. Navy notified McDonnell Douglas (now a subsidiary of the Company) and General Dynamics Corporation (the
“Team”) that it was terminating for default the Team’s contract for
development and initial production of the A-12 aircraft. The
Team filed a legal action to contest the Navy’s default termination, to assert its rights to convert the termination to one for “the
convenience of the Government,” and to obtain payment for
work done and costs incurred on the A-12 contract but not paid
to date. As of December 31, 2002, inventories included approximately $583 of recorded costs on the A-12 contract, against
which the Company has established a loss provision of $350.
The amount of the provision, which was established in 1990, was
based on McDonnell Douglas’s belief, supported by an opinion
of outside counsel, that the termination for default would be converted to a termination for convenience, and that the best estimate of possible loss on termination for convenience was $350.
On August 31, 2001, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims issued a
decision after trial upholding the U.S. Government’s default termination of the A-12 contract on the grounds that the Team could
not meet the revised contract schedule unilaterally imposed by
the U.S. Government. The court did not, however, enter a money
judgement for the U.S. Government on its claim for unliquidated
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progress payments. This followed an earlier trial court decision
in favor of the contractors and reversal of that initial decision
on appeal. The Team appealed that decision to the Court of
Appeals and is awaiting a decision. The Team also obtained a
stay of the trial court’s judgment to prevent the Navy from collecting any allegedly due amounts prior to the decision by the
Court of Appeals.
If, after all judicial proceedings have ended, the courts determine
contrary to the Company’s belief that a termination for default
was appropriate, the Company would incur an additional loss of
approximately $275, consisting principally of remaining inventory
costs and adjustments, and if contrary to the Company’s belief
the courts further hold that a money judgment should be
entered against the Team, the Company would be required to
pay the U.S. Government one-half of the unliquidated progress
payments of $1,350 plus statutory interest from February 1991
(currently totaling approximately $1,040). The loss to the
Company would total approximately $1,465 in pre-tax charges.
Should, however, the trial court’s decision on termination be
reversed on appeal and its 1998 judgment in favor of the Team
be reinstated, the Company would receive approximately $957,
including interest.
The Company believes, supported by an opinion of outside counsel, that the trial court’s rulings with respect to the enforceability
of the unilateral schedule and the termination for default are contrary to law and fact and that the loss provision established by
McDonnell Douglas in 1990 continues to provide adequately for
the reasonably possible reduction in value of A-12 net contracts
in process as of December 31, 2002. Final resolution of the A-12
litigation will depend upon the outcome of further proceedings or
possible negotiations with the U.S. Government.
The Company is a defendant in seven employment discrimination matters in which class certification is sought or has been
granted. Three matters are pending in the Federal District Court
for the Western District of Washington in Seattle; one case is
pending in the Federal District court for the Central District of
California in Los Angeles; one case is pending in the Federal
District Court in St. Louis, Missouri; one case is pending in the
Federal District Court in Tulsa, Oklahoma; and the final case is
pending in the Federal District Court in Wichita, Kansas. The
Company intends to continue its aggressive defense of these
cases. It is not possible to predict what impact, if any, these
cases could have on the financial statements.
Other contingencies The Company is subject to federal and
state requirements for protection of the environment, including
those for discharge of hazardous materials and remediation of
contaminated sites. Due in part to their complexity and pervasiveness, such requirements have resulted in the Company being
involved with related legal proceedings, claims and remediation
obligations since the 1980s.
The Company routinely assesses, based on in-depth studies,
expert analyses and legal reviews, its contingencies, obligations
and commitments for remediation of contaminated sites, including assessments of ranges and probabilities of recoveries from
other responsible parties who have and have not agreed to a

80 The Boeing Company and Subsidiaries

settlement and of recoveries from insurance carriers. The
Company’s policy is to immediately accrue and charge to current expense identified exposures related to environmental remediation sites based on estimates of investigation, cleanup and
monitoring costs to be incurred.
The costs incurred and expected to be incurred in connection
with such activities have not had, and are not expected to have,
a material impact to the Company’s financial position. With
respect to results of operations, related charges have averaged
less than 2% of annual net earnings. Such accruals as of
December 31, 2002, without consideration for the related contingent recoveries from insurance carriers, are less than 2% of
total liabilities.
Because of the regulatory complexities and risk of unidentified
contaminated sites and circumstances, the potential exists for
environmental remediation costs to be materially different from
the estimated costs accrued for identified contaminated sites.
However, based on all known facts and expert analyses, the
Company believes it is not reasonably likely that identified environmental contingencies will result in additional costs that would
have a material adverse impact to the Company’s financial position or operating results and cash flow trends.
The Company has entered into standby letters of credit agreements and surety bonds with financial institutions primarily
relating to the guarantee of future performance on certain contracts. Contingent liabilities on outstanding letters of credit
agreements and surety bonds aggregated approximately $1,663
at December 31, 2002.
Note 24 – Segment Information
The Company is organized based on the products and services
it offers and operates in four principal segments: Commercial
Airplanes, Military Aircraft and Missile Systems, Space and
Communications, and BCC. All other activities fall within the
Other segment, principally made up of Boeing Technology,
Connexion by BoeingSM and Air Traffic Management. Commercial
Airplanes operations principally involve development, production
and marketing of commercial jet aircraft and providing related
support services, principally to the commercial airline industry
worldwide. Military Aircraft and Missile Systems operations principally involve research, development, production, modification
and support of the following products and related systems:
military aircraft, both land-based and aircraft-carrier-based,
including fighter, transport and attack aircraft with wide mission
capability, and vertical/short takeoff and landing capability;
helicopters and missiles. Space and Communications operations
principally involve research, development, production, modification and support of the following products and related systems:
space systems, missile defense systems, satellites and satellite
launching vehicles, rocket engines, and information and battle
management systems. Although some Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems and Space and Communications products are
contracted in the commercial environment, the primary customer
is the U.S. Government. BCC is primarily engaged in the financing of commercial and private aircraft, and commercial equipment.

Financing activities other than BCC, consisting principally of four
C-17 transport aircraft under lease to the United Kingdom Royal
Air Force, are included within the Other segment classification.
In the second quarter of 2001, the Company established an
Other segment classification which principally includes the activities of Connexion by BoeingSM, a two-way broadband data communications service for global travelers; Air Traffic Management,
a business unit developing new approaches to a global solution
to address air traffic management issues; and Boeing Technology,
an advanced research and development organization focused
on innovative technologies, improved processes and the creation
of new products. The 2001 and 2000 results have been reclassified to conform to the revised segment classifications.
In the first quarter of 2002, the Company began separately
reporting BCC which was originally included in the Customer
and Commercial Financing segment classification. The 2001 and
2000 results have been restated to conform to the revised segment classification with the remaining balance reclassified to the
Other segment.
On July 10, 2002, the Company announced the creation of
Integrated Defense Systems (IDS), a business unit merging the
Company’s total space, defense, government, intelligence and
communications capabilities into one organization. Prior to the
announcement, these operations were contained in the
Company’s Military Aircraft and Missile Systems and Space and
Communications reportable segments. Since the formation of
IDS, the composition and review structure of internal financial
information related to these operations has remained unchanged.
Hence, at present, segment disclosures remain on the same
basis. Beginning in the first quarter of 2003, the Company will
no longer report results for Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
segment and Space and Communications segment and will
report consolidated IDS results and the results of its four reporting segments: (1) Aircraft and Weapon Systems; (2) Network
Systems; (3) Launch and Orbital Systems; and (4) Support Systems.
While the Company’s principal operations are in the United
States, Canada, and Australia, some key suppliers and subcontractors are located in Europe and Japan. Sales and other operating revenue by geographic area consisted of the following:
Year ended December 31,

Asia, other than China
China
Europe
Oceania
Africa
Western Hemisphere,
other than the United States
United States
Total sales

2002

2001

2000

$««7,614
1,442
5,871
1,813
525

$««7,112
1,504
8,434
895
573

$««5,568
1,026
9,038
887
542

669
17,934
36,135
$54,069

875
19,393
38,805
$58,198

559
17,620
33,701
$51,321

Systems segment and Space and Communications segment
combined sales were approximately 20%, 29% and 13% of total
sales in Europe for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Military
Aircraft and Missile Systems segment and Space and Communications segment combined sales were approximately 12%, 10%
and 9% of total sales in Asia, excluding China, for the same
respective years. Exclusive of these amounts, Military Aircraft
and Missile Systems segment and Space and Communications
segment sales were principally to the U.S. Government and represented 42%, 33% and 34% of consolidated sales for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Approximately 5% of operating
assets are located outside the United States.
The information in the following tables is derived directly from the
segments’ internal financial reporting used for corporate management purposes.
Sales and other operating revenues
Year ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

Commercial Airplanes
$28,387
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems 13,990
Space and Communications
10,967
Boeing Capital Corporation
994
Other
544
Accounting differences/eliminations
(813)
$54,069

$35,056
12,451
10,364
815
413
(901)
$58,198

$31,171
11,924
8,039
545
486
(844)
$51,321

Net earnings
Year ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

Commercial Airplanes
$2,847
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
1,652
Space and Communications
357
Boeing Capital Corporation
482
Other
(424)
Accounting differences/eliminations
(406)
Share-based plans expense
(447)
Unallocated expense
(193)
Earnings from operations
3,868
Other income/(expense), net
42
Interest and debt expense:
Boeing Capital Corporation
(410)
Other
(320)
Earnings before taxes
3,180
Income taxes
861
$2,319

$2,632
1,346
619
562
(354)
(368)
(378)
(163)
3,896
318

$2,736
1,245
(243)
397
43
(442)
(316)
(362)
3,058
386

(324)
(326)
3,564
738
$2,826

(229)
(216)
2,999
871
$2,128

Depreciation and amortization
Year ended December 31,

Commercial Airplanes segment sales were approximately 78%,
70% and 86% of total sales in Europe and approximately 87%,
89% and 90% of total sales in Asia, excluding China, for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Military Aircraft and Missile

2002

2001

2000

Commercial Airplanes
$«««463
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
161
Space and Communications
316
Boeing Capital Corporation
230
Other
44
Unallocated
295
$1,509

$«««540
235
417
156
95
309
$1,752

$«««567
181
181
101
92
358
$1,480
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For internal reporting purposes, the Company records Commercial
Airplanes segment revenues and operating profits for airplanes
transferred to other segments, and such transfers may include
airplanes accounted for as operating leases that are considered
transferred to the BCC. The revenues for these transfers are
eliminated in the ‘Accounting differences/eliminations’ caption. In
the event an airplane accounted for as an operating lease is
subsequently sold, the ‘Accounting differences/eliminations’
caption would reflect the recognition of revenue and operating
profit for the consolidated financial statements.
The Company records cost of sales for 7-series commercial
airplane programs under the program method of accounting
described in Note 1. For internal measurement purposes, the
Commercial Airplanes segment records cost of sales based on
the cost of specific units delivered, and to the extent that inventoriable costs exceed estimated revenues, a loss is not recognized until delivery is made, which is not in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. For the 717 program,
the cost of the specific units delivered is reduced, on a per-unit
basis, by the amount previously recognized for forward losses.
Proceeds from certain Commercial Airplanes segment suppliers
attributable to participation in development efforts are accounted
for as a reduction in the cost of inventory received from the supplier under the program accounting method, and as an expense
reduction in the period the proceeds are received for internal
measurement purposes. These adjustments between the internal measurement method and the program accounting method
are included in the ‘Accounting differences/eliminations’ caption
of net earnings. These adjustments totaled $(830), $(721) and
$(637) for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
BCC segment revenues consist principally of interest from
financing receivables and lease income from operating lease
equipment. Additionally, segment earnings reflect depreciation
on leased equipment and expenses recorded against the valuation allowance presented in Note 10. No interest expense on
debt is included in BCC segment earnings for 2002. Beginning
in 2003, interest expense on debt will be included in BCC
segment earnings.
The Company provides BCC with certain intercompany guarantees and other subsidies. Intercompany guarantees primarily
relate to residual value guarantees and credit guarantees (first
loss deficiency guarantees and rental guarantees). Residual
value guarantees provide BCC a specified asset value at the end
of a lease agreement with a third party in the event of a decline
in market value of the financed aircraft. First loss deficiency
guarantees cover a specified portion of BCC’s losses on
financed aircraft in the event of a loss upon disposition of the aircraft following a default by the third party lessee. Rental guarantees are whole or partial guarantees covering BCC against the
third party lessee’s failure to pay rent under the lease agreement.
In addition to guarantees, other subsidies are also provided to
BCC mainly in the form of rental payments on restructured third
party leases and interest rate subsidies.
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As a result of guaranteed residual values of assets or guaranteed
income streams under credit guarantees, BCC is abated from
asset impairments on the guaranteed aircraft to the extent of
guarantee coverage. If an asset impairment is calculated on a
guaranteed aircraft, the impairment charge is generally recorded
in the Other segment. If the guarantee amount is insufficient to
cover the full impairment loss, the shortage is recorded by BCC.
Due to intercompany guarantees, the BCC accounting classification of certain third party leases may differ from the accounting
classification in the consolidated Company financial statements
(i.e. sales-type lease at BCC, operating lease in the consolidated
financial statements; or leveraged lease at BCC, sales-type
lease in the consolidated financial statements). In these cases,
the accounting treatment at BCC is eliminated and the impact
of the consolidated accounting treatment is recorded in the
Other segment.
The following table provides the financial statement impacts of
intercompany guarantees and asset impairments, lease accounting differences, and other subsidies. These amounts have been
recorded in the Other segment.
Year ended
December 31
2002
2001

Guarantees and
asset impairments
$257
Lease accounting differences
(1)
Other subsidies
49
$305

$««50
49
8
$107

Three months ended
December 31
2002
2001

$111
(46)
14
$««79

$««2
22
5
$29

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Other segment
recorded asset impairment charges of $66 related to the impairment of a long-held investment in equipment trust certificates
secured by aircraft on lease to United Airlines, $66 related to the
impairment of 717s returned to the Company by AMR, and $80
related to an increase in the customer financing valuation
allowance resulting from guarantees provided to BCC. The 717
impairment charge was offset by a $60 AMR lease termination
fee recorded in earnings during the fourth quarter by the Other
segment in the ‘Lease accounting differences’ caption above.
The ‘Accounting differences/eliminations’ caption of net earnings
also includes the impact of cost measurement differences
between generally accepted accounting principles and federal
cost accounting standards. This includes the following: the difference between pension costs recognized under SFAS No. 87,
Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, and under federal cost
accounting standards, principally on a funding basis; the differences between retiree health care costs recognized under SFAS
No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions, and under federal cost accounting standards, principally on a cash basis; and the differences in timing
of cost recognition related to certain activities, such as facilities
consolidation, undertaken as a result of mergers and acquisitions whereby such costs are expensed under generally
accepted accounting principles and deferred under federal

cost accounting standards. Additionally, the amortization of
costs capitalized in accordance with SFAS No. 34, Capitalization
of Interest Cost, is included in the ‘Accounting differences/eliminations’ caption.
Unallocated expense includes corporate costs not allocated to
the operating segments, including, for the period ended
December 31, 2001, goodwill amortization resulting from acquisitions prior to 1998. For the period ended December 31, 2002,
unallocated expense does not include goodwill amortization as a
result of the Company adopting SFAS No. 142, as described in
Note 5. Unallocated expense also includes the recognition of an
expense or a reduction to expense for deferred stock compensation plans resulting from stock price changes as described in
Note 17. The cost attributable to share-based plans expense is
not allocated to other business segments except for the portion
related to BCC. Depreciation and amortization relate primarily to
shared services assets.
In-process research and development for the year ended
December 31, 2000, included $505 associated with the Space
and Communications segment and $52 associated with the
Commercial Airplanes segment.
Unallocated assets primarily consist of cash and short-term investments, prepaid pension expense, goodwill acquired prior to
1997, deferred tax assets, and capitalized interest. Unallocated
liabilities include various accrued employee compensation and
benefit liabilities, including accrued retiree health care, income
taxes payable, and debentures and notes payable. Unallocated
capital expenditures relate primarily to shared services assets.
The segment assets, liabilities, capital expenditures and backlog
are summarized in the tables below.

Liabilities
December 31,

Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Space and Communications
Boeing Capital Corporation
Other
Unallocated

2002

2001

2000

$««««6,051 $««««8,211 $««««8,539
1,499
1,297
1,104
3,406
3,123
2,903
345
316
198
586
732
42
32,759
24,474
19,698
$««44,646 $««38,153 $««32,484

Capital expenditures, net
Year ended December 31,

Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Space and Communications
Boeing Capital Corporation
Other
Unallocated

2002

2001

2000

$«««««««135 $«««««««207 $«««««««237

220
58
362
438
1
4
29
32
43
300
367
185
$««««1,001 $««««1,189 $«««««««965
213
324

Contractual backlog (unaudited)
December 31,

Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Space and Communications

2002

2001

2000

$««68,159 $«75,850 $«89,780
21,073
17,630
17,113
14,941
13,111
13,707
$104,173 $106,591 $120,600

Assets
December 31,

Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Space and Communications
Boeing Capital Corporation
Other
Unallocated

2002

2001

2000

$««««9,726 $««10,851 $««10,367
2,232
2,162
2,950
10,521
10,299
9,629
11,840
9,250
5,391
3,213
1,686
1,854
14,810
14,730
13,313
$««52,342 $««48,978 $««43,504
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Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)
Quarter

Sales and other operating revenues
Earnings from operations

4th

2002
3rd

2nd

1st

4th

2001
3rd

2nd

1st

$13,701

$12,690

$13,857

$13,821

$15,702

$13,687

$15,516

$13,293

1,039

562

1,275

992

245

1,066

1,367

1,218

590

372

779

578

100

650

840

1,236

Net earnings before cumulative effect of
accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax

1

(1,827)
590

372

779

(1,249)

100

650

840

1,237

(3,048)

380

810

(1,210)

(297)

578

850

1,213

0.74

0.47

0.97

0.72

0.13

0.81

1.02

1.48

0.74

0.47

0.97

(1.56)

0.13

0.81

1.02

1.48

0.73

0.46

0.96

0.72

0.12

0.80

0.99

1.45

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

0.73

0.46

0.96

(1.54)

0.12

0.80

0.99

1.45

Cash dividends paid per share

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.17

High

36.02

45.28

50.05

51.07

39.42

59.80

69.85

65.60

Low

28.53

33.20

41.00

37.65

31.58

27.60

53.92

49.70

32.99

34.13

45.00

48.25

38.78

33.50

55.60

55.71

Net earnings (loss)
Total comprehensive income
Basic earnings per share before cumulative
effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax
Basic earnings (loss) per share

(2.28)

Diluted earnings per share before cumulative
effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax

(2.26)

Market price:

Quarter end
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors and Shareholders
The Boeing Company
Chicago, Illinois
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position of The Boeing Company and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements (located at
pages 33 – 36 and pages 59 – 83) referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Boeing
Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
As discussed in Note 5 and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets effective January 1,
2002 to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and
its method of accounting for derivative financial instruments
effective January 1, 2001 to conform to Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
January 30, 2003

Report of Management

To the Shareholders of The Boeing Company:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
Boeing Company and subsidiaries have been prepared by management who are responsible for their integrity and objectivity.
The statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and include amounts based on management’s best estimates
and judgments. Financial information elsewhere in this Annual
Report is consistent with that in the financial statements.
Management has established and maintains a system of internal
control designed to provide reasonable assurance that errors or
irregularities that could be material to the financial statements
are prevented or would be detected within a timely period. In
addition, management also has established and maintains a
system of disclosure controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed is accumulated and reported in an accurate and timely manner. The systems of internal control and disclosure control include widely
communicated statements of policies and business practices
which are designed to require all employees to maintain high
ethical standards in the conduct of Company affairs. The internal
controls and disclosure controls are augmented by organizational
arrangements that provide for appropriate delegation of authority
and division of responsibility and by a program of internal audit
with management follow-up.
The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, independent certified public accountants. Their
audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United States of America and included
a review of internal controls and selective tests of transactions.
The Independent Auditors’ Report appears in this report.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed
entirely of outside directors, meets periodically with the independent certified public accountants, management and internal
auditors to review accounting, auditing, internal accounting controls, litigation and financial reporting matters. The independent
certified public accountants and the internal auditors have free
access to this committee without management present.

Philip M. Condit
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Michael M. Sears
Executive Vice President
Office of the Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer

James A. Bell
Senior Vice President Finance
and Corporate Controller
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Five-Year Summary (Unaudited)

(Dollars in millions except per share data)

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

Operations
Sales and other operating revenues
$««28,387

$««35,056

$««31,171

$««38,475

$««36,998

Military Aircraft and Missile Systems

13,990

12,451

11,924

11,866

12,488

Space and Communications

10,967

10,364

8,039

6,831

6,889

Boeing Capital Corporation (a)
Other (b)

994

815

545

357

331

544

413

486

768

783

Accounting differences/eliminations

(813)

(901)

(844)

(304)

(1,335)

$««54,069

$««58,198

$««51,321

$««57,993

$««56,154

General and administrative expense

2,534

2,389

2,335

2,044

1,993

Research and development expense

1,639

1,936

1,441

1,341

1,895

42

318

386

585

283

$««««2,319

$««««2,826

$««««2,128

$««««2,309

$««««1,120

Commercial Airplanes

Total

Other income/(expense), net
Net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change

(1,827)

1

$«««««««492

$««««2,827

$««««2,128

$««««2,309

$««««1,120

Basic earnings per share

2.90

3.46

2.48

2.52

1.16

Diluted earnings per share

2.87

3.41

2.44

2.49

1.15

$«««««««571

$«««««««582

$«««««««504

$«««««««537

$«««««««564

0.68

0.68

0.56

0.56

0.56

1,001

1,189

965

1,289

1,665

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Net earnings

Cash dividends paid
Per share
Additions to plant and equipment, net
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Employee salaries and wages
Year-end workforce

1,094

1,140

1,159

1,330

1,386

11,424

11,703

11,615

11,019

12,074

166,000

188,000

198,000

197,000

231,000

Financial Position at December 31
$««52,342

$««48,978

$««43,504

$««36,952

$««38,002

Working capital

(2,955)

(3,721)

(2,383)

2,112

2,836

Net plant and equipment

8,765

8,459

8,794

8,192

8,589

Total assets

2,333

633

1,010

3,454

2,462

Total debt

14,403

12,265

8,799

6,732

6,972

Customer and commercial financing assets

12,211

10,398

6,959

6,004

5,711

7,696

10,825

11,020

11,462

12,316

Cash and short-term investments

Shareholders’ equity
Per share
Common shares outstanding (in millions) (c)

9.62

13.57

13.18

13.16

13.13

799.7

797.9

836.3

870.8

937.9

$««68,159

$««75,850

$««89,780

$««72,972

$««86,057

21,073

17,630

17,113

15,691

17,007

Contractual Backlog
Commercial Airplanes
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
Space and Communications
Total

14,941

13,111

13,707

10,585

9,832

$104,173

$106,591

$120,600

$««99,248

$112,896

Cash dividends have been paid on common stock every year since 1942.
(a) In the first quarter of 2002, the segment formerly identified as Customer and Commercial Financing was reclassified as Boeing Capital Corporation
(BCC). The years 1998 through 2001 are restated.
(b) The Other segment classification was established in 2001 and the years 1998 through 2000 are restated.
(c) Computation excludes treasury shares and the outstanding shares held by the ShareValue Trust.
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Index to Financial Report

Accounting policies,
summary of significant
Accounting quantity
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Accounts receivable
Acquisitions
Aircraft valuation – accounting policy
Aircraft valuation – application of
critical accounting policy using estimates
Airline deregulation
Airline industry environment
Application of critical accounting policies
Backlog, Commercial Airplanes
Backlog, consolidated
Backlog, Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Backlog, Space and Communications
Boeing Capital Corporation results of
operations and financial condition
Business environment and trends,
Boeing Capital Corporation
Business environment and trends,
Commercial Airplanes
Business environment and trends,
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
Business environment and trends,
Space and Communications
Capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents –
accounting policy
Cash flow summary
Cautionary statement on
forward-looking information
Commercial aircraft program
development, time horizon (graph)
Commercial Airplanes results of
operations and financial condition
Commercial commitments, disclosures
Commercial launch and satellite
Competitive environment,
U.S. defense market
Consolidated results of operations
and financial condition
Consolidated statements of cash flows
Consolidated statements
of financial position
Consolidated statements of operations
Consolidated statements
of shareholders’ equity
Consolidation, principles of –
accounting policy
Contingencies
Contingent items
Contract accounting – accounting policy
Contract accounting – application of
critical accounting policy using estimates
Contractual obligations and
commitments, disclosures

59
48
70
66
63
61
38
50
50
37
50
43
52
54
55
56
50
52
54
45
60
43
37
49
47
46
55
52
41
35
34
33
36
59
79
57
59
37
44

Critical accounting policies and standards
issued and not yet implemented
Customer and Commercial Financing
Debt
Deferred lease income
Deferred production costs
Deliveries, commercial jet aircraft
Deliveries, Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Deliveries, Space and Communications
Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives – accounting policy
Earnings per share
Employees and labor relations
Estimates, use of – accounting policy
Events of September 11, 2001
Fair value of financial instruments,
disclosure about
Five-year summary
Fleet support
Foreign sales
Goodwill and acquired intangibles
Goodwill and acquired intangibles –
accounting policy
Goodwill impairment – application of
critical accounting policy using estimates
Guarantees
45,
Homeland security
Human space flight and exploration
Income tax payments
Income taxes
42,
Income taxes – accounting policy
Independent auditors’ report
Industrial participation agreements
Industry competitiveness,
commercial aircraft
Integrated battlespace
Inventories
Inventories – accounting policy
Inventory procurement contracts
Investments
Investments – accounting policy
Liquidity and capital resources
Long-lived assets – accounting policy
Management’s discussion and analysis
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems results
of operations and financial condition
Military Transformation
Missile Defense
Net earnings, consolidated
Notes to consolidated financial statements
Off-balance sheet risk,
arrangements with
45,
Operating earnings,
Boeing Capital Corporation
Operating earnings, Commercial Airplanes
Operating earnings, consolidated
Operating earnings,
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems

37
67
70
70
49
47
51
53
75
60
65
57
59
57
79
86
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81
63
60
39
76
55
55
66
65
60
85
44
50
54
67
59
44
69
60
43
60
37
51
52
55
42
59
76
56
47
41

Operating earnings,
Space and Communications
Other segment
Pensions
Performance Shares
Postemployment plans – accounting policy
Postretirement plans
Postretirement plans – accounting policy
Postretirement plans – application of critical
accounting policy using estimates
Product warranties
Program accounting – accounting policy
Program accounting – application of critical
accounting policy using estimates
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment –
accounting policy
Quarterly financial data
Report of management
Research and development –
accounting policy
Research and development,
Commercial Airplanes
Research and development, consolidated
Research and development
expense (graph)
Research and development,
Military Aircraft and Missile Systems
Research and development,
Space and Communications
Revenues (graph)
Revenues, Boeing Capital Corporation
Revenues, Commercial Airplanes
Revenues, consolidated
Revenues, Military Aircraft and
Missile Systems
Revenues, Space and Communications
Risk, significant group concentrations of
Segment information
Segment results of operations
and financial condition
September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks,
accounting for the impact
Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation –
accounting policy
Shareholders’ equity
ShareValue Trust
Space and Communications results of
operations and financial condition
Standards issued and
not yet implemented
40,
Stock options
Variable interests in
unconsolidated entities
Working capital

53
57
44
74
61
71
60
40
77
59
38
68
60
84
85
59
49
42
42
51
54
41
55
47
41
51
53
78
80
47
62
74
59
75
74
53
62
74
77
43

51
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Selected Boeing Products, Programs and Services

Boeing Commercial Airplanes
Alan Mulally, President and CEO
Renton, Washington

The Boeing 777-200

The Boeing 767-200

767-300
The Boeing 747-400

777-300

767-400

The 747-400 seats 416 to 568 passengers,
depending on seating configuration. The 747-400ER
(Extended Range), which entered service last year,
has an extended range of up to 7,670 nautical
miles (nmi). With its huge capacity, long range and
fuel efficiency, the 747 offers the lowest operating
cost per seat of all twin-aisle commercial jetliners.
The 747-400 is available in an all-cargo freighter
version, and the new 747-400ER freighter has an
increased maximum takeoff weight of 910,000
pounds. Boeing continues to study 747 derivatives
to continue its leadership in meeting the world’s
need for high-capacity, long-range airplanes.

The 777-200, which seats 305 to 440 passengers
depending on configuration, has a range of up to
5,210 nmi. The 777-200ER (Extended Range) can
fly the same number of passengers up to 7,730
nmi. The 777-300 is about 33 feet longer than the
-200 and can carry from 368 to 550 passengers,
depending on seating configuration, with a range of
5,955 nmi. The company recently introduced two
longer-range 777s, the 777-200LR (Longer Range)
and the 777-300ER. The -200LR is the same size
as the -200ER, but has a range of 8,865 nmi. The
777-300ER is the same size as the -300, but has a
range of 7,250 nmi.

The 767-200 will typically fly 181 to 224 passengers up to 6,600 nmi in its extended-range version.
The 767-300, also offered in an extended-range
version, offers 20 percent more passenger seating
than the 767-200 and has a range of 6,100 nmi. A
freighter version of the 767-300 is available. Boeing
also offers the 767-400ER, which seats 245 to 304
passengers, and has a range of 5,645 nmi. In a
high-density inclusive tour arrangement, the 767400ER can carry up to 375 passengers.

Orders: 1,371*

Orders: 619*

Deliveries: 424

Orders: 931*

The Boeing 757-200

The Boeing 737-600

737-800

The Boeing 717-200

757-300

737-700

737-900

The 757-200 typically seats 200 passengers in two
classes. It has a range of up to 3,900 nmi and is a
short- to medium-range jetliner incorporating advanced technology for exceptional fuel efficiency,
low noise levels, increased passenger comfort and
top operating performance. The 757-300, with 20
percent more passenger seating and nearly 50
percent more cargo volume than the 757-200, can
carry 243 to 280 passengers on routes of up to
3,395 nmi. The 757-300 has the lowest seat-mile
costs of all midsized or single-aisle jetliners, making
it an extremely cost-effective airplane to operate.
A freighter version of the 757-200 also is available.
The 757 is environmentally friendly, it is quiet and
fuel-efficient, and it meets strict worldwide standards for engine emissions.

The Boeing 737 is the best-selling commercial
jetliner of all time. The new 737s (737-600/-700/
-800/-900) incorporate advanced technology and
design features that translate into cost-efficient,
high-reliability operations and superior passenger
satisfaction. The 737 is the only airplane family to
span the entire 100- to 189-seat market with maximum ranges up to 3,360 nmi. This flexibility provides operators the ability to respond to the needs
of the market. The 737 family also includes two
Boeing Business Jets — derivatives of the 737-700
and -800 — as well as a convertible passenger-tocargo derivative.

The 717 twinjet meets the growing need worldwide
for a 100-seat, high-frequency, short-range jet,
flying a maximum range of 1,430 nmi. The durable,
simple, ultraquiet and clean twinjet’s effective use of
technology results in the lowest operating costs in
its class.

Orders: 1,049*

Orders: 5,177*

Orders: 153*

Deliveries: 1,319

Deliveries: 1,022

Deliveries: 4,379

Boeing Commercial Aviation Services

The Boeing 7E7

Boeing Commercial Aviation Services provides the
most complete portfolio of commercial aviation
support products and services in the industry. This
organization is an important component in the
company’s total solutions approach. It offers a wide
range of products and services aimed at bringing
even more value to our customers. This includes
spare parts, airplane modification and engineering
support, and a comprehensive worldwide customer
support network. Commercial Aviation Services
also oversees a number of joint ventures and wholly
owned subsidiaries such as Jeppesen Sanderson
Inc., and Continental Graphics.

Boeing is developing a new, super-efficient commercial airplane that applies the enabling technologies developed during the feasibility study for
the Sonic Cruiser. Designated for development as
the Boeing 7E7, the airplane is being designed to
seat 200 to 250 passengers and fly 7,000 to 8,000
nmi, while providing dramatic savings in fuel use
and operating costs. Its exceptional performance
comes from improvements in engine technology,
aerodynamics, materials and systems. It will be the
most advanced and efficient commercial airplane in
its class and will set new standards for environmental responsibility and passenger comfort. Entry into
service is scheduled for 2008.
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Deliveries: 892

Deliveries: 113

*Orders and deliveries as of December 31, 2002

Boeing Integrated Defense Systems
Jim Albaugh, President and CEO
St. Louis, Missouri

AH-64D Apache Longbow

737-700 Airborne Early Warning & Control System

The AH-64D Apache is the most lethal, survivable,
deployable and maintainable multimission combat
helicopter in the world. In addition to multiyear
contracts from the U.S. Army for 501 Apache
Longbows, Boeing has delivered or is under
contract to deliver advanced Apaches to Egypt,
Israel, Singapore, The Netherlands and the United
Kingdom. Japan is finalizing an agreement for new
AH-64Ds, and several nations are considering the
Apache Longbow for their defense forces.

In 2002, Boeing signed a $1 billion contract with
Turkey for four 737 AEW&C systems. Additionally,
the first Wedgetail aircraft, a 737-700, rolled out of
the factory. Modifications transforming it into an
AEW&C platform for Australia’s Project Wedgetail
are scheduled for the first quarter of 2003. A
Boeing-led team also achieved a series of major
design milestones for the Wedgetail program.
These systems and subsystems included the
radar, identification friend or foe, electronic support
measures, electronic warfare self-protection,
navigation and communications.

Aerospace Support

Aerospace Support is a single organization offering
the full spectrum of products and services to
reduce life cycle costs and maximize readiness of
military aircraft in service with operators around the
globe. This includes modernization and upgrade
initiatives, maintenance and modification programs,
training systems and services, spares and technical
data, and a wide variety of logistics services. These
capabilities have been leveraged on complex efforts
such as the C-130 Avionics Modernization Program,
and broad support packages such as the F/A-18E/F
Integrated Readiness Support Teaming for the
Super Hornet fleet.

C-17 Globemaster III

The C-17 Globemaster III, the most advanced
versatile airlifter ever produced, was developed to
meet U.S. force-projection requirements. Capable
of long range with a maximum payload of 169,000
pounds, the C-17 can operate from short, austere
runways close to front lines. As the U.S. Air Force’s
premier airlifter, the C-17 has also supported U.S.
and allied forces with airdrops of equipment, airborne troops and humanitarian aid missions. Under
the current contract schedule, the Air Force will
procure 180 C-17s. The 100th C-17 was delivered
to the Air Force in November 2002. The United
Kingdom is the C-17’s first international customer,
with four leased C-17s operating with the Royal
Air Force.
2002 deliveries: 16

2002 deliveries: 87 (15 new; 72 remanufactured
and kits)
Airborne Laser

AV-8B Harrier II Plus

Boeing is the prime contractor on the U.S. Air
Force’s Airborne Laser program and leads a team
with a $1.3 billion contract to conduct the program
definition and risk reduction phase of the ABL
program. The effort is intended to explore the
feasibility of an airborne laser system for defense
against tactical theater ballistic missiles during their
boost phase.

The multimission Harrier II Plus added a multimode
radar system and next-generation weapons compatibility to the aircraft’s proven short takeoff/vertical landing capabilities. The aircraft is a product of
a Boeing, BAE Systems and Rolls-Royce team and
is built for the U.S. Marine Corps and the Spanish
and Italian navies. Most recently, it has been called
upon to serve in Operation Enduring Freedom.

C-32A Executive Transport

C-40A Military Transport

The C-32A is a specially configured Boeing
757-200 for the U.S. Air Force. The aircraft provides safe, reliable worldwide airlift for the Vice
President, U.S. Cabinet members and other U.S.
government officials. Four C-32As currently are in
service. Boeing is providing a major communications upgrade to the C-32As, including Connexion
by Boeing.

This modified 737-700C jetliner increases the
logistical capability of the U.S. Navy’s worldwide
fleet. It can be configured as an all-passenger, allcargo or combination passenger-cargo transport.
Boeing delivered four C-40As to the Navy in 2001
and two aircraft in 2002. These aircraft have begun
replacing the Navy’s C-9 fleet of 29 aircraft.

C-40B Executive Transport

2002 deliveries: 2

The C-40B is a specially modified Boeing Business
Jet that will provide high-performance, flexible and
cost-effective airlift support for combatant commanders and senior government leadership. The
U.S. Air Force and Air National Guard have ordered
three aircraft. One was delivered in 2002, and two
are scheduled for delivery in 2003. Additional orders
are anticipated to replace other aging aircraft. The
aircraft will be equipped with Connexion by Boeing,
allowing the users to send, receive and monitor
real-time data communications from around the
globe using a space-based network.
2002 deliveries: 1

C-40C Executive Transport

CH-47 Chinook

The C-40C is a specially modified Boeing Business
Jet in team travel configuration designed for U.S.
government travel from the Washington, D.C., area.
The aircraft will provide high-performance, flexible
and cost-effective airlift support. In 2002, the U.S.
Air Force contracted with Boeing to lease up to four
C-40 aircraft, three of which are C-40Cs. The first
two C-40Cs were delivered to the Air Force in 2002.

In 2003, Boeing will begin modernization of the
U.S. Army’s CH-47 Chinooks and MH-47 Special
Operations Chinooks. The CH-47F is scheduled to
enter service in 2004 with several major system improvements. The new MH-47G will feature advanced
common cockpit architecture. Under this program,
Chinooks will remain in Army service through 2035
and will achieve an unprecedented service life in
excess of 75 years. Boeing also manufactures the
CH-47SD Chinook for international customers.

2002 deliveries: 2

2002 deliveries: 7
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Selected Boeing Products, Programs and Services

Boeing Integrated Defense Systems
continued

Delta III

Delta IV Medium, Medium-Plus, Heavy

Developed to address the needs of the commercial
launch market, Delta III provides a geosynchronous
transfer orbit capability of 8,400 pounds (3,810
kilograms), nearly twice the payload of the workhorse Delta II. The last successful Delta III launch
was Aug. 23, 2000. One Delta III launch is planned
for late 2003.

The Delta IV family of Medium, Medium-Plus and
Heavy launch vehicles can lift payloads ranging
from 9,285 pounds (4,210 kilograms) to 28,950
pounds (13,130 kilograms) to geosynchronous
transfer orbit. The rockets are designed to meet the
needs of the commercial and U.S. government
launch markets for low-cost, assured access to
space. On November 20, 2002, Boeing successfully
launched its first Delta IV rocket, placing a Eutelsat
commercial communications satellite into orbit.

Delta II

The Delta II is a medium-capacity expendable
launch vehicle derived from the Delta family of
rockets built and launched since 1960. Delta II has
become the industry standard for reliability, on-time
delivery of payloads to orbit and customer satisfaction since its introduction in 1989. Delta II completed three successful missions in 2002.

2002 deliveries: 3

2003 manifest: 1

2003 manifest: 8

2002 deliveries: 1

2003 manifest: 4

F/A-18E/F Super Hornet

F-15E Eagle

F/A-22 Raptor

The F/A-18E/F Super Hornet is the cornerstone of
U.S. naval aviation and the United States’ newest,
most advanced strike fighter. Designed to perform
both fighter (air-to-air) and attack (air-to-surface or
strike) missions, the Super Hornet provides all the
capability, flexibility and performance necessary to
modernize the air or naval aviation forces of any
country. More than 120 of the 284 Super Hornets
on order by the U.S. Navy have been delivered —
and all were delivered on or ahead of schedule.
Production is expected to run through at least 2012.

The F-15E Eagle is the world’s most capable multirole fighter and the backbone of the U.S. Air Force
fleet. The F-15E carries payloads larger than those
of any other tactical fighter, and it retains the airto-air capability of the single-mission F-15C. It can
operate around the clock and in any weather. Since
entering operational service, the F-15 has a perfect
air combat record with more than 101 victories and
no losses. Three other nations are currently flying
the F-15, and the Republic of Korea recently
ordered 40 F-15K versions.

Boeing, teamed with Lockheed Martin, Pratt &
Whitney and the U.S. Air Force, has developed and
is now producing the F/A-22 Raptor as a replacement for the F-15C. Capable of super cruise, the
agile and stealthy F/A-22 will take over the air
superiority role with Air Combat Command starting
in 2005. The Raptor will also be capable of carrying
precision-guided munitions for the ground-attack
role. The Air Force plans to procure 339 F/A-22s,
with production expected to run through 2013.

2002 deliveries: 40

2002 deliveries: 3

Family of Advanced BeyondLine-of-Sight Terminals (FAB-T)

Future Combat Systems

Future Imagery Architecture

A Boeing-led team is designing and developing the
first increment of wideband satellite communications
terminals for the U.S. Department of Defense. FABT will provide strategic forces with a multimissioncapable family of radio systems. Special-purpose
antennas with a common design and open-system
architecture enable information exchange among
ground, air and space platforms. FAB-T is a key
building block of the integrated battlespace, where
networked information and communications
systems provide a competitive edge to decisionmakers and military personnel.

Boeing and industry partner Science Applications
International Corporation were awarded the lead
systems integrator role by the U.S. Defense
Advanced Research Projects Agency. A networked
system of improved communications links and
lighter, more mobile armored vehicles, FCS is the
backbone of the U.S. Army’s long-term “Objective
Force” transition plan. The initiative will serve as the
core building block to develop what the Army calls
“overmatching” combat power, sustainability, agility
and versatility necessary for full-spectrum military
operations.

Boeing leads the team that is developing Future
Imagery Architecture — a key element of the U.S.
National Reconnaissance Office’s space-based
architecture. This significant contract, which the
NRO awarded in 1999 and which extends through
2010, confirms Boeing’s leadership in the area of
space imaging.
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Global Positioning System

GMD Prime Contractor

International Space Station

Boeing has built a total of 40 GPS satellites.
Currently, Boeing is under contract to build six
follow-on Block IIF satellites with an option for
additional satellites. Additionally, Boeing is under
U.S. Air Force contract to lead the ground
control segment of the GPS constellation and will
continue to provide navigation system leadership
into the future.

Boeing is the prime contractor for the Groundbased Midcourse Defense program, designed to
intercept and destroy a hostile ballistic missile during
its midcourse phase of flight. In December 2002,
the President directed the U.S. Department of
Defense to proceed with fielding an initial set of
missile defense capabilities beginning in 2004 and
2005. These initial capabilities will include groundbased interceptors, sea-based interceptors,
additional Patriot (PAC-3) units and sensors based
on land, at sea and in space.

Boeing is NASA’s prime contractor for design,
development and operation of the International
Space Station. The first elements of the orbital
outpost launched in 1998, with the first human
occupants arriving about two years later. Boeing
also coordinates with thousands of subcontractors
and the 16 international partners to build the
21st century’s premiere scientific research facility.
Assembling the space station will require more than
40 U.S. and Russian launches, in addition to more
than 960 hours of space walks. When completed,
the ISS will have interior space equivalent to oneand-a-half Boeing 747s.

Joint Tactical Radio System (JTRS)

767 Tanker Transport

RAH-66 Comanche

Boeing IDS is the prime system-engineering contractor for Cluster 1, the first phase of the JTRS. This
revolutionary communications system will be the
foundation for all future U.S. Department of Defense
tactical radios. Based on an open communications
architecture, the JTRS family of software reprogrammable radios will provide U.S. commanders
and warfighters with flexibility and significantly improved simultaneous voice, video and data communications capability for varied mission requirements.
Cluster 1 consists of U.S. Army, Air Force and
Marine Corps ground radios, as well as Army rotary
wing aircraft radios and includes the development of
a new wideband networking waveform.

The 767 Tanker Transport is the reliable, low-risk
solution for air-refueling and transport needs for
military services around the globe. Equipped with
proven aerial-refueling systems and flexible interior
configurations, the 767 Tanker Transport provides
enhanced mission capability, optimum fuel offload
and range, and low operating costs. The first aircraft, now in production, will be delivered to the
Italian Air Force in 2005.

The U.S. Department of Defense approved a
restructuring of the Boeing Sikorsky RAH-66
Comanche armed reconnaissance helicopter program in late 2002. The program schedule calls for
production of 650 Comanches for the U.S. Army,
with first deliveries beginning in 2007. Beginning
in 2003, the Comanche program will initiate production of nine additional prototype aircraft for
expanded flight and operational testing and training. Comanche is an essential part of the U.S.
Army’s transformation to meet the requirements of
21st century network-centric warfare.

Boeing Satellite Systems
Boeing 376
Boeing 601

Sea Launch Company LLC

SLAM-ER

CALCM

JDAM

Harpoon

Boeing 702

Boeing Satellite Systems is the world’s largest
manufacturer of commercial geosynchronous communications satellites, and is a leader in military communications. Core products include the Boeing 702,
the world’s highest-power satellite; the Boeing 601,
the world’s best-selling large spacecraft; and the
versatile Boeing 376. Military programs include up
to six U.S. Air Force Wideband Gapfiller Satellites
and the U.S. Navy UHF Follow-On 11-satellite fleet.
In 2002, Boeing received funding for the first three
Wideband Gapfillers. Also, Thuraya Satellite Telecommunications of the United Arab Emirates
ordered Thuraya-3, a mobile communications satellite based on the Boeing 702. The year also saw
successful launches of five satellites. BSS ended
the year with a firm backlog of 31 satellites and
three payloads or science instruments, plus options
for five satellites and four science instruments.
2002 deliveries: 6

Sea Launch is an international company led by
Boeing with partners from firms in Russia, Ukraine
and Norway. Sea Launch offers heavy-lift commercial launch services in the 4,200- to 6,000-kilograms payload class from an ocean-based platform
positioned on the Equator. Sea Launch has had
seven successful missions placing satellites in orbit
since its inaugural launch in March 1999. World
Headquarters and Home Port are located in
Long Beach, California.

A world leader in all-weather precision munitions,
Boeing covers a wide spectrum of strike weapon
capabilities. These include the Standoff Land
Attack Missile-Expanded Response (SLAM-ER),
Joint Direct Attack Munition (JDAM), Conventional
Air-Launched Cruise Missile (CALCM), Brimstone
and improved Harpoon missiles. Customers include
all U.S. military services and the armed forces of 27
other nations.
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Selected Boeing Products, Programs and Services

Boeing Integrated Defense Systems
continued

Space Shuttle

T-45 Training System

The space shuttle is an engineering achievement
and remains the only reusable and human-rated
spacecraft in operation. Boeing is a major subcontractor to United Space Alliance to operate
the fleet of orbiters for NASA. Boeing is also
responsible for the Space Shuttle Main Engine
program. The engines have 100 percent flight success and a demonstrated reliability of 99.9 percent.

The two-seat T-45 Goshawk is the heart of the
integrated T-45 Training System, which the U.S.
Navy employs to prepare pilots for the fleet’s carrier-based jets. The system includes advanced flight
simulators, computer-assisted instruction, a computerized training integration system and logistics
support. U.S. Navy and Marine Corps student naval
aviators train in the T-45 at Naval Air Stations in
Meridian, Mississippi, and Kingsville, Texas.

Space Payloads

Boeing has been preparing payloads for space
flight since the dawn of the Space Age. The company currently holds NASA’s Checkout, Assembly
and Payload Processing Contract at Kennedy
Space Center, Florida, and the International Space
Station Payload Integration Contract, managed in
Houston, Texas. Preparing a payload for space
entails everything from ensuring that the item works
to fitting it inside the launch vehicle. Boeing has
also processed every space shuttle payload since
the first flight in 1981 and prepares every component of the International Space Station before it
leaves Earth.

2002 deliveries: 14
X-45 Unmanned Combat Air Vehicle

V-22 Osprey

The Unmanned Combat Air Vehicle could significantly increase combat effectiveness while reducing
the overall cost of operations. The X-45A technology
demonstrators now in flight test have a stealthy,
tailless, 27-ft. airframe with a 34-ft. wingspan. Initial
UCAV missions will be the suppression of enemy
air defenses. Because of their small size, lack of
pilot interfaces and training requirements, and longterm storage capability, UCAVs are projected to
cost up to 65 percent less to produce than future
manned fighter aircraft, and up to 75 percent less
to operate and maintain than current systems.

In partnership with Bell Helicopter Textron, Boeing
developed the revolutionary V-22 Osprey tiltrotor
aircraft. Carrying greater payload at altitudes and
distances of turboprop transports, the multiservice,
multimission aircraft is being delivered to the
U.S. Marine Corps (360) and the U.S. Air Force
Special Operations Command (50). The U.S. Navy
is scheduled to take delivery of 48 V-22s.

Boeing Capital Corporation
Jim Palmer, President
Renton, Washington

Connexion by BoeingSM
Scott Carson, President
Seattle, Washington; and Irvine, California

Air Traffic Management
John Hayhurst, President
McLean, Virginia; and Bellevue, Washington

Internet
Intranets
TV
Data

Boeing Capital is a global provider of financial
solutions. An asset-backed provider of loans and
leases, Boeing Capital manages a portfolio of
more than $11.8 billion, and is poised for prudent,
profitable growth. For more than 30 years it has
focused on financing assets that are critical to the
core operations of its customers, including
commercial and business aircraft, a wide variety of
commercial equipment and, more recently, space
and defense systems.
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Connexion by Boeing provides high-speed broadband communication services to aircraft in flight.
Through the service, connectivity is delivered
directly to laptops and personal digital assistants
(PDAs) in flight, providing airline passengers and
operators of executive aircraft for government and
the private sector with personalized and secure
real-time access to the Internet, company intranets
and television and news content. The Connexion by
Boeing broadband approach also permits applications to enhance airline operational efficiency on the
ground and in the air.

Boeing ATM continues to work with stakeholders
around the world to dramatically improve the safety,
security, capacity and efficiency of the global air
transportation system. In 2002, Boeing signed initial
study contracts/development agreements with
government aviation authorities in the United States,
China and The Netherlands. New integrated lab
facilities and initial release of new National Flow
Model and Regional Flow Model software tools
will aid in developing and testing concepts, such
as an integrated information network for air traffic
system users.

Board of Directors

John H. Biggs, Age 66
Former Chairman, President and CEO,
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association –
College Retirement Equities Fund

Boeing Board Committees:
Audit and Finance (Chairman)
Boeing director since 1997
Boeing director term expires in 2004

Trustee of Washington University,
St. Louis, Missouri
At-large trustee of the International Accounting
Standards Board Foundation

John E. Bryson, Age 59
Chairman of the Board, President
and CEO, Edison International

Boeing Board Committees: Compensation,
and Governance and Nominating
Boeing director since 1995
Boeing director term expires in 2004

Director of The Walt Disney Company,
Pacific American Income Shares, Inc. and
the W. M. Keck Foundation

Philip M. Condit, Age 61
Chairman of the Board and CEO,
The Boeing Company

Boeing director since 1992
Boeing director term expires in 2005

Trustee of Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, Cambridge, Massachusetts
Trustee of Northwestern University,
Evanston, Illinois

Director of Hewlett-Packard Company
Kenneth M. Duberstein, Age 59
Chairman and CEO,
The Duberstein Group

Boeing Committees: Compensation
(Chairman), and Governance and Nominating
Boeing director since 1997
Boeing director term expires in 2005
Former White House Chief of Staff, 1988 – 89

Director of ConocoPhillips, Fannie Mae,
Fleming Companies, Inc. and
St. Paul Companies
Governor of the American Stock Exchange
and National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc.

Paul E. Gray, Age 70
President Emeritus and Professor of
Electrical Engineering, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT)

Boeing Committees: Compensation,
Governance and Nominating, and
Special Programs
Boeing director since 1990

Boeing director term expires in 2003

John F. McDonnell, Age 64
Retired Chairman,
McDonnell Douglas Corporation

Boeing Committees: Compensation,
and Governance and Nominating
Boeing director since 1997
Boeing director term expires in 2003

Former CEO, McDonnell Douglas Corporation,
1988 – 94
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of
Washington University, St. Louis, Missouri
Director of Zoltek Companies, Inc.

W. James McNerney, Jr., Age 53
Chairman and CEO,
3M Company

Boeing Committees: Audit and Finance
Boeing director since 2001
Boeing director term expires in 2005

Former President and CEO of GE Aircraft
Engines, 1997– 2000

Lewis E. Platt, Age 61
Retired Chairman of the Board,
President and CEO,
Hewlett-Packard Company

Boeing Committees: Compensation, and
Governance and Nominating (Chairman)
Boeing director since 1999
Boeing director term expires in 2005

Director of 7-Eleven, Inc.
Serves on the Board of Overseers for the
Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Trustee of the David and Lucille Packard
Foundation

Former CEO and director of Kendall-Jackson
Wine Estates Ltd.
Rozanne L. Ridgway, Age 67
Former U.S. Assistant Secretary of State
for Europe and Canada

Boeing Committees: Audit and Finance
Boeing director since 1992
Boeing director term expires in 2004
U.S. State Department, including service
as Ambassador to German Democratic
Republic and Finland

Former Chairman, Corporation of MIT, 1990 – 97
Former President, Corporation of MIT, 1980 – 90

Director of Emerson Electric Company,
3M Company, Sara Lee Corporation,
Manpower Inc. and the New Perspective Fund
Co-chair of The Atlantic Council of the United
States, 1993 – 96 and President, 1989 – 92
Trustee of the National Geographic Society
Trustee of the Center for Naval Analyses

John M. Shalikashvili, Age 66
Retired Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff,
U.S. Department of Defense

Boeing Committees: Audit (Chairman),
Finance and Special Programs
Boeing director since 2000
Boeing director term expires in 2003

Formerly Commander-in-Chief of all U.S. Forces
in Europe and NATO’s 10th Supreme Allied
Commander in Europe
Visiting professor at Stanford University’s Center
for International Security and Cooperation
Director of Frank Russell Trust Company,
L-3 Communications Holding, Inc., Plug
Power Inc. and United Defense Industries Inc.

Harry C. Stonecipher, Age 66
Retired Vice Chairman of the Board,
The Boeing Company

Boeing Committees: Finance and
Special Programs (Chairman)
Boeing director since 1997
Boeing director term expires in 2003

Former President and CEO of McDonnell
Douglas Corporation, 1994 – 97
Former Chairman and CEO of
Sundstrand Corporation, 1991– 94
Director of PACCAR Inc. and Milacron Inc.

The Boeing Company and Subsidiaries 93

Company Leadership

Office of the Chairman
Philip M. Condit 1

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer2

Laurette T. Koellner 1

Executive Vice President2

Michael M. Sears 1

Executive Vice President2

David O. Swain 1

Executive Vice President2

Executive Council
James F. Albaugh 1

Executive Vice President2, President and Chief Executive Officer, Integrated Defense Systems

Douglas G. Bain 1

Senior Vice President2, General Counsel

Michael B. Bair

Senior Vice President, Boeing 7E7 Program, Commercial Airplanes

James A. Bell

Senior Vice President of Finance and Corporate Controller

Scott E. Carson

Senior Vice President2, President, Connexion by BoeingSM

Michael J. Cave

Senior Vice President, Commercial Aviation Services, Commercial Airplanes

Rudy F. deLeon

Senior Vice President2, Washington, D.C., Operations

James W. Evatt

Senior Vice President, Missile Defense Systems, Integrated Defense Systems

John B. Hayhurst

Senior Vice President2, President, Air Traffic Management

James M. Jamieson

Senior Vice President, Airplane Programs, Commercial Airplanes

James C. Johnson

Senior Vice President, Corporate Secretary and Assistant General Counsel

Laurette T. Koellner 1

Executive Vice President2, Chief People and Administration Officer

Robert J. Krieger

President, Phantom Works

Roger A. Krone

Senior Vice President, Army Systems, Integrated Defense Systems

John A. Lockard

Senior Vice President, Naval Systems, Integrated Defense Systems

George K. Muellner

Senior Vice President, Air Force Systems, Integrated Defense Systems

James J. Morris

Senior Vice President, Supplier Management, Commercial Airplanes

Judith A. Muhlberg

Senior Vice President, Communications

Alan R. Mulally 1

Executive Vice President2, President and Chief Executive Officer, Commercial Airplanes

James F. Palmer

Senior Vice President2, President, Boeing Capital Corporation

Robert J. Pasterick

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Commercial Airplanes

Thomas R. Pickering

Senior Vice President2, International Relations

Roger F. Roberts

Senior Vice President, Space and Intelligence Systems, Integrated Defense Systems

Michael M. Sears 1

Executive Vice President2, Chief Financial Officer

Randall R. Simons

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Integrated Defense Systems

Walter E. Skowronski

Senior Vice President of Finance and Treasurer

Bonnie W. Soodik

Senior Vice President2, President, Shared Services Group

David O. Swain 1

Executive Vice President2, Chief Technology Officer
1 Member of the Strategy Council
2 Elected Officer of The Boeing Company
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Shareholder Information

The Boeing Company
World Headquarters

The Boeing Company
100 North Riverside Plaza
Chicago, IL 60606-1596
U.S.A.
312-544-2000
Transfer Agent, Registrar, Dividend
Paying Agent and Plan Administrator

The transfer agent is responsible for shareholder records, issuance of stock certificates, distribution of dividends and IRS
Form 1099. Requests concerning these or
other related shareholder matters are most
efficiently answered by contacting
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
EquiServe
P.O. Box 43016
Providence, RI 02940-3016
U.S.A.
888-777-0923
(toll-free for domestic U.S. callers)
781-575-3400
(anyone phoning from outside the U.S.
may call collect)
Boeing registered shareholders can also
obtain answers to frequently asked
questions on such topics as transfer
instructions, the replacement of lost
certificates, consolidation of accounts and
book entry shares through EquiServe’s
home page on the World Wide Web at
http://www.equiserve.com.

Electronic Proxy Receipt and Voting

Boeing on the World Wide Web

Shareholders have the option of voting
their proxies by Internet or telephone,
instead of returning their proxy cards
through the mail. Instructions are in the
proxy statement and attached to the proxy
card for the annual meeting.

The Boeing home page —
http://www.boeing.com — is your entry
point for viewing the latest Company information about its products and people or
for viewing electronic versions of the
annual report, proxy statement, Form 10-K
or Form 10-Q.

Registered shareholders can go to
http://www.econsent.com/ba to sign up to
receive their annual report and proxy statement in an electronic format in the future.
Beneficial owners may contact the brokers
or banks that hold their stock to find out
whether electronic receipt is available. If
you choose electronic receipt, you will not
receive the paper form of the annual report
and proxy statement. Instead, you will
receive notice by e-mail when the materials
are available on the Internet.

Annual Meeting The annual meeting of

Printed in the U.S.A.

Boeing shareholders is scheduled to be
held on Monday, April 28, 2003. Details
are provided in the proxy statement.

Registered shareholders with duplicate
accounts may call EquiServe for instructions on consolidating those accounts.
The Company recommends that registered
shareholders always use the same form
of their names in all stock transactions to
be handled in the same account.
Registered shareholders may also ask
EquiServe to eliminate excess mailings
of annual reports going to shareholders in
the same household.

Written Inquiries May Be Sent To:

Shareholder Services
The Boeing Company
Mail Code 5003-1001
100 North Riverside Plaza
Chicago, IL 60606-1596
U.S.A.
Investor Relations
The Boeing Company
Mail Code 5003-5016
100 North Riverside Plaza
Chicago, IL 60606-1596
U.S.A.

Change of Address

For Boeing registered shareholders:
Call EquiServe at 888-777-0923, or log
onto your account at www.equiserve.com,
or write to EquiServe
P.O. Box 43016
Providence, RI 02940-3016
U.S.A.
For Boeing beneficial owners:
Contact your brokerage firm or bank to
give notice of your change of address.
Stock Exchanges The Company’s com-

Company Shareholder Services

Registered shareholders also have secure
Internet access to their own accounts
through EquiServe’s home page (see
above Web site address). They can view
their account history, change their address,
certify their tax identification number,
request duplicate statements, make additional investments and download a variety
of forms related to stock transactions. If
you are a registered shareholder and want
Internet access and either need a password or have lost your password, please
either log onto EquiServe’s Web site and
click on Account Access or call one of the
EquiServe phone numbers above.

Duplicate Shareholder Accounts

Prerecorded shareholder information is
available toll-free from Boeing Shareholder
Services at 800-457-7723. You may also
speak to a Boeing Shareholder Services
representative at 312-544-2835 between
8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Central Time.
To Request an Annual Report,
Proxy Statement, Form 10-K or
Form 10-Q, Contact:

Data Shipping
The Boeing Company
Mail Code 3T-33
P.O. Box 3707
Seattle, WA 98124-2207
U.S.A.
or call 425-393-4964 or
800-457-7723

mon stock is traded principally on the
New York Stock Exchange; the trading
symbol is BA. Boeing common stock is
also listed on the Amsterdam, Brussels,
London, Swiss and Tokyo stock
exchanges. Additionally, the stock is
traded without being listed on the Boston,
Chicago, Cincinnati, Pacific and
Philadelphia exchanges.
Independent Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP
180 North Stetson Avenue
Chicago, IL 60601-6779
U.S.A.
312-946-3000
Equal Opportunity Employer Boeing is
an equal opportunity employer and seeks
to attract and retain the best-qualified
people regardless of race, color, religion,
national origin, gender, sexual orientation,
age, disability, or status as a disabled or
Vietnam Era Veteran.
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